
Generated 1/7/2016 8:29 AM 

 

TOWN OF YUCCA VALLEY 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

 
The Mission of the Town of Yucca Valley is to  

provide a government that is responsive to its citizens  
to ensure a safe and secure environment  

while maintaining the highest quality of life. 
 
 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION: 6:00 PM 
TUESDAY, JANUARY 12, 2016 

 
YUCCA VALLEY COMMUNITY CENTER 

YUCCA ROOM 
57090 TWENTYNINE PALMS HWY 

YUCCA VALLEY, CA 92284 

* * * *  
Planning Commission 

Jeff Drozd, Commissioner 
Jeff Evans, Commissioner 

Charles McHenry, Commissioner 
Steven Whitten, Vice Chairman 

Vicki Bridenstine, Chairman 
* * * *  

TOWN ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE: 
760-369-7207 

www.yucca-valley.org 



2 | P a g e  

AGENDA 
MEETING OF THE 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
TUESDAY, JANUARY 12, 2016 

6:00 PM 

The Town of Yucca Valley complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  If 
you require special assistance to attend or participate in this meeting, please call the 
Town Clerk’s Office at 760-369-7209 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
An agenda packet for the meeting, and any additional documents submitted to the 
majority of the Planning Commission, are available for public view in the Town Hall 
lobby and with respect to the staff agenda packet, on the Town’s website, 
www.yucca-valley.org, prior to the Regular Meeting.  Any materials submitted to the 
Agency after distribution of the agenda packet will be available for public review in 
the Town Clerk’s Office during normal business hours and will be available for review 
at the Regular Meeting.  For more information on an agenda item or the agenda 
process, please contact the Town Clerk’s office at 760-369-7209 ext. 226.  
 
If you wish to comment on any subject on the agenda, or any subject not on the 
agenda during public comments, please fill out a card and give it to the Commission 
Secretary.  The Chair will recognize you at the appropriate time.  Comment time is 
limited to 3 minutes. 
 
Where appropriate or deemed necessary, action may be taken on any item listed in 
the agenda. 

OPENING CEREMONIES:   

CALL TO ORDER:   

ROLL CALL:   

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:   

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:   

CONSENT AGENDA:   

All items listed on the consent calendar are considered to be routine matters or are 
considered formal documents covering previous Planning Commission instruction.  The 
items listed on the consent calendar may be enacted by one motion and a second.  
There will be no separate discussion of the consent calendar items unless a member of 
the Planning Commission or Town Staff requests discussion on specific consent 
calendar items at the beginning of the meeting.  Public requests to comment on 



3 | P a g e  

consent calendar items should be filed with the Commission Secretary before the 
consent calendar is called. 

MINUTES APPROVAL:   

1. Planning Commission - Regular Meeting - Dec 8, 2015 6:00 PM  

PUBLIC HEARING:   

1. Environmental Assessment, EA 10-15; Conditional Use Permit, CUP 04-15 Steak 
N Shake  

Recommendation:  
Environmental Assessment, EA 10-15:. 
The review and approval of the Home Depot Retail Center Specific Plan 
included a program Environmental Impact Report (EIR).   The EIR 
evaluated future projects within the boundaries of the Home Depot 
Retail Center Specific Plan.   The proposed project was evaluated to 
determine if additional CEQA documentation needed to be prepared.   
The proposed project will not have any effects not considered within 
the scope of the program EIR.   The project is consistent with program 
EIR and will not create any additional impacts not previously 
considered.   No additional environmental review is required. 
 
Conditional Use Permit, CUP 04-15: That the Planning Commission 
approves Conditional Use Permit, CUP 04-15 based upon the 
information contained within the staff report, the required findings and 
the recommended conditions of approval.  

2. Environmental Assessment, 03-15; Conditional Use Permit, CUP 03-15; Cortel  

Recommendation:  
Environmental Assessment, EA 03-15: ; That the Planning Commission 
finds the project to be exempt from CEQA under Section 15061(b) (3) 
since there is no possibility of a significant impact on the environment 
caused by this project. 
 
Conditional Use Permit, CUP 03-15: That the Planning Commission 
approves CUP 03-15 based upon the information contained within the 
staff report, the required finding and the recommended conditions of 
approval. 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS:   

PUBLIC COMMENTS:   

In order to assist in the orderly and timely conduct of the meeting, the Planning 
Commission takes this time to consider your comments on items of concern which are 



4 | P a g e  

on the Closed Session or not on the agenda.  When you are called to speak, please 
state your name and community of residence.  Please limit your comments to three (3) 
minutes or less.  Inappropriate behavior which disrupts, disturbs or otherwise impedes 
the orderly conduct of the meeting will result in forfeiture of your public comment 
privileges.  The Planning Commission is prohibited by State law from taking action or 
discussing items not included on the printed agenda. 

STAFF REPORTS AND COMMENTS:   

COMMISSIONER REPORTS AND COMMENTS:   

ANNOUNCEMENTS:   

The next meeting of the Planning Commission will be held on January 26, 2016. 

ADJOURNMENT:   



Generated 12/16/2015 7:49 AM 

TOWN OF YUCCA VALLEY  
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 

DECEMBER 8, 2015 

OPENING CEREMONIES 

 Vice Chairman Steven Whitten called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 
 
PRESENT: Drozd, Evans, McHenry, Whitten 
ABSENT: Bridenstine (Excused) 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Jeff Evans, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Charles McHenry, Commissioner 
AYES: Jeff Drozd, Jeff Evans, Charles McHenry, Steven Whitten 
EXCUSED: Vicki Bridenstine 

CONSENT AGENDA 

MINUTES APPROVAL 

1.    Approval of November 10, 2015 Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes 

Recommendation 
That the Planning Commission approve as submitted the minutes of the Planning 
Commission meeting of November 10, 2015. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS ON CONSENT AGENDA 
 
None 
 
CLOSE PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
MOTION 
 
Commissioner Evans moved that the Planning Commission approve the Consent 
Agenda. Commissioner Drozd seconded, and the motion passed unanimously. 

1

Packet Pg. 5

M
in

ut
es

 A
cc

ep
ta

nc
e:

 M
in

ut
es

 o
f D

ec
 8

, 2
01

5 
6:

00
 P

M
  (

M
in

ut
es

 A
pp

ro
va

l)



YUCCA VALLEY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES  December 8, 2015 

2 | P a g e  

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Jeff Evans, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Jeff Drozd, Commissioner 
AYES: Jeff Drozd, Jeff Evans, Charles McHenry, Steven Whitten 
EXCUSED: Vicki Bridenstine 

 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

 
2. Landscape Plan, LP 01-14; Native Plant Plan, NPP 82-14; Sage Estates, Tract 17862: 

Southeast corner of Golden Bee and Sage Avenue  

Recommendation: 
That the Planning Commission accepts the revised Native Plant inventory information 
and requires the submittal of a revised landscaping plan consistent with Section 
9.07.130, Native Landscape Documentation Package, of the Yucca Valley Development 
Code. 
 
STAFF REPORT 
 
Deputy Town Manager Stueckle provided the staff report.  The Planning Commission 
previously reviewed the Native Plant Plan and Landscape Plan for Tract 17862 at their 
meeting of December 2, 2014, and construction was begun. Since that time, the 
applicant submitted revised native plant inventory information. The initial native plant 
survey identified 859 Joshua Trees, 790 of which were likely to survive transplanting and 
517 Mojave Yuccas, 422 of which were likely to survive transplanting.  The submitted 
revised survey only identifies 298 Joshua Trees, 210 of which are viable for 
transplanting, and 166 Mojave Yuccas. 
 
Commissioner Whitten opened the floor for public comment.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT ITEM 2 
 

  Laura Emerick, spoke in opposition of the item.  She asked about the apparent 
inconstancies in the number of tree adopted off site.  She also said that the native plant 
ordinance should be strengthened.  
 

 Bill Shack, applicant, spoke in support of the item.  He clarified that there weren’t 
inconsistencies in the number of adopted trees.  He said that the difference in the 
number of trees was due to trees dying due to the drought, or being taller than 6 feet, 
which made them too tall to survive transplantation.  He said that they had saved every 
tree possible.  He described the landscaping they intended to construct and said that 
they would be adding 250 cat claws in addition to the Joshua Trees and Mojave Yuccas.  
He said that another reason for the discrepancy was that the original survey counted all 
the seedling in a Joshua tree cluster as individual trees.  Mr. Shack said that these 

1

Packet Pg. 6

M
in

ut
es

 A
cc

ep
ta

nc
e:

 M
in

ut
es

 o
f D

ec
 8

, 2
01

5 
6:

00
 P

M
  (

M
in

ut
es

 A
pp

ro
va

l)



YUCCA VALLEY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES  December 8, 2015 

3 | P a g e  

seedlings are too small and would not survive.  He said that a biologist was on site 
during the removal and moving of the trees.  He asked that the Planning Commission 
accept the documentation presented to the Commission. 
 

 David Fick, Joshua Tree, spoke in opposition of the applicants request.  He said that he 
commented on the project when it was originally reviewed. Spoke against the approval 
of the applicant’s request.  He asked why the biologist, Ed LaRue, wasn’t present.  He 
also said that it was possible to transplant Joshua trees much taller than 6 feet and have 
them survive.  He asked where 515 Joshua trees had gone.  
   

 John Stevens, Yucca Mesa, said that when work began on the project there was a lot of 
talk on social media about it.  Mr. Stevens said that he, along with several others, met 
with foreman on the job who explained what was going on and showed them the 
nursery.  He was told by the foreman that on a previous job they had moved a large 
number of trees with a hundred percent survival rate.   When he attempted to follow up 
with a request for location of the previously transplanted trees he did not receive an 
answer.   
 

 Michael Hildebrand, Yucca Valley, spoke in support of the applicant’s request.  He said 
that he did the grading and grubbing on several project in town, and that he moved a lot 
of trees.  He said that the adoption program was unclear and that people had come to 
adopt trees without documentation. 
 

 Bill Shack, Applicant, said that he is sensitive to Joshua tree issues. He said that this is 
the fourth tract he has developed in Yucca Valley.  He said that they have left 25% of the 
tract undeveloped, as required. Met that requirement.  He said that it was redundant to 
go to additional expense to redo something that can’t be redone.  He asked the Planning 
Commission to approve what was submitted to the Commission.  
 
Commissioner Drozd asked Mr. Shack about discrepancy in the number of trees.  Mr. 
Shack said that original survey was done prior to 2009 and since that time due to 
drought, the counting of individual trees in clusters and other causes the number had 
lessened.  Mr. Shack said that there were currently 300 Mojave yuccas and 200 Joshua 
trees in the nursery.  Vincent Shack said that during the drought it was easy for 
individuals to dig up and take Joshua trees.  Bill Shack said that it was easier for them to 
transplant trees rather than destroy them. 
 
Commissioner Evans said that he struggled with accepting that 561 Joshua trees 
disappeared since 2009.  He said that he understood that the counts had been done by 
different individuals and with different methods, and the drought and previous fire had 
effect trees, but still found that number difficult to accept.  Bill Shack said that the 
original count wasn’t a count of healthy transplantable trees.  
 

1

Packet Pg. 7

M
in

ut
es

 A
cc

ep
ta

nc
e:

 M
in

ut
es

 o
f D

ec
 8

, 2
01

5 
6:

00
 P

M
  (

M
in

ut
es

 A
pp

ro
va

l)



YUCCA VALLEY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES  December 8, 2015 

4 | P a g e  

Commissioner Drozd asked the applicant how many trees were identified as unhealthy 
requiring destruction.  Bill Shack clarified that Ed LaRue identified the unhealthy trees.  
Mr. Hildebrand said that that only about 30 trees were not moved to the nursery.  
 
Commissioner Whitten said that there were different surveyors in the process and 
everyone has different opinions about what is or isn’t viable.  
 
CLOSE PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Deputy Town Manager Stueckle summarized that the original approval was for 525 
Joshua trees and 372 Mojave yuccas, and the revised request is for 210 Joshua Trees 
and 310 Mojave Yuccas.  He also stated that the original survey counted all trees in a 
cluster while the revised survey did not include the small trees in a cluster.  Staff has not 
received any additional clarification.  Staff said that their recommendation was that the 
Planning Commission accepts the revised Native Plant inventory information and 
requires the submittal of a revised landscaping plan, which was the minimum required 
by the development code.  Staff also said that as an alternative action the Planning 
Commission could require the applicant to come back with additional documentation 
regarding the discrepancy. 
  
Commissioner Drozd said that he believes this is a big issue to the community, but the 
most important issue is that we follow the Development Code.  He said that he thought 
that the applicant had followed the development code and had done everything they 
could do.  He said that if changes needed to be made they should be made in the 
Development Code. He said he would be open to asking them to come back with more 
information, or approving the item.  
 
Commissioner McHenry said that he had several issues with the item.  The primary issue 
was how large the difference between the two numbers was.  He said that even with 
the drought and the counting of clusters, it was hard to accept over fifty percent of the 
trees being lost.  The second issue he had was that the native plant survey was redone 
in January of this year, but a revised plan wasn’t submitted until October, once grading 
was complete.  He asked why the applicant would proceed with grading if he knew the 
numbers were wrong.  He said it seemed like a case of asking for forgiveness rather than 
permission.  Commissioner McHenry said that he would only be willing to support 
requiring the applicant to come back with more information.  He said that he had lost 
some Joshua Trees to drought, but nothing like sixty or eighty percent of them.  
 
Commissioner Evans agreed with Commissioner Drozd that they need to adhere to the 
Development Code, and that if changes needed to be made they should be made in the 
Code itself.  He said that there may need to be work on the native plant ordinance.  He 
said he would be willing to support asking the applicant to come back with additional 
information.  
 
Commissioner Whitten said that Planning Commission spent a great deal of time on the 
native plant ordinance and did a very good job considering the difficulty of the issue.  

1

Packet Pg. 8

M
in

ut
es

 A
cc

ep
ta

nc
e:

 M
in

ut
es

 o
f D

ec
 8

, 2
01

5 
6:

00
 P

M
  (

M
in

ut
es

 A
pp

ro
va

l)



YUCCA VALLEY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES  December 8, 2015 

5 | P a g e  

Commissioner Whitten said that a year ago the Planning Commission approved the 
applicant’s relocation and nursery plan with the grading plan.  Commissioner Whitten 
said that you can’t undo what has already been done.  He said the question was 
whether or not the Commission would allow the applicant to proceed with their revised 
plan.  Commissioner Whitten said that he thought they should accept the plan and allow 
the developer to move on. He said that attempting to account for every discrepancy 
between the counts would be a waste of the Commission’s time and the applicant’s 
time.  
 
Commissioner Drozd commented on the native plant ordinance.  He said that after the 
ordinance was reviewed by the Planning Commission, it was reviewed by the Town 
Council who modified it to be even more restrictive.  He said that everyone is concerned 
with maintaining the character of the Town, but he felt that the native plant ordinance 
should only address Joshua trees. 
 
MOTION 
Commissioner Whitten moved that that the Planning Commission accepts the revised 
Native Plant inventory information and requires the submittal of a revised landscaping 
plan consistent with Section 9.07.130, Native Landscape Documentation Package, of the 
Yucca Valley Development Code.  Commissioner Drozd seconded, and the motioned 
passed three to one, with Commissioner McHenry as the dissenting vote.  

 
RESULT: APPROVED [3 TO 1] 
MOVER: Steven Whitten, Vice Chairman 
SECONDER: Jeff Drozd, Commissioner 
AYES: Jeff Drozd, Jeff Evans, Steven Whitten 
NAYS: Charles McHenry 
EXCUSED: Vicki Bridenstine 

 
3. Commercial Establishment Outdoor Merchandise Display Commercial Establishment 

Parking Lot Sales  

Recommendation: 
That the Planning Commission reviews and discusses the sample draft ordinances, and 
forwards a recommendation to the Town Council for direction on the potential 
Development Code amendments. 
 
STAFF REPORT 
 
Deputy Town Manager Stueckle provided the staff report.  Staff recommended that, due 
to Chair Bridenstine’s absence, the Commission discuss the item and wait to take action 
until the full Commission was present.  The item was a request that the Planning 
Commission discuss the issue of outdoor display of merchandise and parking lot sales 
events.  Deputy Town Manager Stueckle said that this is an important issue to the 
Community and that the businesses along Hwy 62 is important to the perception of the 

1

Packet Pg. 9

M
in

ut
es

 A
cc

ep
ta

nc
e:

 M
in

ut
es

 o
f D

ec
 8

, 2
01

5 
6:

00
 P

M
  (

M
in

ut
es

 A
pp

ro
va

l)



YUCCA VALLEY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES  December 8, 2015 

6 | P a g e  

community.  Staff said that, except for projects where outdoor display is approved 
through a Conditional Use Permit, regular outdoor display of merchandise is generally 
prohibited by the Development Code. Staff said that they had included two sample 
ordinance, one addressing outdoor displays and one addressing parking lot sales, for the 
Commission to review.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT ITEM 3 
 

 Shirley Paxton, Yucca Valley, spoke in support of allowing outdoor display and parking 
lot sales.  She spoke on behalf of Estate Sales Marketplace. 
 

 Valita Gephart, Morongo Valley, spoke in support of allowing outdoor displays. She 
spoke on behalf of Estate Sales Marketplace. 
 

 Christine Vattuone, spoke in support of allowing outdoor display and parking lot sales.  
She said that outdoor displays and parking lot sales are necessary for her business. She 
submitted a document to the Commission.  She spoke on behalf of Estate Sales 
Marketplace. 
 

 Mike Heron, spoke in support of allowing outdoor display and parking lot sales.  He said 
that parking lot sales events should be limited to once or twice a month for a few days.  
He spoke on behalf of Estate Sales Marketplace.   
 

 Amber Huff, Yucca Valley, spoke in support of allowing parking lot sales.  She spoke on 
behalf of Estate Sales Marketplace. 
 

 William Paxton, Yucca Valley, spoke in support of allowing outdoor displays.   
 

 Lynn Lund, Yucca Valley, spoke in support of allowing outdoor display and parking lot 
sales. She spoke on behalf of Christina Estate Sales. 
 
 
CLOSE PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Commissioner McHenry said that he like the sample ordinances that staff presented.  He 
spoke in support of dividing the two issues into two ordinances.  He also said that he 
thought parking lot sales should be limited and that once a quarter was enough.  He also 
said that he likes the idea that all outdoor displays are removed by end of business, and 
that 250 sq ft was a reasonable size limit. 
 
Commissioner Drozd said that he liked the way staff wrote the sample ordinance.  He 
said that the bigger question was whether or not to allow them at all.  He said that four 
annually was a reasonable limit for parking lot sales events.  He thinks that limiting it is a 
good compromise. 
 

1

Packet Pg. 10

M
in

ut
es

 A
cc

ep
ta

nc
e:

 M
in

ut
es

 o
f D

ec
 8

, 2
01

5 
6:

00
 P

M
  (

M
in

ut
es

 A
pp

ro
va

l)



YUCCA VALLEY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES  December 8, 2015 

7 | P a g e  

Commissioner Evans believes that outdoor display and parking lot sales are profitable 
and important to small businesses. He said that he supported what staff presented in 
the sample ordinances, but he has concerns about obstruction of traffic and use of 
parking lot spaces as display area.  He said that traffic flow issues can be created by 
these type of events and some kind of guidance is necessary.  
 
Commissioner Whitten said that having a commercial corridor that was lively was more 
attractive than some of the local signage.  He spoke in support of outdoor displays.  He 
said he would like to see outdoor display addressed as part of the sign ordinance.  He 
also said that he thought that parking lot sales were already addressed in the code 
under temporary special events, and that staff had the latitude necessary to address 
those issues.  He said that he doesn’t think that it needs an ordinance, and that if 
parking lot sales were added to the code fundraisers and political events would need to 
be added as well.  He said that one event a month was fair.  
 
Commissioner Drozd said that he wondered if it would be viable to consider different 
standards for Old Town.  He said that parking lot sales and outdoor display are viewed 
differently in the Old Town area. 
 
Commissioner Whitten said that he didn’t like having different standards for different 
areas.   He said that he supported having parking lot sales be treated as temporary 
special events under the current ordinance. 
 
Commissioner Evans asked Commissioner Whitten if his position was that staff already 
had the latitude in the code they needed and that no recommendation needed to be 
sent to the Town Council.  
 
Deputy Town Manager Stueckle said that it is difficult for staff when the code is unclear 
and doesn’t provide precise standards.  He said that it was staff’s opinion that parking 
lot sales events do not fit sufficiently within the current temporary special event 
regulations.  He said that the Commission should keep in mind that if the Commission 
allowed outdoor sales, they wouldn’t be able to regulate what was being sold.  
 
Commissioner Whitten said that he thought it should be brought before Town Council 
so they could provide direction on whether or not Planning Commission should be 
working on this issue at all.  He said that there were outstanding issues in the 
Development Code that needed to be addressed, such as the sign regulations.  Staff said 
that direction from Town Council was required before a public hearing on a 
development code amendment could be held, and that was why the item was 
structured to go to the Town Council for guidance.  
 
MOTION 
Commissioner Evans moved that the item be tabled until future meeting where all five 
Commissioners were present.  Commissioner McHenry seconded and the motion passed 
unanimously. 
 

1

Packet Pg. 11

M
in

ut
es

 A
cc

ep
ta

nc
e:

 M
in

ut
es

 o
f D

ec
 8

, 2
01

5 
6:

00
 P

M
  (

M
in

ut
es

 A
pp

ro
va

l)



YUCCA VALLEY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES  December 8, 2015 

8 | P a g e  

 
RESULT: TABLED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Jeff Evans, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Charles McHenry, Commissioner 
AYES: Jeff Drozd, Jeff Evans, Charles McHenry, Steven Whitten 
EXCUSED: Vicki Bridenstine 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

Deputy Town Manager Stueckle announced that there would not be a Planning 
Commission meeting on December 22, 2015, and that public hearings for CUP-04-15 
Steak and Shake and CUP-03-15 Cortel would be held in on the first meeting of January.  

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

STAFF REPORTS AND COMMENTS 

Staff provided an overview of the status of current private land development within the 
Town of Yucca Valley.  

COMMISSIONER REPORTS AND COMMENTS 

Commissioner Drozd thanked everyone for their work, and said it was nice seeing 
everyone attend.  He wished everyone a happy holiday. 
 
Commissioner Jeff Evans said that the Planning Commission is confronted with a lot of 
difficult issues, and that health discussion was necessary.  He wished everyone a happy 
and safe Christmas and New Year, thanked staff for their work, and commented on the 
possibility of including multiple recommendations for future items. He also spoke about 
the danger of illegal left turning motion in front of the AMPM gas station.  Staff said that 
Caltrans had denied the Town’s request for markers.   
 
Commissioner Charles McHenry thanked staff for the Christmas party, and wished 
everyone a wonderful Christmas.  Commissioner McHenry also commented on the 
timing of the light at Yucca Trail and Palomar.  Staff said will be looking at the timing for 
that signal, among other issues, as part of the Yucca Trail study. 
 
Commissioner Steven Whitten encouraged everyone to stay safe for the holiday, and 
thanked staff for their work.  He spoke about the issue of motorists driving the medians 
in front of Star Market. 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

The next meeting of the Planning Commission will be held on January 12, 2016. 

1

Packet Pg. 12

M
in

ut
es

 A
cc

ep
ta

nc
e:

 M
in

ut
es

 o
f D

ec
 8

, 2
01

5 
6:

00
 P

M
  (

M
in

ut
es

 A
pp

ro
va

l)



YUCCA VALLEY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES  December 8, 2015 

9 | P a g e  

ADJOURNMENT 

 The meeting was closed at 7:50 AM 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

Allison Brucker 

Commission Secretary 

1

Packet Pg. 13

M
in

ut
es

 A
cc

ep
ta

nc
e:

 M
in

ut
es

 o
f D

ec
 8

, 2
01

5 
6:

00
 P

M
  (

M
in

ut
es

 A
pp

ro
va

l)



Town of Yucca Valley 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 
To: Honorable Chair and Planning Commissioners 
From: Diane Olsen, Planning Technician  

Shane Stueckle, Deputy Town Manager 
Date: December 16, 2015 
Meeting Date: January 12, 2016 
  
Subject: Environmental Assessment, EA 10-15; Conditional Use Permit, CUP 04-15 

Steak N Shake 
 
Recommendation: 
Environmental Assessment, EA 10-15:. 
The review and approval of the Home Depot Retail Center Specific Plan included a program 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR).   The EIR evaluated future projects within the boundaries of 
the Home Depot Retail Center Specific Plan.   The proposed project was evaluated to determine 
if additional CEQA documentation needed to be prepared.   The proposed project will not have 
any effects not considered within the scope of the program EIR.   The project is consistent with 
program EIR and will not create any additional impacts not previously considered.   No 
additional environmental review is required. 
 
Conditional Use Permit, CUP 04-15: That the Planning Commission approves Conditional Use 
Permit, CUP 04-15 based upon the information contained within the staff report, the required 
findings and the recommended conditions of approval.  
 
Prior Commission Review:   
There has been no prior Commission review of this matter. 
 
Executive Summary:   
The Planning Commission is the review authority for Conditional Use Permits.  This application 
was submitted on September 14, 2015 and was deemed complete on December 03, 2015.  This 
project is a proposal for the construction of a 3,200 square foot restaurant with drive-thru, to 
include required parking and landscaping. 
 
Order of Procedure:  

Request Staff Report  
Request Public Comment  
Commission Discussion/Questions of Staff  
Motion/Second 
Discussion on Motion 
Call the Question (Roll Call Vote) 

1

Packet Pg. 14



 
Discussion:    
This proposal is for the construction of a 3,200 square foot restaurant with drive thru, to 
include required parking and landscaping.  The project is located on 29 Palms Hwy, east of 
Avalon Avenue, on the Home Depot outparcels and is also identified as APN: 601-201-48. 
 
Case:  ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT, EA 10-15 
 CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, CUP 04-15  

THE REVIEW AND APROVAL OF THE HOME DEPOT RETAIL CENTER SPECIFIC PLAN 
INCLUDED A PROGRAM ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT (EIR).  THE EIR 
EVALUATED FUTURE PROJECTS WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF THE HOME DEPOT 
RETAIL CENTER SPECIFIC PLAN.  THE PROPOSED PROJECT WAS EVALUATED TO 
DETERMINE IF ADDITIONAL CEQA DOCUMENTATION NEEDED TO BE PREPARED.  
THE PROPOSED PROJECT WILL NOT HAVE ANY EFFECTS NOT CONSIDERED 
WITHIN THE SCOPE OF THE PROGRAM EIR.  THE PROJECT IS CONSISTENT WITH 
THE PROGRAM EIR AND WILL NOT CREATE ANY ADDITIONAL IMPACTS NOT 
PREVIOUSLY CONSIDERED.  NO ADDITIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW IS 
REQUIRED. 

 
Request:    REQUEST FOR APPROVAL FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A 3,200 SQUARE FOOT 

RESTAURANT WITH A DRIVE THRU, TO INCLUDE REQUIRED PARKING AND 
LANDSCAPING.  

 
  Applicant:  YUCCA VALLEY SNS, LLC 
  683 CLIFFSIDE DRIVE 
  SAN DIMAS, CA 91773 
 
Property Owner: 
  YUCCA RETAIL 5, LLC 
  28 MONARCH BAY PLAZA, SUITE Q 
  DANA POINT, CA 92629 
 
Representative:  

HALA IBRAHIM   
STANTEC ARCHITECTURE 

  1340 TREAT BLVD. STE 300 
  WALNUT CREEK, CA 94597 
 
Location: THE PROJECT IS LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF 29 PALMS HWY, EAST OF 

AVALON AVE, ON THE HOME DEPOT OUTPARCELS AND IS ALSO IDENTIFIED AS 
APN: 601-201-48. 

 
Existing General Plan Land Use Designation:   

1

Packet Pg. 15



THE SITE IS DESIGNATED COMMERCIAL (C) 
  HOME DEPOT RETAIL CENTER SPECIFIC PLAN, S-01-05 
 
Existing Zoning Designation:   

THE SITE IS DESIGNATED GENERAL COMMERCIAL (C-G) 
  HOME DEPOT RETAIL CENTER SPECIFIC PLAN, S-01-05 
 
Surrounding General Plan Land Use Designations:  

NORTH: COMMERCIAL (C) AND MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL 5.1-8.0 
UNITS PER ACRE 

SOUTH: COMMERCIAL (C), HOME DEPOT RETAIL SPECIFIC PLAN, S-01-05  
WEST:  COMMERCIAL (C), YUCCA VALLEY RETAIL SPECIFIC PLAN, S-01-04  
EAST:  COMMERCIAL (C)  

 
Surrounding Zoning Designations:  

NORTH:  GENERAL COMMERCIAL (C-G) AND RESIDENTIAL MULTI FAMILY, 8 
UNITS PER ACRE 

SOUTH:  GENERAL COMMERCIAL (C-G), HOME DEPOT RETAIL SPECIFIC 
PLAN 

WEST:      GENERAL COMMERCIAL (C-G), YUCCA VALLEY RETAIL SPECIFIC 
PLAN, S-01-04 

EAST:      GENERAL COMMERCIAL (C-G) 
 
Surrounding Land Use: 

NORTH: RESIDENTIAL DWELLINGS AND VACANT LAND 
SOUTH:  HOME DEPOT 
WEST:    SUPER WAL-MART 
EAST:     MARSHALLS/PETCO  
   

 
Public Notification: 

PURSUANT TO SECTION 9.85.020, LEGAL NOTICE IS REQUIRED TO BE GIVEN TO 
ALL PROPERTY OWNERS WITHIN A THREE (300) HUNDRED FOOT RADIUS OF THE 
EXTERIOR BOUNDARIES OF THE SUBJECT SITE.   THIS PROJECT WAS PUBLISHED 
AND MAILED ON THURSDAY, DECEMBER 17, 2015.  NO WRITTEN COMMENTS 
HAVE BEEN RECEIVED AS OF THE WRITING OF THIS STAFF REPORT. 

  
  
PROJECT PLANNER: DIANE OLSEN 
 
REVIEWED BY:  SHANE STUECKLE 
 
Appeal Information: 

1

Packet Pg. 16



 
Actions by the Planning Commission, including any finding that a negative declaration be 
adopted, may be appealed to the Town Council within 10 calendar days.  Appeal filing and 
processing information may be obtained from the Planning Division of the Community 
Development Department.  Pursuant to Section 9.63.090 of the Development Code, minor 
modifications may be approved by the Planning Division if it is determined that the changes 
would not affect the findings prescribed in Section 9.63.080 of the Development Code, 
Required Findings, and that the subject of the proposed changes were not items of public 
controversy during the review and approval of the original permit, including modifications to 
phasing schedules for the project. 

1

Packet Pg. 17



I.  GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  
This project is a proposal for the construction of a 3,200 square foot restaurant with drive-thru, 
to include required parking and landscaping. 
 
 
LOCATION:   
PROJECT SYNOPSIS 
 

SITE COVERAGE 

PROJECT AREA    0.904 acres, 39,378 square feet  

BUILDING AREA 3,200 square feet  

PHASED CONSTRUCTION No 

FLOOD ZONE Map 8120 Zone X, areas determined to be 
outside the 0.2% annual chance floodplain. 

ALQUIST PRIOLO ZONE No 

OFF-SITE IMPROVEMENTS REQ. No, the improvements were completed with 
the construction of the Home Depot. 

ASSESSMENT DISTRICTS REQ. Yes 
RIGHT-OF-WAY DEDICATION REQ. No 
UTILITY UNDERGROUNDING All new service lines shall be underground in 

conformance with Ordinance 233, or as 
amended by the Town Council. 

AIRPORT INFLUENCE AREA Located outside the Airport Influence area. 

TRAILS & BIKE LANE MASTER PLAN No facilities on or adjacent to the project 

PUBLIC FACILITY MASTER PLAN No facilities on or adjacent to the project 

PARKS AND RECREATION MASTER PLAN No facilities on or adjacent to the project 

MASTER PLAN OF DRAINAGE No facilities on or adjacent to the project 

STREET LIGHTS No 

SPECIFIC PLAN/PLANNED DEVELOPMENT Yes, Home Depot Retail Center Specific Plan, 
S-01-05 

GATEWAY REIMBURSEMENT DISTRICT No 

AVALON SIGNAL REIMBURSEMENT DISTRICT No 

1

Packet Pg. 18



FUTURE PLANNING COMMISSION  
ACTION REQUIRED 

No 

FUTURE TOWN COUNCIL 
ACTION REQUIRED 

Only if the Planning Commission action is 
appealed 

 
 
 
II. PROJECT ANALYSIS 
 
GENERAL PLAN CONSIDERATION:   
The project is designated Commercial (C), Home Depot Retail Center Specific Plan, and is 
located in the East Side Special Policy Area of the General Plan.   This designation is intended to 
support and encourage the development of retail, service and professional service economic 
sector activities within the community, including smaller commercial centers, specialty retail 
shops and personal service businesses. This designation anticipates and encourages a wide 
range of retail sales, business uses and personal services oriented to the automobile customer. 
The proposed project is consistent with the designations in which it occurs.   
The General Plan supports this project through the following goals and policies: 
 
COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL POLICIES 
 
POLICY LU 1-15 
Maintain Yucca Valley’s position as the economic hub of the Morongo Basin. Support a broad 
range of commercial retail, service, office, business park, research and development, light 
industrial and industrial uses to provide employment opportunities and contribute to the 
Town’s economic sustainability. 
 
POLICY LU 1-20  
Focus commercial development along SR-62 to take advantage of infrastructure improvements. 
 
 
DEVELOPMENT CODE CONSIDERATION:    
The proposed project is located in the General Commercial (C-G) zoning district and the Home 
Depot Retail Center Specific Plan area. 
 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:  
The review and approval of the Home Depot Retail Center Specific Plan included a program 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR).   The EIR evaluated future projects within the boundaries of 
the Home Depot Retail Center Specific Plan.   The proposed project was evaluated to determine 
if additional CEQA documentation needed to be prepared.   The proposed project will not have 
any effects not considered within the scope of the program EIR.   The project is consistent with 

1

Packet Pg. 19



program EIR and will not create any additional impacts not previously considered.   No 
additional environmental review is required. 
 
 
ADJACENT LAND USES:   
The site is bounded by 29 Palms Hwy on the north.   Across SR 62 to the north is a residential 
neighborhood and limited commercial properties.  To the west of the site are Super Wal-Mart, 
Panda Express and Taco Bell and to the east are Marshalls and Petco.  Home Depot is located to 
the south of the property. Surrounding General Plan and designations are all Commercial, 
except to the north of the project site, which is designated as Medium Density Residential 5.1 – 
8.0 dwelling units per acre (MDR).   Surrounding zoning designations are all General Commercial 
(C-G), except to the north of the project which is also designated as Residential Multi-Family, 8 
units per acre (RM-8). 
Commercial development was anticipated and planned for on this project site with adoption of 
the General Plan, and the development meets and satisfies the goals, policies and 
implementation strategies of the General Plan.  General retail and service oriented commercial 
uses are anticipated in these areas, and the proposed use identified in CUP 04-15 is consistent 
with the desired development pattern within the Town. 
 
  
SITE CHARACTERISTICS:  
The site was rough graded with the construction of the Home Depot project. 
 
Setback Area:   Required  Proposed 
 
SR 62,:    15’   50’ 
West Side:   10’   60’ 
East Side:   10’   125’ 
South:    10’   35’ 
 
The Development Code provides for maximum 60% of the lot to be covered with building area.  
As proposed, the site is developed at approximately 8% lot coverage.   
 
 
BUILDING ELEVATIONS:   
The proposed structure is wood framed with stucco, one story structure.  The building has 
minor articulation achieved through pop-outs on the north, south and east elevations and the 
use of metal awnings on the east elevation.  The building will be dark gray and off white, with 
red accents.  The building is 19 feet at the highest point, with the fin wall extending to 24 feet.  
Maximum structure height within the Home Depot Retail Specific Plan is 40 feet. 
 
CIRCULATION & PARKING:  

1

Packet Pg. 20



On site circulation as proposed includes three points of ingress/egress, sufficient controls over 
left hand turn movements into/out of the facility, and on-site circulation meeting Town and Fire 
Department standards.  Internal circulation provides access to required parking areas.  The 
project contains the necessary on-site improvements as well as overall parking design and 
layout.  The project is conditioned to record reciprocal access and parking agreements as 
necessary to ensure long term shared parking when the adjacent parcels have been developed. 
Parking is established at 1 space per 50 square feet of seating area for restaurants.  The 
applicant has proposed to install a total of five parking spaces.  Based upon a seating area of 
approximately 633 square feet, to include indoor and outdoor seating, the project has been 
conditioned to install a total of 13 parking spaces, one which is to be ADA van accessible.   
ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS: 
The proposed project is bounded by Twentynine Palms Hwy on the north.  No off-site 
improvements are required, as the improvements were constructed as part of the Home Depot 
project. 
 
ASSESSMENTS DISTRICTS: 
The approval of the project includes the requirements to form maintenance assessment 
districts for the purpose of maintaining such public improvements as pavement, drainage 
facilities, curb, gutter and sidewalk, landscaping, lighting and other public improvements. 
 
FLOOD CONTROL/DRAINAGE: 
On site retention all of the Home Depot parcels was constructed with the Home Depot project. 
 
UTILITIES: 
Utilities are roughed in on the project site and were installed with the construction of the Home 
Depot building. 
Each utility provider charges connection and service fees which are designed to include the 
need for additional facilities as growth occurs. The project applicant will be required to go 
through each utility company permitting processes, including SCE for street lighting. 
Electrical services are provided by Southern California Edison.  Natural gas services are provided 
to by The Gas Company.  The Hi-Desert Water District (HDWD, District) serves the Town of 
Yucca Valley. Solid waste services are provided by Burrtec Inc.  The Town of Yucca Valley 
requires mandatory solid waste services and the project will be served by Burrtec. 
 
LANDSCAPING: 
A conceptual landscape plan was submitted with the application.  The applicant has proposed 
the installation of five 15 gallon trees along with additional shrubs and ground cover. 
 
CONCLUSION: 
Based upon the facts on record, the project is consistent with the General Plan, the 
Development Code, the Home Depot Retail Specific Plan and the Town’s master plans.  
Commercial based development was anticipated and planned for on this project site with the 
adoption of the General Plan, and the development meets and satisfies the goals, policies and 

1

Packet Pg. 21



implementation strategies of the General Plan.  The project, as designed, meets all 
requirements of the Development Code and the Home Depot Retail Center Specific Plan and 
nor variances or deviations from adopted standards are required for approval. 

1

Packet Pg. 22



FINDINGS:  
 
Conditional Use Permit Findings:   
 

(a) The location, size, design, density and intensity of the proposed development is 
consistent with the General Plan, the purpose of the land use district in which the site 
is located, and the development policies and standards of the Town; 

 
The site is bounded by 29 Palms Hwy on the north and commercial projects on the south, 
west and east sides.   Across SR 62 to the north is a single family residential 
neighborhood and limited commercial properties. Surrounding General Plan 
designations are all Commercial, except to the north of the project site, which is 
designated as Medium Density Residential 5.1 – 8.0 dwelling units per acre (MDR).  
Surrounding zoning designations are General Commercial, except to the north of the 
project which is zoned Residential Multi-Family, 8 dwelling units per acre (RM-8).  
Commercial based development was anticipated and planned for on this project site with 
adoption of the General Plan, and the development meets and satisfies the goals, 
policies and implementation strategies of the General Plan.  General retail and service 
oriented commercial uses are anticipated in these areas, and the proposed use identified 
in CUP 04-15 are consistent with the desired development pattern within the Town.  The 
project is developed below the maximum lot coverage of 60%, and all set-backs for the 
General Commercial District are met and exceeded, as outlined in this Staff Report.     

 

The Conditional Use Permit does not change the “meaning, intent, and is not contrary to 
any provision of the Specific Plan” and is processed consistent with Section 6.3 of the 
Specific Plan.  This finding is made on the basis  of (1) the proposal as submitted consists 
of approximately 8%  lot coverage, which is less than the 60% maximum lot coverage 
allowed in Section 9.09.030 , which is the development standard adopted by Council for 
this Specific Plan in Section 3.3, (2) the amendment to the project summary and table on 
page nine (9) of the Specific Plan, does not conflict with any express or apparent implied 
intent in the Specific Plan to place a cap on the development on the Subject Site 
inconsistent with the development standards adopted in Section 3.3 (as adopted, the 
only development standard amended by Council in the Specific Plan in its incorporation 
of the standards from Section 9.09.030 relating to parcel size); and (3) that the overall 
percentage change in the square footage on the subject property is approximately a 4% 
change, which is relatively insubstantial based upon the nature and scope of the 
approved large scale commercial development.”  
 
The Conditional Use Permit is consistent with the purpose of the Specific Plan to 
“establish a vibrant, high-quality commercial retail center that complements 
surrounding uses and reinforces the character of the community.”   
 

1

Packet Pg. 23



The Conditional Use Permit is consistent with the Specific Plan and the General Plan 
because it complies with the development standards in Section 9.09.030 as adopted in 
Section 3.3 of the Specific Plan and because after review of the Specific Plan and Council 
approval of the project, the Council did not intend to limit the square footage of the 
project as described in the Specific Plan, so long as the project was consistent with 
Section 9.09.030. 

 
(b) The location, size, design and architectural design features of the proposed structures 

and improvements are compatible with the site’s natural landform, surrounding sites, 
structures and streetscapes; 

 
The site is bounded by 29 Palms Hwy on the north, commercial projects on the south and 
west sides and Marshall/Petco to the east.   Across SR 62 to the north is a residential 
neighborhood and limited commercial properties.  Surrounding General Plan 
designations are all Commercial, except to the north of the project site, which is 
designated as Medium Density Residential 5.1 – 8.0 dwelling units per acre (MDR).  
Surrounding Zoning designations are General Commercial, except to the north of the 
project which is zoned Residential Multi-Family, 8 dwelling units per acre (RM-8).  
Commercial based development was anticipated and planned for on this project site with 
adoption of the General Plan, and the development meets and satisfies the goals, 
policies and implementation strategies of the General Plan.  General retail and service 
oriented commercial uses are anticipated in these areas, and the proposed use identified 
in CUP 04-15 is consistent with the desired development pattern within the Town.  The 
project is developed below the maximum lot coverage of 60%, and all set-backs for the 
General Commercial District are met and exceeded, as outlined in this Staff Report.     

 
(c) The proposed development produces compatible transitions in the scale, bulk, 

coverage, density and character of the development between adjacent land uses; 
 

The site is bounded by 29 Palms Hwy on the north, commercial projects on the south and 
west sides and Marshalls/Petco to the east.   Across SR 62 to the north is a single family 
residential neighborhood and limited commercial properties.  Surrounding General Plan 
designations are all Commercial, except to the north of the project site, which is 
designated as Medium Density Residential 5.1 – 8.0 dwelling units per acre (MDR).  
Surrounding Zoning designations are General Commercial, except to the north of the 
project which is zoned Residential Multi-Family, 8 dwelling units per acre (RM-8).  
Commercial based development was anticipated and planned for on this project site with 
adoption of the General Plan, and the development meets and satisfies the goals, 
policies and implementation strategies of the General Plan.  General retail and service 
oriented commercial uses are anticipated in these areas, and the proposed use identified 
in CUP 01-15 is consistent with the desired development pattern within the Town.  The 
project is developed below the maximum lot coverage of 60%, and all set-backs for the 
General Commercial District are met and exceeded, as outlined in this Staff Report.     

 

1

Packet Pg. 24



The project is developed below the maximum lot coverage of 60%, and all set-backs for 
the General Commercial District are met and exceeded, as outlined in this Staff Report.  
The site is adjacent to 29 Palms Hwy on the north and is surrounded by existing 
commercial development on the south, west and east, with residential development 
across 29 Palms Hwy to the north.  

 
 

(d) The building site and architectural design is accomplished in an energy efficient 
manner; 

 
The site is being developed consistent with adopted set back and building height 
standards, allowing opportunities to maximize energy efficiency and conservation 
measures in construction and building operations. 

 
(e) The materials, textures and details of the proposed construction, to the extent 

feasible, are compatible and consistent with the adjacent and neighboring structures; 
 

As outlined in the staff report and in these findings, the construction materials, colors, 
textures, height and bulk are consistent with the Development Code standards and 
requirements and are consistent with surrounding development patterns. 

 
(f) The development proposal does not unnecessarily block views from other buildings or 

from public ways, or visually dominate its surroundings with respect to mass and scale 
to an extent unnecessary and inappropriate to the use; 

 
The structures has a maximum building height at the tallest point of 19 feet, with the fin 
wall extending to 24  feet..   This building height is consistent with the commercial 
development pattern along SR 62 and as such, does not unnecessarily block views from 
public ways and is similar in mass and scale to the local built environment. 

 
(g) That the amount, location, and design of open space and landscaping conforms to the 

requirements of the Development Code, enhances the visual appeal and is compatible 
with the design and functions of the structure(s), site and surrounding area; 

 
The conceptual landscape plan submitted indicates that five (5), fifteen gallon trees are 
being incorporated in to the landscaping in addition to shrubs and ground cover.    
Overall, the project landscaping plan exceeds the quality of common commercial 
landscaping designs and concepts presented. 

 
(h) The quality in architectural design is maintained in order to enhance the visual desert 

environment of the Town and to protect the economic value of existing structures; 
 

The proposed structure is wood framed with stucco, with pop-outs, articulation, and 
colors consistent with the Specific Plan area as well as the SR 62 Commercial Corridor. 

1

Packet Pg. 25



 
(i) There are existing public facilities, services, and utilities available at the appropriate 

levels and/or that new or expanded facilities, services and utilities shall be required to 
be installed at the appropriate time to serve the project as they are needed; 

 
Utilities are roughed in on the project site and were installed with the construction of the 
Home Depot building. 

 
Each utility provider charges connection and service fees which are designed to include 
the need for additional facilities as growth occurs. The project applicant will be required 
to pay these fees as applicable. 

 
Electrical services are provided by Southern California Edison.  Natural gas services are 
provided to by The Gas Company.  The Hi-Desert Water District (HDWD, District) serves 
the Town of Yucca Valley. Solid waste services are provided by Burrtec Inc.  The Town of 
Yucca Valley requires mandatory solid waste services and the project will be served by 
Burrtec.   

 
(j) That access to the site and circulation on and off-site is required to be safe and 

convenient for pedestrians, bicyclists, equestrians and motorists; 
 

On site circulation as proposed includes three points of ingress/egress, sufficient controls 
over left hand turn movements into/out of the facility, and on-site circulation meeting 
Town and Fire Department standards.  Internal circulation provides access to required 
parking areas.  The project contains the necessary on-site improvements as well as 
overall parking design and layout.  The project is conditioned to record reciprocal access 
and parking agreements as necessary to ensure long term shared parking when the 
adjacent parcels have been developed. 
Parking is established at 1 space per 50 square feet of seating area for restaurants.  
Based upon a seating area of approximately 633 square feet, a total of 13 parking 
spaces are required, one which is to be ADA van accessible.    

 
(k) That traffic generated from the proposed project has been sufficiently addressed and 

mitigated and will not adversely impact the capacity and physical character of 
surrounding streets; 

 
The review and approval of the Home Depot Retail Center Specific Plan included a 
program Environmental Impact Report (EIR).   The EIR evaluated future projects within 
the boundaries of the Home Depot Retail Center Specific Plan.   The proposed project 
was evaluated to determine if additional CEQA documentation needed to be prepared.   
The proposed project will not have any effects not considered within the scope of the 
program EIR.   The project is consistent with program EIR and will not create any 

1

Packet Pg. 26



additional impacts not previously considered.   No additional environmental review is 
required. 
 
No negative impacts created by the project have been identified, including traffic 
impacts. 
 
Additionally, the project is conditioned to pay Public Facility Development Impact fees in 
accordance with current Town Council policy, including Street and Traffic Impact Fees.  
The project is also conditioned to form maintenance districts that generate the necessary 
revenue to maintain the infrastructure constructed by the project. 

 
(l) That traffic improvements and/or mitigation measures have been applied or required 

in a manner adequate to maintain a Level of Service C or better on arterial roads, 
where applicable, and are consistent with the Circulation Element of the Town 
General Plan; 

 
The review and approval of the Home Depot Retail Center Specific Plan included a 
program Environmental Impact Report (EIR).   The EIR evaluated future projects within 
the boundaries of the Home Depot Retail Center Specific Plan.   The proposed project 
was evaluated to determine if additional CEQA documentation needed to be prepared.   
The proposed project will not have any effects not considered within the scope of the 
program EIR.   The project is consistent with program EIR and will not create any 
additional impacts not previously considered.   No additional environmental review is 
required. 
 
No negative impacts created by the project have been identified, including traffic 
impacts. 
 
Additionally, the project is conditioned to pay Public Facility Development Impact fees in 
accordance with current Town Council policy, including Street and Traffic Impact Fees.  
The project is also conditioned to form maintenance districts that generate the necessary 
revenue to maintain the infrastructure constructed by the project. 

 
(m) There will not be significant harmful effects upon environmental quality and natural 

resources including endangered, threatened, rare species, their habitat, including but 
not limited to plants, fish, insects, animals, birds or reptiles; 

 
The review and approval of the Home Depot Retail Center Specific Plan included a 
program Environmental Impact Report (EIR).   The EIR evaluated future projects within 
the boundaries of the Home Depot Retail Center Specific Plan.   The proposed project 
was evaluated to determine if additional CEQA documentation needed to be prepared.   
The proposed project will not have any effects not considered within the scope of the 
program EIR.   The project is consistent with program EIR and will not create any 

1

Packet Pg. 27



additional impacts not previously considered.   No additional environmental review is 
required. 
 
No negative impacts created by the project have been identified, including biological 
resources. 

 
(n) There are no other relevant or anticipated negative impacts of the proposed use that 

cannot be mitigated and reduced to a level of non-significance in conformance with 
CEQA, the California Environmental Quality Act; 

 
The review and approval of the Home Depot Retail Center Specific Plan included a 
program Environmental Impact Report (EIR).   The EIR evaluated future projects within 
the boundaries of the Home Depot Retail Center Specific Plan.   The proposed project 
was evaluated to determine if additional CEQA documentation needed to be prepared.   
The proposed project will not have any effects not considered within the scope of the 
program EIR.   The project is consistent with program EIR and will not create any 
additional impacts not previously considered.   No additional environmental review is 
required. 

 
There is no substantial change to the project nor is there “new information of substantial 
importance” pursuant to CEQA guidelines section 15162, necessitating the requirement 
for a supplemental or subsequent EIR or the preparation of an addendum pursuant to 
Section 15164. 

 
(o) The impacts which could result from the proposed development, and the proposed 

location, size, design and operating characteristics of the proposed development, and 
the conditions under which it would be operated or maintained will not be considered 
to be detrimental to the public health, safety and welfare of the community or be 
materially injurious to properties and/or improvements within the immediate vicinity 
or be contrary to the General Plan; and 

 
The review and approval of the Home Depot Retail Center Specific Plan included a 
program Environmental Impact Report (EIR).   The EIR evaluated future projects within 
the boundaries of the Home Depot Retail Center Specific Plan.   The proposed project 
was evaluated to determine if additional CEQA documentation needed to be prepared.   
The proposed project will not have any effects not considered within the scope of the 
program EIR.   The project is consistent with program EIR and will not create any 
additional impacts not previously considered.   No additional environmental review is 
required. 
No negative impacts created by the project have been identified. 

 
(p) The proposed development will comply with each of the applicable provisions of the 

Development Code, and applicable Town policies, except approved variances. 

1

Packet Pg. 28



 
The project, as designed, complies with the standards and requirements set forth in the 
Yucca Valley Development Code and the adopted General Plan policies, as identified and 
set forth in this Staff Report. 

 
 
 
Alternatives:   
 
 
Fiscal Impact:   
N/A 
 
Attachments:  
01 Draft Conditions of Approval 
02 Standard Exhibts 
03 Site Plan 
04 Landscape Plan 
Elevations 
05 Application Materials 
06 Notice of Hearing 
07 Notice of Exemption 
08 Chapter 9.63 Conditional Use Permit 
09 Parcel Map 19644 
10 Home Depot Assessment 2016-17 
11 Updated Traffic Letter 

1

Packet Pg. 29



CUP 04-15 Steak n Shake 
January 12, 2016 Planning Commission

Applicant Initials  
Page 1 of 12

TOWN OF YUCCA VALLEY
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT, 10-15
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, CUP 04-15

STEAK N SHAKE

This approval is for Conditional Use Permit, CUP 04-15, a request to construct a 3,200 square 
foot restaurant, to include required parking and landscaping.

The project is located on 29 Palms Hwy, east of Avalon Avenue on the Home Depot outparcels 
and is further identified as APN: 601-201-48

GENERAL CONDITIONS

G1. The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Town of Yucca 
Valley, its agents, officers and employees, at his sole expense, against any action, claim 
or proceedings brought against the Town or its agents, officers or employees, to attack, 
set aside, void, or annul this approval or because of the issuance of such approval, or in 
the alternative, to relinquish such approval, in compliance with the Town of Yucca Valley 
Development Code.  The applicant shall reimburse the Town, its agents, officers, or 
employees for any court costs, and attorney's fees which the Town, its agents, officers 
or employees may be required by a court to pay as a result of such action.  The Town 
may, at its sole discretion, participate at its own expense in the defense of any such 
action but such participation shall not relieve applicant of his obligations under this 
condition.  The Town shall promptly notify the applicant of any claim, action or 
proceedings arising from the Town’s approval of this project, and the Town shall 
cooperate in the defense.

G2. This Conditional Use Permit shall become null and void if no construction has 
commenced within three (3) years of the Town of Yucca Valley date of approval.  
Extensions of time may be granted by the Planning Commission and/or Town Council, in 
conformance with the Town of Yucca Valley Development Code.  The applicant is 
responsible for the initiation of an extension request.

Approval Date:  January 12, 2016
Expiration Date: January 12, 2019

G3. The applicant shall ascertain and comply with requirements of all State, County, Town 
and local agencies as are applicable to the project.  These include, but are not limited to, 

1.a

Packet Pg. 30

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

01
 D

ra
ft 

C
on

di
tio

ns
 o

f A
pp

ro
va

l  
(1

24
3 

: S
te

ak
 N

 S
ha

ke
)



CUP 04-15 Steak n Shake 
January 12, 2016 Planning Commission

Applicant Initials  
Page 2 of 12

County of San Bernardino Environmental Health Services, County of San Bernardino 
Transportation/Flood Control, County of San Bernardino Fire Department,  Yucca Valley 
Building and Safety, Caltrans, High Desert Water District, Airport Land Use Commission, 
California Regional Water Quality Control Board, Colorado River Region, the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency, MDAQMD-Mojave Desert Air Quality Management 
District, Community Development, Engineering, and all other Town and utility company 
requirements.

G4. All conditions are continuing conditions.  Failure of the applicant to comply with any or 
all of said conditions at any time may result in the revocation of any construction 
permits for the project.

G5. No on-site or off-site work shall commence without obtaining the appropriate permits 
for the work required by the Town and the appropriate utilities.  The approved permits 
shall be readily available on the job site for inspection by Town personnel.

G6. The applicant shall pay all fees charged by the Town as required for application 
processing, plan checking, construction and/or inspection.  The fee amounts shall be 
those which are applicable and in effect at the time work is undertaken and 
accomplished.  Fees for entitlement prior to construction permits are based on 
estimated costs for similar projects.  Additional fees may be incurred, depending upon 
the specific project.  If additional fees for services are incurred, they must be paid prior 
to any further processing, consideration, or approval(s).

G7. All improvements shall be inspected by the Town as appropriate.  Any work completed 
without proper inspection may be subject to removal and replacement under proper 
inspection.

G8. All refuse shall be removed from the premises in conformance with Yucca Valley Town 
Code 33.083.

G9. During construction, the applicant shall be responsible to sweep public paved roads 
adjacent to the project as necessary and as requested by the Town staff to eliminate any 
site related dirt and debris within the roadways. During business activities, the applicant 
shall keep the public right-of-way adjacent to the property in a clean and sanitary 
condition.

G10. No staging of construction equipment or parking of worker’s vehicles shall be allowed 
within the public right-of-way of streets or other public improvements that have been 
accepted into the Town’s maintained system

G11. All existing street and property monuments within or abutting this project site shall be 
preserved consistent with AB 1414.  If during construction of onsite or offsite 
improvements monuments are damaged or destroyed, the applicant shall retain a 

1.a

Packet Pg. 31

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

01
 D

ra
ft 

C
on

di
tio

ns
 o

f A
pp

ro
va

l  
(1

24
3 

: S
te

ak
 N

 S
ha

ke
)



CUP 04-15 Steak n Shake 
January 12, 2016 Planning Commission

Applicant Initials  
Page 3 of 12

qualified licensed land surveyor or civil engineer to reset those monuments per Town 
Standards and file the necessary information with the County Recorder’s office as 
required by law (AB 1414).

G12. Each phase of a phased project shall function independently of all other phases.  All 
improvements shall be completed for each phase to ensure that each phase functions 
separate from the remainder of the project, and shall include, but not be limited to, 
street improvements, wastewater collection, treatment and disposal, drainage and 
retention/detention facilities, water delivery systems, fire suppressions systems, post 
construction erosion and sediment control systems, all utilities necessary to serve the 
project, and those improvements deemed necessary by the Town.  All phasing plans 
shall be illustrated on rough and precise grading plans, erosion and sediment control 
plans, all plans required for obtaining native plant plan approval, and on any other plan 
as deemed necessary by the Town.

G13    At least one sign per fronting street shall be posted on the site and must contain the 
following information: the grading permit number, the project name, map number (if 
appropriate), the authorized dust controller phone number(s) and the Town phone 
number.  The signs must be obtained and installed by the developer using the sample 
format to be provided.  The signs must be present at the pre-construction meeting or 
the grading permit will not be issued.  The Applicant must keep the contact name and 
phone number active and current at all times.  Failure of the contact system may be 
considered grounds for revocation of the permit.  All signs shall be a minimum of 4’ x 8’ 
in size.

G14. The applicant shall pay Development Impact Fees in place at the time of issuance of 
Building Permits.  

G15. At the time of permit issuance the applicant shall be responsible for the payment of fees 
associated with electronic file storage of documents

G16. The applicant shall reimburse the Town for the Town's costs incurred in monitoring the 
developer's compliance with the Conditions of Approval including, but not limited to, 
inspections and review of developer's operations and activities for compliance with all 
applicable dust and noise operations.  This condition of approval is supplemental and in 
addition to normal building permit and public improvement permits that may be 
required pursuant to the Yucca Valley Municipal Code.  

G17. Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for any habitable structure in each 
phase of the project, all improvements shall be constructed, final inspection performed, 
punch-list items completed, and all installations approved by the appropriate agency. 

G18. After final plan check by the Town, original mylars (4 mil) shall be submitted to the Town 
for signature by the Town Engineer. All original mylars submitted for Town Engineer’s 

1.a

Packet Pg. 32

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

01
 D

ra
ft 

C
on

di
tio

ns
 o

f A
pp

ro
va

l  
(1

24
3 

: S
te

ak
 N

 S
ha

ke
)



CUP 04-15 Steak n Shake 
January 12, 2016 Planning Commission

Applicant Initials  
Page 4 of 12

signature must contain the design engineer’s wet signature and stamp and all other 
required signatures.

G19. Prior to any work being performed within the public right-of-way, the applicant shall 
provide the name, address, telephone, facsimile number, and e-mail address of the 
Contractor to perform the work.  A description of the location, purpose, method of 
construction, and surface and subsurface area of the proposed work shall be supplied.  
A plat showing the proposed location and dimensions of the excavation and the facilities 
to be installed, maintained, or repaired in connection with the excavation, shall be 
provided and such other details as may be required by the Town Engineer.  

G20. The site shall be developed in accordance with the approved plans on file with the Town 
of Yucca Valley, in accordance with the Conditions of Approval approved for the project, 
and in accordance with the General Plan and Development Code.  Prior to any use of the 
project site or business activity being commenced thereon, all Conditions of Approval 
shall be completed to the satisfaction of the Town.

G21.  Prior to issuances of building permits, all site plans, grading plans, landscape and 
irrigation plans, drainage/flood control plans, public improvement plans, composite 
development plans, erosion and sediment control plans, and assessment district plans 
and formations shall be coordinated for consistency with this approval.

G22. The Town Engineer may allow phased constructed of the project provided that the 
improvements necessary to adequately serve or mitigate the impacts of each phase of 
development are completed prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for that 
phase.

G23. The applicant or the applicant’s successor-in-interest shall be responsible for 
maintaining any undeveloped portion of the site in a manner that provides for the 
control of weeds, erosion and dust.

G24. If archaeological, paleontological or historical resources are uncovered during 
excavation or construction activities at the project site, work in the affected area will 
cease immediately and a qualified person with appropriate expertise shall be consulted 
by the applicant regarding mitigation measures to preserve or record the find.  
Recommendations by the consultant shall be implemented as deemed necessary and 
feasible by the Town before work commences in the affected area.  If human remains 
are discovered, work in the affected area shall cease immediately and the County 
Coroner shall be notified.  If it is determined that the remains might be those of a Native 
American, the California Native American Heritage Commission shall be notified and 
appropriate measures provided by State law shall be implemented.

1.a

Packet Pg. 33

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

01
 D

ra
ft 

C
on

di
tio

ns
 o

f A
pp

ro
va

l  
(1

24
3 

: S
te

ak
 N

 S
ha

ke
)



CUP 04-15 Steak n Shake 
January 12, 2016 Planning Commission

Applicant Initials  
Page 5 of 12

G25. All street dedications shall be irrevocably offered to the public and shall continue in 
force until the Town accepts or abandons such offers.  All dedications shall be free of all 
encumbrances as approved by the Town Engineer.

G26. The street design and circulation pattern of this project shall be coordinated with 
adjoining developments.

G27. The final Conditions of Approval issued by the approving authority shall be 
photographically or electronically placed on bond (blue/black line) paper and included in 
the Grading and Street Improvement plan sets on 24” x 36” bond (blue/ black line) 
paper and submitted with the plans for plan check.  These conditions of approval shall 
become part of these plan sets and the approved plans shall be available in the field and 
during construction.  Plan check fees shall not be charged for sheets containing the 
Conditions of Approval.

G28. Prior to recordation of the final map, the applicant shall submit all improvement plans 
and final maps on compact disks in digital format acceptable to the Town Engineer.

G29. Violations of any condition or restriction or prohibition set forth in these conditions, 
including all approved construction plans, public and private, for this project and subject 
to the Town’s overall project approval and these conditions of approval, shall subject 
the owner, applicant, developer or contractor(s) to the remedies as noted in the 
Municipal Code.  In addition, the Town Engineer  or Building Official may suspend all 
construction related activities for violation of any condition, restriction or prohibition 
set forth in these conditions until such time as it has been determined that all 
operations and activities are in conformance with these conditions.

G30. For any import or export of material, the applicant shall provide the route of travel, 
estimated cubic yards of import/export, number of trucks, daily schedule, and length of 
time necessary to complete the import/export of materials to/from the site.  No hauling 
of material shall occur prior to approval by the Town Engineer.

G31. Prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy, the applicant shall submit all
improvement plans, including as-builts, on compact disks in digital format acceptable to 
the Town Engineer.

PLANNING CONDITIONS

P1. The development of the property shall be in conformance with FEMA requirements and 
the Town’s Floodplain Management Ordinance requirements. 

P2. Utility undergrounding shall be in accordance with Ordinance 233, or as amended. 

1.a

Packet Pg. 34

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

01
 D

ra
ft 

C
on

di
tio

ns
 o

f A
pp

ro
va

l  
(1

24
3 

: S
te

ak
 N

 S
ha

ke
)



CUP 04-15 Steak n Shake 
January 12, 2016 Planning Commission

Applicant Initials  
Page 6 of 12

P3. All exterior lighting shall comply with the Ordinance 90, Outdoor Lighting and shall be 
illustrated on all construction plans.

P4. A final plan identifying all protected plants as well as a Native Plant Relocation Plan with 
any area proposed to be disturbed in accordance with the Town’s Native Plant 
Protection Ordinance shall be submitted for approval prior to issuance of any 
construction permits, including grading and utility installations, for the project The 
applicant shall make every effort to relocate the regulated native plants back onsite.   
The adoption of native plants shall be consistent with the Native Plant Ordinance in 
effect at the time of grading permits.  

P5. Prior to the issuance of any permits the Applicant shall provide three (3) copies of a 
landscape and irrigation plan showing the size, type and location of all plant and 
irrigation systems.   Said irrigation system shall incorporate a permanent automatic 
irrigation system, and all landscaping and irrigation systems shall be maintained in good 
condition at all times.  All ground within proposed landscape planter areas shall be 
provided with approved ground cover.  All trees shall be a minimum of 24” boxes.   This 
shall include but not be limited to drought-tolerant plant materials or colored desert 
rock.  The Landscape Plan shall be approved by Hi-Desert Water District.   The Landscape 
and Irrigation review requires a separate application and a current Town fee 

P6. A reciprocal parking and access agreement shall be recorded, or proof of an existing 
reciprocal parking and access agreement shall be provided, against all parcels on the 
project site, ensuring shared parking and access and that development on each parcel 
shall comply with the General Plan and Development Code following final subdivision of 
the land, subject to Town Attorney and Town Engineer review and Director approval.

P7. Parking and on-site circulation requirements shall be provided and maintained as 
identified on the approved site plan.   Areas reserved for access drive and/or fire lanes 
shall be clearly designated.  

a) A minimum of thirteen (13) paved parking spaces shall be provided

b) All paved parking stalls shall be clearly striped and permanently maintained with 
double or hairpin lines with the two lines being located an equal 9 inches on either 
side of the stall sidelines.  All regular parking stalls be a minimum 9’ x 19’.

c) Any occupancy, which requires additional parking that has not been provided for 
through this Conditional Use Permit, shall not be approved until a revision is 
submitted for review and approval showing the additional parking.

d) All marking to include parking spaces, directional designation, no parking 
designation and fire lane designations shall be clearly defined and said marking 

1.a

Packet Pg. 35

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

01
 D

ra
ft 

C
on

di
tio

ns
 o

f A
pp

ro
va

l  
(1

24
3 

: S
te

ak
 N

 S
ha

ke
)



CUP 04-15 Steak n Shake 
January 12, 2016 Planning Commission

Applicant Initials  
Page 7 of 12

shall be maintained in good condition at all times.  The Town Traffic Engineer shall 
approve all signage and markings for the circulation related signage.

P7. The project shall comply with all Conditions of Approval for the Home Depot Retail 
Center Specific Plan, SP 01-05 and Conditional Use Permit, CUP 06-05.

ENGINEERING CONDITIONS

E1. A precise grading plan, prepared by a registered civil engineer, shall be prepared for 
the site.

E2. The site shall be graded such that it drains to the existing storm drain system 
constructed with the Marshalls/Petco project.  A pre-filtration system shall be 
installed for all drain lines connected to the underground storage system to collect 
sediment and hydrocarbon material prior to discharge into the underground system..

E3. Any improvements crossing property lines shall have written approval from the 
adjacent property owner prior to grading plan approval.

E4. Prior to the issuance of a Grading Permit, a Grading Plan prepared by a recognized 
professional Civil Engineer shall be submitted, and the corresponding fees shall be paid 
to the Town prior to any grading activity. The rough and precise Grading Plans shall be 
reviewed and approved by the Town Engineer prior to issuance of grading permits. The 
applicant/owner is responsible for all fees incurred by the Town. Prior to Certificate of 
Occupancy, the Engineer-of-Record shall survey and certify that the site grading was 
completed in substantial conformance with the approved Grading Plans. 

E5. The Engineer-of-Record or other civil engineer shall survey and provide pad certification 
for the site prior to issuance of building permits.

E6. All property corners, lots, easements, street centerlines, and curve radii shall be 
monumented and horizontally tied to identified control points.  A copy of the 
monumentation survey and centerline tie notes shall be provided to the Town Engineer 
prior to certificate of occupancy.  

E7. Any grading or drainage onto private off-site or adjacent property shall require a written 
permission to grade and/or a permission to drain letter from the affected property 
owner.

E8. In conjunction with precise grading certification, all drainage systems, both public and 
private, shall be certified by a civil engineer that they have been constructed in 
substantial conformance with the approved plans, and shall be certified that they have 
the required capacity and will operate in accordance with the approved drainage 
reports for the project.

E9. No on-site or off-site work shall commence without obtaining the appropriate permits 
for the work involved from the Town.  The approved permits shall be readily available 
on the job-site for inspection by the Town personnel.

1.a

Packet Pg. 36

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

01
 D

ra
ft 

C
on

di
tio

ns
 o

f A
pp

ro
va

l  
(1

24
3 

: S
te

ak
 N

 S
ha

ke
)



CUP 04-15 Steak n Shake 
January 12, 2016 Planning Commission

Applicant Initials  
Page 8 of 12

E10. All grading activities shall minimize dust through compliance with MDAQMD Rules 402 
and 403.

E11. Prior to issuance of a grading permit, a Fugitive Dust and Erosion and Sediment Control 
Plan shall be submitted and approved by the Town Engineer.  The Fugitive Dust and 
Erosion and Sediment Control Plan shall illustrate all proposed phasing for construction 
of the project.

E12. Prior to any work being performed in the public right-of-way, fees shall be paid and an 
encroachment permit shall be obtained from the Town.  The Applicant shall apply for an 
encroachment permit from the Town for utility trenching, utility connection, or any 
other encroachment onto public right-of-way. The Applicant shall be responsible for the 
associated costs and arrangements with each public utility.  

E13. The Applicant shall restore any pavement cuts required for installation or extension of 
utilities for his project within the public right-of-way. In all cases where cuts are allowed, 
the Applicant is required to patch the cuts to Town standards and the approval of the 
Town Engineer.  The patching shall include a grinding of the pavement to a width 4 feet 
beyond the edge of the trench on each side, or as determined by the Town Engineer, 
and replacement with a full-depth asphalt concrete recommended by the Soils Engineer.  

E14. The Applicant shall accept and properly dispose of all off-site drainage flowing onto or 
through the site.

E15. The Applicant shall construct the replacement of any identified damaged curb and 
gutter, sidewalk, drive approach, asphalt concrete pavement, meter boxes, and other 
infrastructure that may be required by the Town Engineer or another Agency. 

E16. The Applicant shall install all water and sewer systems required to serve the project.  All 
water and sewer systems shall be completed to the requirements of the Hi Desert 
Water District.

E17. The Applicant shall observe the construction of this project to make certain that no 
damage or potential for damage occurs to adjacent roadway, existing improvements, 
adjacent property and other infrastructure.  The applicant shall be responsible for the 
repair of any damage occurring to offsite infrastructure and/or property damage as 
determined by the Town Engineer.  The applicant shall repair any such damage prior to 
certificate of occupancy. If the damage is such that it is not repairable within a 
reasonable amount of time as determined by the Town Engineer, the applicant may 
petition the Town Engineer for additional conditions that may allow him the time, 
amount of surety and other requirements to repair the damage.

E18. All improvement plans shall be designed by a Registered Civil Engineer.  

E19. Any area which remains undeveloped for a period of more than 30 days shall be 
stabilized using either chemical stabilizers or a desert wildflower mix hydroseed on the 
affected portion of the site.

1.a

Packet Pg. 37

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

01
 D

ra
ft 

C
on

di
tio

ns
 o

f A
pp

ro
va

l  
(1

24
3 

: S
te

ak
 N

 S
ha

ke
)



CUP 04-15 Steak n Shake 
January 12, 2016 Planning Commission

Applicant Initials  
Page 9 of 12

E20. The Applicant shall be responsible for inspection, modification, and proper maintenance 
of the erosion control devices as necessary.   If the Applicant fails or refuses to properly 
maintain the erosion control devices, the Town official may cause emergency 
maintenance work to be done in order to protect potentially impacted property. 

E21. If construction of erosion control systems outside of the project boundaries is 
necessary, permission to construct such systems from the owner of such off-site 
property is required. Plans for the off-site system shall be included with the on-site 
plans submitted to the Town Engineer. The plans for the off-site erosion control system 
shall include permission to grade and maintain the erosion control system from all 
affected property owners and letters of clearance and/or permits from all appropriate 
governmental entities.

E22. The Applicant shall submit a post construction erosion and sediment control plan which 
identifies and illustrates all necessary improvements to prevent the movement and or 
loss of any soil and sediment materials from the project site, including all individual lots 
for construction of habitable structures, all slope banks, and all areas of the site capable 
of resulting in the deposit of soils and sediments with the street or storm drain system.  
The post construction erosion and sediment improvements shall be certified by a civil 
engineer that they were constructed in substantial conformance with the approved 
plans and specifications.

E23. The septic system shall be maintained so as not to create a public nuisance and shall be 
serviced by a DEHS permitted pumper. Soil testing for the subsurface disposal system 
shall meet the requirements of the Department of Environmental Health Services. 
Applicant shall submit a minimum of three (3) copies of percolation reports for the 
project site and an appropriate fee to DEHS for review and approval, a copy of the cover 
sheet with an approval stamp to Building and Safety Division at the time of building 
permit application, and two (2) copies of the approved percolation report to the 
Building and Safety Division at the time of construction plan check.  The location of the 
septic system shall be shown on the project grading plans.  The project shall make 
provisions for connection to the future Phase 1 sewer system improvements.

E24. It is understood that the Conditional Use Permit plans correctly shows all existing 
easements, traveled ways and drainage courses, and that their omission may require 
the Conditional Use Permit plans to be resubmitted for further consideration.

E25. After final plan check by the Town, original mylars (4 mil) shall be submitted to the Town 
for signature by the Town Engineer.  All original mylars submitted for the Town 
Engineer’s signature must contain the design engineer’s wet signature and stamp and all 
other required signatures.

1.a

Packet Pg. 38

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

01
 D

ra
ft 

C
on

di
tio

ns
 o

f A
pp

ro
va

l  
(1

24
3 

: S
te

ak
 N

 S
ha

ke
)



CUP 04-15 Steak n Shake 
January 12, 2016 Planning Commission

Applicant Initials  
Page 10 of 12

BUILDING AND SAFETY CONDITIONS

B1. Applicant/developer shall provide plans and obtain the required permits that comply 
with applicable provisions of the 2013 California Building, Plumbing, Electrical, and 
Mechanical Codes, the 2013 California Green Building Standards Code, and Title 24.

B2. All Plans to be stamped and wet signed by California Licensed Engineer or Architect.

B3. Provide all required ADA access plan (Parking, path of travel, building access, restroom, 
ADA workspace, etc.) per 2013 CBC, Chapter 11B.

B4. Obtain San Bernardino Environmental Health approval for on-site septic/Treatment 
system.

B5. Obtain San Bernardino County Fire approval for building and site improvements.

B6. Obtain will serve letter from Hi-Desert Water.

B7. Prior to final certificate of occupancy, as required by California State Health and Safety 
Code Section 19850, the applicant shall provide 1 copy of the stamped approved plans 
and revisions on CD in PDF format to the Town of Yucca Valley Building and Safety 
Division to serve as the official file copy of the approved building plans.

B8. Submit 2 complete sets of plans and provide 1 electronic copy of all plans and all 
calculations at the initial plan review submittal.

FIRE CONDITIONS

F1. Prior to any construction occurring on any parcel, the applicant shall contact the Fire 
Department for verification of current fire protection requirements.   All new 
construction shall comply with the current Uniform Fire Code requirements and all 
applicable statutes, codes, ordinances and standards of the Fire Department.

F2. The Applicant shall be responsible for all fees required by San Bernardino County Fire 
Department.

F3. A water system approved by the Fire Department is required.   The system shall be 
operational, prior to any combustibles being stored on the site.   Detached single family 
residential developments may increase the spacing between hydrants to be no more 
than six hundred (600) feet and no more than three hundred (300) feet (as measured 
along vehicle travel-ways) from the driveway on the address side of the proposed single 
family structure.

1.a

Packet Pg. 39

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

01
 D

ra
ft 

C
on

di
tio

ns
 o

f A
pp

ro
va

l  
(1

24
3 

: S
te

ak
 N

 S
ha

ke
)



CUP 04-15 Steak n Shake 
January 12, 2016 Planning Commission

Applicant Initials  
Page 11 of 12

F4. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, “Blue Reflective Markers” shall be 
installed to identify fire hydrant locations in accordance with County Fire Department 
Requirements.

F5. The applicant shall provide the Fire Department with a letter from the serving water 
company, certifying that the required water improvements have been made or that the 
existing fire hydrants and water system will meet distance and fire flow requirements.   
Fire flow water supply shall be in place prior to placing combustible materials on the 
job-site.

MOJAVE DESERT AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT CONDITION

M1. The applicant shall comply with the provisions of District Rule 403, Fugitive Dust.

HIGH DESERT WATER DISTRICT CONDITIONS

H1. Water and sewer improvement plans will need to be submitted to the Water District for 
review and approval.

H2. All costs for plan review, hydraulic modeling analysis, construction, testing and 
inspection shall be the responsibility of the Applicant.

H3. Landscape plans should be submitted in accordance with Hi Desert Water District 
Landscape Ordinance Package if total landscape area exceeds 500 square feet and a 
separate landscape meter will also be required.

H4. An agreement for water service shall be approved by HDWD Board of Directors prior to 
construction.

UNITED STATES MARINE CORPS CONDITIONS

MC1. The MCAGCC requests that all future residents receive full disclosure, in writing, 
describing the unique aspects of living near a military installation and under an FAA 
designed helicopter flight path (a copy of a letter from the MCAGCC to the new 
residents has been provided).

MC2. The following information regarding the presence of the Marine Corps Air Ground 
Combat Center (MGAGCC) shall be recorded on the title of each property contained 
within the boundaries of the tract map.

1.a

Packet Pg. 40

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

01
 D

ra
ft 

C
on

di
tio

ns
 o

f A
pp

ro
va

l  
(1

24
3 

: S
te

ak
 N

 S
ha

ke
)



CUP 04-15 Steak n Shake 
January 12, 2016 Planning Commission

Applicant Initials  
Page 12 of 12

“The Marine Corps Air Ground Combat Center is located in the Morongo Basin. To 
prepare Marines for future conflicts, the MGAGCC carries out realistic training with 
military munitions, both day and night. As a result, Military aircraft fly over the area, 
and military vehicles drive on and off the base every day. This property is located 
directly under two aircraft flying routes and is located approximately 13 miles from the 
installation boundary. Consequently, you should expect to hear military training, see 
low-flying military aircraft, and encounter other experiences associated with the 
important mission of the MCAGCC”.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE APPROVED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL WILL BE SATISFIED PRIOR 
TO OR AT THE TIMEFRAMES SPECIFIED AS SHOWN ABOVE.  I UNDERSTAND THAT FAILURE TO 
SATISFY ANY ONE OF THESE CONDITIONS WILL PROHIBIT THE ISSUANCE OF ANY PERMIT OR 
ANY FINAL MAP APPROVAL.

Applicant’s Signature                                                                      Date    

1.a

Packet Pg. 41

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

01
 D

ra
ft 

C
on

di
tio

ns
 o

f A
pp

ro
va

l  
(1

24
3 

: S
te

ak
 N

 S
ha

ke
)



   
 

TOWN OF YUCCA VALLEY 
 

PROJECT NO.: CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, CUP 04-15 STEAK N SHAKE  
            
  

        
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
    

       
 
 
 
                                              

                                                     
                         
 
 
 
 
 
 
           
 GENERAL PLAN LAND USE MAP 
 
 
 

PIQ 

1.b

Packet Pg. 42

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

02
 S

ta
nd

ar
d 

Ex
hi

bt
s 

 (1
24

3 
: S

te
ak

 N
 S

ha
ke

)



 
 
 
 
 
 

TOWN OF YUCCA VALLEY 
 

PROJECT NO.: CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, CUP 04-15 STEAK N SHAKE 
 
       

 
 

         
 
 
 

   
 
 
  
 
  

ASSESSORS PARCEL MAP

PIQ 

1.b

Packet Pg. 43

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

02
 S

ta
nd

ar
d 

Ex
hi

bt
s 

 (1
24

3 
: S

te
ak

 N
 S

ha
ke

)



 
 

 TOWN OF YUCCA VALLEY  
 

PROJECT NO.: CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, CUP 04-15 STEAK N SHAKE  
 
 
           
              

 
 
 
 

  
       
 
 

  
AERIAL PHOTO 

 
 
 
 
 

PIQ 

1.b

Packet Pg. 44

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

02
 S

ta
nd

ar
d 

Ex
hi

bt
s 

 (1
24

3 
: S

te
ak

 N
 S

ha
ke

)



 
 

TOWN OF YUCCA VALLEY 
 

PROJECT NO.: CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, CUP 04-15 STEAK N SHAKE     
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
  

ALQUIST PRIOLO MAP 
 
 
 
 

PIQ 

1.b

Packet Pg. 45

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

02
 S

ta
nd

ar
d 

Ex
hi

bt
s 

 (1
24

3 
: S

te
ak

 N
 S

ha
ke

)



 
TOWN OF YUCCA VALLEY 

 
PROJECT NO.: CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, CUP 04-15 STEAK N SHAKE     
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  

FEMA FLOOD MAP 
 
 
 

PIQ 

1.b

Packet Pg. 46

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

02
 S

ta
nd

ar
d 

Ex
hi

bt
s 

 (1
24

3 
: S

te
ak

 N
 S

ha
ke

)



 
TOWN OF YUCCA VALLEY 

 
PROJECT NO.: CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, CUP 04-15 STEAK N SHAKE    
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AIRPORT INFLUENCE MAP 
 
 

PIQ 

1.b

Packet Pg. 47

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

02
 S

ta
nd

ar
d 

Ex
hi

bt
s 

 (1
24

3 
: S

te
ak

 N
 S

ha
ke

)



TOWN OF YUCCA VALLEY 
 

PROJECT NO.: CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, CUP 04-15 STEAK N SHAKE  
            
  

        
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
                                             

 
 
 
 
 
 
           
 ZONING MAP 

 

PIQ 

1.b

Packet Pg. 48

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

02
 S

ta
nd

ar
d 

Ex
hi

bt
s 

 (1
24

3 
: S

te
ak

 N
 S

ha
ke

)



1.c

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

03
 S

ite
 P

la
n 

 (1
24

3 
: S

te
ak

 N
 S

ha
ke

)



P
A

R

147.08'
(147.05')

22.53'
N38°51'08"E

FU
TU

RE
 B

LD
G

LI
NE

AR
 R

O
O
T 
BA

RR
IE
R

SP
EC

IF
IE
D.
  

DO
 N

O
T 
US

E
PL
AS

TI
C 

BO
X 

BA
RR

IE
RS

.

PI
ST
AC

HI
A 

CH
IN
EN

SI
S

CH
IN
ES

E 
PI
ST
AC

HE

LA
G
ER

ST
RO

EM
IA
 X

'N
AT
CH

EZ
' 
ST
D

NA
TC

HE
Z

RA
PE

 M
YR

TL
E

BA
CC

HA
RI
S 

'C
EN

TE
NN

IA
L'

CH
RY

SA
CT

IN
IA
 M

EX
IC
AN

A

DA
LE
A 

G
RE

G
G
II

HE
SP

ER
AL
O
E 

PA
RV

IF
LO

RA

NO
T

SH
O
W
N

CO
YO

TE
 B

RU
SH

DA
M
IA
NI
TA

TR
AI
LI
NG

IN
DI
G
O
 B

US
H

RE
D 

YU
CC

A

RO
O
T 
BA

RR
IE
R:
  

IN
ST
AL
L 
AT
 T
RE

ES
 (
EX

CE
PT

PA
LM

S)
 P

LA
NT

ED
 5
' 
O
R 

LE
SS

 F
RO

M
 C

UR
BS

,
BU

IL
DI
NG

S,
 O

R 
PA

VE
M
EN

T.
 U

SE
 C

O
PP

ER
 M

ES
H

16
.0
11
 C

O
PP

ER
 A

VA
IL
AB

LE
 F
RO

M
 H

O
W
AR

D 
W
IR
E

CL
O
TH

 C
O
M
PA

NY
, 
HA

YW
AR

D 
CA

 (
51
0)
88
7-
87
87
., 
O
R

LI
NE

AR
 P

AN
EL
S 

FR
O
M
 D

EE
P 

RO
O
T.

M M L L L L

TH
ES

E 
DR

AW
IN
G
S 

AR
E 

UN
DE

R 
RE

VI
EW

 A
ND

SU
BJ
EC

T 
TO

 R
EV

IS
IO
NS

. 
 I
T 
IS
 T
HE

CO
NT

RA
CT

O
R'
S 

RE
SP

O
NS

IB
IL
IT
Y 

TO
 O

BT
AI
N 

FI
NA

L
DR

AW
IN
G
S,
 (
IN
IT
IA
LE
D 

IN
 T
IT
LE
 B

LO
CK

), 
BE

FO
RE

FI
NA

LI
ZI
NG

 B
ID
S 

O
R 

BE
G
IN
NI
NG

 C
O
NS

TR
UC

TI
O
N.

NO
T 
FO

R 
BI
DD

IN
G
 O

R 
CO

NS
TR

UC
TI
O
N

40
'

25
'

3 2

15
 G

AL
.

15
 G

AL
.

5 
G
AL
.

1 
G
AL
.

6 41

3' 2' 18
"

3-
4'

H,
 L
, 
M

HI
G
H,
 L
O
W
, 
M
ED

IU
M

*

RO
CK

S,
 L
O
CA

LL
Y 

AV
AI
LA
BL
E.
  

3-
4'
 D

 R
O
CK

S
W
IT
H 

VA
RY

IN
G
 H

EI
G
HT

S 
UN

DE
R 

2'
-6
" 
TA
LL

AB
O
VE

 F
IN
IS
HE

D 
G
RA

G
E.

10

TR
EE

S

SY
M
BO

L
SI
ZE

Q
TY
.M

AT
UR

E
HE

IG
HT

BO
TA
NI
CA

L
NA

M
E

W
AT
ER

RE
Q
M
T

CO
M
M
O
N

NA
M
E

SH
RU

BS
 A

ND
 P

ER
EN

NI
AL
SPL

AN
TI
NG

 L
EG

EN
D

*

TO
TA
L 
LA
ND

SC
AP

ED
 A

RE
A:
 1
,4
13
 S

.F
.

SI
TE
 F
EA

TU
RE

S 
- 
TY
PI
CA

L

1 
G
AL
.

5

5 
G
AL
.

5

CI
TY
 R

EQ
UI
RE

M
EN

TS

5%
 O

F 
PA

RK
IN
G
 A

RE
A 

TO
 B

E 
LA
ND

SC
AP

ED
1,
00
0 
S.
F.
 P

AR
KI
NG

 =
 5
0 
S.
F.
 L
AN

DS
CA

PE
 R

EQ
UI
RE

D
12
8 
S.
F.
 P

AR
KI
NG

 L
AN

DS
CA

PE
 P

RO
VI
DE

D

PL
AN

 I
S 

SU
BJ
EC

T 
TO

 R
EV

IE
W
 A

ND
 A

PP
RO

VA
L 
BY

 H
IG
H

DE
SE

RT
 W

AT
ER

 C
O
M
PA

NY
.

N
N

O
R

TH

AL
L 
PL
AN

TI
NG

 A
RE

AS
 S

HA
LL
 B

E 
CO

VE
RE

D 
FI
RS

T 
W
IT
H 

A 
2"
 L
AY

ER
 O

F 
O
RG

AN
IC

CO
M
PO

ST
 T
HE

N 
W
IT
H 

CO
RR

UG
AT
ED

 C
AR

DB
O
AR

D 
AS

 A
 W

EE
D 

ST
ER

IL
IZ
ER

 A
ND

TO
PD

RE
SS

ED
 W

IT
H 

A 
3"
 (
M
IN
IM
UM

) 
DE

EP
 L
AY

ER
 O

F 
DE

CO
M
PO

SE
D 

G
RA

NI
TE
,

CO
LO

R 
TO

 M
AT
CH

 S
HO

PP
IN
G
 C

EN
TE
R.

AL
L 
SU

RF
AC

E 
AN

D 
SU

B-
SU

RF
AC

E 
SW

AL
ES

, 
DR

AI
NA

G
E 

ST
RU

CT
UR

ES
 A

ND
  

PA
TT
ER

NS
SH

AL
L 
BE

 M
AI
NT

AI
NE

D.

A 
LI
CE

NS
ED

 L
AN

DS
CA

PE
 M

AI
NT

EN
AN

CE
 C

O
NT

RA
CT

O
R 

W
IL
L 
BE

 R
ET
AI
NE

D 
TO

PE
RF

O
RM

 R
O
UT

IN
E 

M
AI
NT

EN
AN

CE
 D

UT
IE
S.

LO
CA

TI
O
NS

 A
ND

 Q
UA

NT
IT
IE
S 

O
F 
EX

IS
TI
NG

 L
AN

DS
CA

PE
 M

AT
ER

IA
LS
 A

RE
AP

PR
O
XI
M
AT
E.

PL
AN

TE
R 

SO
IL
 S

HA
LL
 B

E 
AM

EN
DE

D 
AS

 D
ES

CR
IB
ED

 B
Y 

A 
LA
BO

RA
TO

RY
 S

O
IL

AN
AL
YS

IS
.

DR
IV
EW

AY
 C

UT
S 

AN
D 

FI
RE

 H
YD

RA
NT

S

UT
IL
IT
Y 

BO
XE

S,
 M

AN
HO

LE
 A

ND
 O

TH
ER

 U
TI
LI
TY
 V

AU
LT
S,

TE
LE
PH

O
NE

 A
ND

 O
TH

ER
 U

TI
LI
TY
 P

O
LE
S,
 G

AS
 A

ND
 W

AT
ER

M
ET
ER

, 
AN

D 
M
AI
NS

RE
FE
R 

TO
 A

RC
HI
TE
CT

UR
AL
 A

ND
 C

IV
IL
 P

LA
NS

 F
O
R 

DE
SC

RI
PT
IO
NS

 O
F 
EL
EM

EN
TS

NO
T 
ID
EN

TI
FI
ED

 O
N 

TH
IS
 P

LA
N.

O
BS

ER
VE

 T
HE

 F
O
LL
O
W
IN
G
 M

IN
IM
UM

 S
ET
BA

CK
 D

IS
TA
NC

ES
 F
O
R 

TR
EE

 P
LA
NT

IN
G
 :

AL
L 
PL
AN

TI
NG

 A
RE

AS
 S

HA
LL
 B

E 
M
UL
CH

ED
 W

IT
H 

DE
CO

M
PO

SE
D 

G
RA

NI
TE
, 
TO

 A
 M

IN
.

DE
PT
H 

O
F 
2"
. 
 C

O
LO

R:
 T
O
 M

AT
CH

 S
HO

PP
IN
G
 C

EN
TE
R.

NO
 N

AT
IV
E 

PL
AN

T 
M
AT
ER

IA
L 
EX

IS
TS
 O

N 
SI
TE
, 
NO

NE
 W

IL
L 
BE

 S
AL
VA

G
ED

 O
R

RE
LO

CA
TE
D.

A 
CO

M
BI
NA

TI
O
N 

O
F 
DR

IP
 A

ND
/O
R 

BU
BB

LE
RS

 S
HA

LL
 B

E 
IN
ST
AL
LE
D 

IN
 A

LL
PL
AN

TE
RS

. 
 I
RR

IG
AT
IO
N 

SY
ST
EM

S 
SH

AL
L 
BE

 E
Q
UI
PP

ED
 W

IT
H 

A 
CO

NT
RO

LL
ER

CA
PA

BL
E 

O
F 
DU

AL
 P

RO
G
RA

M
M
IN
G
. 
 P

LA
NT

S 
SH

AL
L 
BE

 G
RO

UP
ED

 I
NT

O
"H
YD

RO
ZO

NE
S"
 A

ND
 I
RR

IG
AT
ED

 S
EP

AR
AT
EL
Y 

FR
O
M
 T
HO

SE
 W

IT
H 

DI
FF
ER

EN
T

W
AT
ER

 R
EQ

UI
RE

M
EN

TS
.

= 
30
 F
T.

= 
 7
 F
T.

= 
 5
 F
T.

BE
TW

EE
N 

ST
RE

ET
 T
RE

ES

1. 2. 3. 4.

5. 6. 7. 8. 9.

G
EN

ER
AL
 N

O
TE
S

W
AT
ER

 C
O
NS

ER
VA

TI
O
N 

CO
NC

EP
T 
ST
AT
EM

EN
T

1 
G
AL
.

4
LE
UC

O
PH

YL
LU
M
 F
RU

TE
SC

EN
S

'C
O
M
PA

CT
A'

L
5'

1 
G
AL
.

30
SE

DU
M
 X

 '
RE

D 
CH

AL
K'

L
3"

DW
F 
TE
XA

S
RA

NG
ER

RE
D 

CH
AL
K

ST
O
NE

CR
O
P

1 
G
AL
.

4
AG

AV
E 

PA
RR

YI
L

2-
3'

AG
AV

E
BA

CC
HA

RI
S

CH
RY

SA
CT

IN
IA

DA
LE
A

HE
SP

ER
AL
O
E

LA
G
ER

ST
RO

EM
IA

LE
UC

O
PH

YL
LU
M

PI
ST
AC

HI
A

SE
DU

M

LA
ND

SC
AP

ED
 O

PE
N 

SP
AC

E 
W
IT
HI
N 

TH
E 

PL
AN

 A
RE

A 
TO

 B
E

M
AI
NT

AI
NE

D 
BY

 T
HE

 P
RO

PE
RT

Y 
O
W
NE

R.

PL
AN

TS
 A

RE
 D

RO
UG

HT
 T
O
LE
RA

NT
 &

 W
AT
ER

 C
O
NS

ER
VI
NG

AL
L 
PL
AN

TS
 E

XC
EP

T 
TH

E 
RE

Q
UI
RE

D 
SH

AD
E 

TR
EE

S 
AR

E 
LO

W
 O

R
VE

RY
 L
O
W
 W

AT
ER

 U
SE

.

M
ED

IU
M
 W

AT
ER

 U
SE

 S
HR

UB
S 

AN
D 

G
RO

UN
DC

O
VE

RS
 S

HO
W
N 

O
N

TH
E 

20
06
 H

O
M
E 

DE
PO

T 
RE

TA
IL
 C

EN
TE
R 

FI
NA

L 
SP

EC
IF
IC
 P

LA
N

HA
VE

 B
EE

N 
AD

AP
TE
D 

FO
R 

TH
IS
 P

LA
N 

TO
 L
O
W
 W

AT
ER

-U
SE

PL
AN

TS
 S

IM
IL
AR

 I
N 

CO
LO

R 
AN

D 
SI
ZE
 B

UT
 M

EE
T 
TH

E 
20
15

CA
LI
FO

RN
IA
 M

W
EL
O
 R

EQ
UI
RE

M
EN

TS
 F
O
R 

W
AT
ER

 C
O
NS

ER
VA

TI
O
N.

1.d

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

04
 L

an
ds

ca
pe

 P
la

n 
 (1

24
3 

: S
te

ak
 N

 S
ha

ke
)



Design Visualization

Fr
on

tE
le

va
tio

n

Ri
gh

tE
le

va
tio

n

St
ea

k 
‘n

 S
ha

ke
29

 P
al

m
s 

Hi
gh

w
ay

Yu
cc

a 
Va

lle
y,

 C
A

Version 9/10/15

C
or

on
ad

o 
St

on
e

Sp
ec

ia
l U

se
d

 B
ric

k 
“R

us
tic

 B
le

nd
”

Ea
gl

e 
Ro

of
in

g
Es

ta
te

 “
Le

hi
gh

 B
le

nd
”

Jo
hn

 B
oy

le
 &

 C
o.

#
62

7 
“S

ca
rle

t S
up

re
m

e”

Br
us

he
d

 A
lu

m
in

um

Be
nj

am
in

 M
oo

re
 #

21
25

-2
0

“D
ee

p 
Sp

ac
e”

Be
nj

am
in

 M
oo

re
 #

RM
I-7

0/
91

2
“L

in
en

 W
hi

te
”

Pa
nt

on
e 

48
5c

C
ol

or
 L

eg
en

d
:

1.e

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

El
ev

at
io

ns
  (

12
43

 : 
St

ea
k 

N
 S

ha
ke

)



Design Visualization

Re
ar

El
ev

at
io

n

Le
ft

El
ev

at
io

n

St
ea

k 
‘n

 S
ha

ke
29

 P
al

m
s 

Hi
gh

w
ay

Yu
cc

a 
Va

lle
y,

 C
A

Version 9/10/15

C
or

on
ad

o 
St

on
e

Sp
ec

ia
l U

se
d

 B
ric

k 
“R

us
tic

 B
le

nd
”

Ea
gl

e 
Ro

of
in

g
Es

ta
te

 “
Le

hi
gh

 B
le

nd
”

Jo
hn

 B
oy

le
 &

 C
o.

#
62

7 
“S

ca
rle

t S
up

re
m

e”

Br
us

he
d

 A
lu

m
in

um

Be
nj

am
in

 M
oo

re
 #

21
25

-2
0

“D
ee

p 
Sp

ac
e”

Be
nj

am
in

 M
oo

re
 #

RM
I-7

0/
91

2
“L

in
en

 W
hi

te
”

Pa
nt

on
e 

48
5c

C
ol

or
 L

eg
en

d
:

1.e

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

El
ev

at
io

ns
  (

12
43

 : 
St

ea
k 

N
 S

ha
ke

)



1.
f

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 5

3

Attachment: 05 Application Materials  (1243 : Steak N Shake)



1.
f

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 5

4

Attachment: 05 Application Materials  (1243 : Steak N Shake)



1.
f

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 5

5

Attachment: 05 Application Materials  (1243 : Steak N Shake)



1.
f

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 5

6

Attachment: 05 Application Materials  (1243 : Steak N Shake)



1.
f

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 5

7

Attachment: 05 Application Materials  (1243 : Steak N Shake)



1.
f

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 5

8

Attachment: 05 Application Materials  (1243 : Steak N Shake)



1.
f

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 5

9

Attachment: 05 Application Materials  (1243 : Steak N Shake)



1.
f

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 6

0

Attachment: 05 Application Materials  (1243 : Steak N Shake)



1.
f

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 6

1

Attachment: 05 Application Materials  (1243 : Steak N Shake)



(PUB: S. 12/17/2015)

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
YUCCA VALLEY COMMUNITY CENTER

57090 29 PALMS HIGHWAY
YUCCA VALLEY, CALIFORNIA 92284

TUESDAY, JANUARY 12, 2016 - BEGINNING AT 6:00 P.M.

A PUBLIC HEARING HAS BEEN SCHEDULED BEFORE THE TOWN OF YUCCA 
VALLEY PLANNING COMMISSION TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED 
APPLICATION:

CASE NUMBER: Environmental Assessment, EA 10-15
Conditional Use Permit, CUP 04-15

APPLICANT: Yucca Valley SNS, LLC
683 Cliffside Drive
San Dimas, CA 91773

REPRESENTATIVE: Hala Ibrahim
Stantec Architecture
1340 Treat Blvd, Ste 300
Walnut Creek, CA  94597

PROPOSAL: Proposal to construct a 3,200 square foot restaurant with 
drive thru, to include required parking and landscaping. 

LOCATION: The project is located on 29 Palms Hwy, east of Avalon 
Avenue on the Home Depot outparcels and is further 
identified as APN:601-201-48

ENVIRONMENTAL 
DETERMINATION: The project was reviewed under the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) and the Town’s Guidelines to implement same. The project is 
exempt from further environmental review in that the review and approval of the 
Home Depot Retail Center Specific Plan included a program Environmental Impact 
Report (EIR).   The EIR evaluated future projects within the boundaries of the Home 
Depot Retail Center Specific Plan.   The proposed project was evaluated to 
determine if additional CEQA documentation needed to be prepared.   The proposed 
project will not have any effects not considered within the scope of the program EIR.   
The project is consistent with the program EIR and will not create any additional 
impacts not previously considered.   No additional environmental review is required.

Any person affected by the application(s) may appear and be heard in support of or 
opposition to the proposal at the time of the hearing. The environmental findings, 
along the with proposed project application(s) are available and may be reviewed at 
the Town of Yucca Valley Planning Division, 58928 Business Center Drive, Yucca 
Valley, CA 92284 from 7.30 a.m. to 5:30 p.m., Monday through Thursday or obtain 
information at (760) 369-6575.

The Planning Commission in its deliberation could recommend approval of the 
project, deny the project, or approve the project in an alternative form. If you 
challenge any of the projects in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues 
you or someone else raised at the Public Hearing described in this notice, or in 
written correspondence delivered to the Town Planning Division at, or prior to the 
Public Hearing.

December 15, 2015 /s/ Lesley R. Copeland
Date Lesley R. Copeland, CMC

Town Clerk 

1.g

Packet Pg. 62

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

06
 N

ot
ic

e 
of

 H
ea

rin
g 

 (1
24

3 
: S

te
ak

 N
 S

ha
ke

)



California State Clearinghouse Handbook  •   27

Name of Person or Agency Carrying Out Project:

Description of Project:

Project Location - Specific:

Notice of Exemption

To: □ Office of Planning and Research
PO Box 3044, 1400 Tenth Street, Room 222
Sacramento, CA 95812-3044

□ County Clerk
County of

Revised May 1999

From: (Public Agency)

Project Title:

Project Location – County:Project Location – City:

Name of Public Agency Approving Project:

Exempt Status:  (check one)
□ Ministerial (Sec. 21080(b)(1); 15268);
□ Declared Emergency (Sec. 21080(b)(3); 15269(a));
□ Emergency Project (Sec. 21080(b)(4); 15269(b)(c));
□ Categorical Exemption. State type and section number:
□ Statutory Exemptions. State code number:

(Address)

Reasons why project is exempt:

Lead Agency
Contact Person: Area Code/Telephone/Extension:

Signature: Date: Title:

□ Signed by Lead Agency

□ Signed by Applicant
Date received for filing at OPR:

If filed by applicant:
1. Attach certified document of exemption finding.
2. Has a Notice of Exemption been filed by the public agency approving the project? □ Yes □ No

27

Form D
1.h

Packet Pg. 63

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

07
 N

ot
ic

e 
of

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 (1
24

3 
: S

te
ak

 N
 S

ha
ke

)

Governor's Office of Planning and Research

✔

Town of Yucca Valley

58928 Business Center Drive

Yucca Valley, CA 92284

San Bernardino

385 N. Arrowhead, 2nd Flr.

San Bernardino, CA. 92415

EA 10-15, CUP 04-15 Steak n Shake

The project is located on 29 Palms Hwy, east of Avalon Ave on the Home Depot
outparcels and is further identified as APN:601-201-48.

Yucca Valley San Bernardino

A request for approval to for the construction of a 3,200 square foot restaurant , to
include required parking and landscaping.

Town of Yucca Valley

Stantec Architecture

✔

The review and approval of the Home Depot Retail Center Specific Plan included a
program Environmental Impact Report (EIR). The EIR evaluated future projects within
the boundaries of the Home Depot Retail Center Specific Plan. The proposed project
was evaluated to determine if additional CEQA documentation needed to be prepared.
The proposed project will not have any effects not considered within the scope of the
program EIR The project is consistent with program EIR and will not create any

Shane Stueckle (760)369-6575 X305

01-12-2016 Deputy Town Manager

✔



1.
i

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 6

4

Attachment: 08 Chapter 9.63 Conditional Use Permit  (1243 : Steak N Shake)



1.
i

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 6

5

Attachment: 08 Chapter 9.63 Conditional Use Permit  (1243 : Steak N Shake)



1.
i

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 6

6

Attachment: 08 Chapter 9.63 Conditional Use Permit  (1243 : Steak N Shake)



1.
i

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 6

7

Attachment: 08 Chapter 9.63 Conditional Use Permit  (1243 : Steak N Shake)



1.
i

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 6

8

Attachment: 08 Chapter 9.63 Conditional Use Permit  (1243 : Steak N Shake)



1.
i

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 6

9

Attachment: 08 Chapter 9.63 Conditional Use Permit  (1243 : Steak N Shake)



1.
i

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 7

0

Attachment: 08 Chapter 9.63 Conditional Use Permit  (1243 : Steak N Shake)



1.
i

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 7

1

Attachment: 08 Chapter 9.63 Conditional Use Permit  (1243 : Steak N Shake)



1.
i

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 7

2

Attachment: 08 Chapter 9.63 Conditional Use Permit  (1243 : Steak N Shake)



1.
j

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 7

3

Attachment: 09 Parcel Map 19644  (1243 : Steak N Shake)



Av
g

Be
ne

fit
Bu

ild
in

g
Da

ily
To

ta
l

To
ta

l
Zo

ne
La

nd
us

e
Pa

rc
el

 N
o.

Sq
 F

t.
Tr

ip
s

BU
's

Ra
te

/B
U

As
m

t.
Ho

m
e 

De
po

t
60

1-
20

1-
45

13
9,

65
6

4,
16

2
4,

16
2

1.
90

$7
,9

07
.8

0
M

ar
ch

al
ls

60
1-

20
1-

50
27

,1
10

1,
20

2
1,

20
2

1.
90

$2
,2

83
.8

0
Pe

tC
o

60
1-

20
1-

49
7,

75
0

33
2

33
2

1.
90

$6
30

.8
0

St
ea

k/
Sh

ak
e

N
ot

 Y
et

 D
et

er
m

in
ed

3,
20

0
11

50
11

50
1.

90
$2

,1
85

.0
0

Sp
ec

ia
lit

y 
Re

ta
il

N
ot

 Y
et

 D
et

er
m

in
ed

70
00

33
8

33
8

1.
90

$6
42

.2
0

$1
3,

64
9.

60

5

1.
k

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 7

4

Attachment: 10 Home Depot Assessment 2016-17  (1243 : Steak N Shake)



1.
l

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 7

5

Attachment: 11 Updated Traffic Letter  (1243 : Steak N Shake)



1.
l

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 7

6

Attachment: 11 Updated Traffic Letter  (1243 : Steak N Shake)



1.
l

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 7

7

Attachment: 11 Updated Traffic Letter  (1243 : Steak N Shake)



1.
l

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 7

8

Attachment: 11 Updated Traffic Letter  (1243 : Steak N Shake)



Town of Yucca Valley 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 
To: Honorable Chair and Planning Commissioners 
From: Diane Olsen, Planning Technician  

Shane Stueckle, Deputy Town Manager 
Date: December 8, 2015 
Meeting Date: January 12, 2016 
  
Subject: Environmental Assessment, 03-15; Conditional Use Permit, CUP 03-15; Cortel 
 
Recommendation: 
Environmental Assessment, EA 03-15: ; That the Planning Commission finds the project to be 
exempt from CEQA under Section 15061(b) (3) since there is no possibility of a significant 
impact on the environment caused by this project. 
 
Conditional Use Permit, CUP 03-15: That the Planning Commission approves CUP 03-15 based 
upon the information contained within the staff report, the required finding and the 
recommended conditions of approval. 
 
Prior Commission Review:   
There has been prior Commission review of this project. 
 
Executive Summary:   
The Planning Commission is the review authority for Conditional Use Permit applications.  
Conditional Use Permit, CUP 03-15, was submitted on May 04, 2015 and deemed complete on 
December 10, 2015.  The Planning Commission’s decision is final unless appealed to the Town 
Council. 
   
 
Order of Procedure:  

Request Staff Report  
Request Public Comment  
Commission Discussion/Questions of Staff  
Motion/Second 
Discussion on Motion 
Call the Question (Roll Call Vote) 

 
Discussion:    
The applicant is requesting approval for the construction of a 52’ cellular tower to be disguised 
as a water tower, to include a generator inside a 900 square foot, 8’ high block wall enclosure 
for equipment cabinets.  The property is located on a vacant lot on the southwest corner of 

2

Packet Pg. 79



Aberdeen Drive and Sage Avenue and is also identified as APN: 597-211-06.  
 
Case:  ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT, EA 03-15 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, CUP 03-15 VZW/CORTEL 
THE PROJECT IS EXEMPT FROM CEQA UNDER SECTION 15061(b) (3) SINCE THERE 
IS NO POSSIBILITY OF A SIGNIFICANT IMPACT ON THE ENVIRONMENT CAUSED BY 
THIS PROJECT.                                                                                                                                                   

 
Request:    A PROPOSAL TO CONSTRUCT A 52’ CELLULAR TOWER TO BE DISGUISED AS A 

WATER TOWER, TO INCLUDE A GENERATOR INSIDE A 900 SQUARE FOOT, 8’ 
HIGH BLOCK WALL ENCLOSURE FOR EQUIPMENT CABINETS.   

 
 Applicant:  VSW C/O CORTEL 
  1554 BARTON RD #355 
  REDLANDS, CA 92373 
 
Property Owner: 

 GUIDO AND PAULA DIMITRI 
  2169 EL COYOTE RUN 
  FALLBROOK, CA 92028 
 
Representative:  

ANDREA URBAS  
  CORTEL 
  1554 BARTON RD #355 
  REDLANDS, CA 92373 
 
Location: VACANT LOT ON THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF ABERDEEN DRIVE AND SAGE 

AVENUE, AND IS ALSO IDENTIFIED AS APN: 597-211-06. 
                                                                                                                                                   
Existing General Plan Land Use Designation:   

THE SITE IS DESIGNATED RURAL RESIDENTIAL (RR 2.5) 2.5 ACRE MINIMUM 
 
Existing Zoning Designation:   

THE SITE IS DESIGNATED RURAL LIVING 2.5 ACRE MINIMUM (RL-2.5) 
 
Surrounding General Plan Land Use Designations:  

NORTH:  SB COUNTY 
SOUTH:  RURAL RESIDENTIAL (RR 2.5) 2.5 ACRE MINIMUM 
WEST:      RURAL RESIDENTIAL (RR 2.5) 2.5 ACRE MINIMUM 
EAST:      SB COUNTY  

 
Surrounding Zoning Designations:  

2

Packet Pg. 80



NORTH:  SB COUNTY HV/RL 2.5 ACRE MINIMUM 
SOUTH:  RURAL LIVING 2.5 ACRE MINIMUM (RL-2.5) 
WEST:      RURAL LIVING 2.5 ACRE MINIMUM (RL-2.5) 
EAST:      SB COUNTY HV RL 2.5 ACRE MINIMUM 

 
Surrounding Land Use: 

NORTH: VACANT AND SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
SOUTH:   VACANT 
WEST:    VACANT 
EAST:      VACANT AND SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 

 
Public Notification: 

PURSUANT TO SECTION 9.85.020, LEGAL NOTICE IS REQUIRED TO BE GIVEN TO 
ALL PROPERTY OWNERS WITHIN A THREE (300) HUNDRED FOOT RADIUS OF THE 
EXTERIOR BOUNDARIES OF THE SUBJECT SITE.   THIS PROJECT WAS PUBLISHED 
AND MAILED ON THURSDAY, DECEMBER 17, 2015.  

  
  
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
Environmental Assessment, EA 03-15: ; That the Planning Commission finds the project to be 
exempt from CEQA under Section 15061(b) (3) since there is no possibility of a significant 
impact on the environment caused by this project. 
 
Conditional Use Permit, CUP 03-15: That the Planning Commission approves CUP 03-15 based 
upon the information contained within the staff report, the required finding and the 
recommended conditions of approval. 
 
 
PROJECT PLANNER: DIANE OLSEN 
 
REVIEWED BY:  SHANE STUECKLE 
 
Appeal Information: 
 
Actions by the Planning Commission, including any finding that a negative declaration be 
adopted, may be appealed to the Town Council within 10 calendar days.  Appeal filing and 
processing information may be obtained from the Planning Division of the Community 
Development Department.  Pursuant to Section 9.63.090 of the Development Code, minor 
modifications may be approved by the Planning Division if it is determined that the changes 
would not affect the findings prescribed in Section 9.63.080 of the Development Code, 
Required Findings, and that the subject of the proposed changes were not items of public 
controversy during the review and approval of the original permit, including modifications to 

2

Packet Pg. 81



phasing schedules for the project. 
 

2

Packet Pg. 82



I.  GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: A proposal to construct a 52’ cellular tower to be disguised as a water 
tower, to include a generator inside a 900 square foot, 8’ high block wall enclosure for 
equipment cabinets. T 
 
LOCATION:  The project is located on a vacant lot on the southwest corner of Aberdeen Drive 
and Sage Avenue and is also identified as APN: 597-211-06. 
 
 
PROJECT SYNOPSIS 
 

SITE COVERAGE 

PROJECT AREA    Entire site = 40 acres 
Project Area = 900 square feet 
 

BUILDING AREA No enclosed buildings are proposed. The 
project includes a 900 square foot block wall 
enclosure where the cell tower, generator and 
equipment cabinets will be located. 
 

PHASED CONSTRUCTION No 
 

FLOOD ZONE Map 8120 Zone D (areas in which flood 
hazards are undetermined, but possible). 
 

ALQUIST PRIOLO ZONE No 
 

OFF-SITE IMPROVEMENTS REQ. Yes, Aberdeen Drive and Sage Avenue, if 
approved and conditioned at this location. 
 

ASSESSMENT DISTRICTS REQ. Yes, if approved and conditioned at this 
location. 
 

RIGHT-OF-WAY DEDICATION REQ. Yes 
 

UTILITY UNDERGROUNDING All new service lines shall be underground in 
conformance to Ordinance 233, or as 
amended by Town Council. 
 

AIRPORT INFLUENCE AREA Outside the Airport Influence Area 
 

TRAILS & BIKE LANE MASTER PLAN There are no facilities on or adjacent to the 
project site 
 

2

Packet Pg. 83



PUBLIC FACILITY MASTER PLAN There are no facilities on or adjacent to the 
project site. 
 

PARKS AND RECREATION MASTER PLAN There are no facilities on or adjacent to the 
project site. 
 

MASTER PLAN OF DRAINAGE There are no facilities on or adjacent to the 
project site 
 

STREET LIGHTS Yes 
 

SPECIFIC PLAN/PLANNED DEVELOPMENT No 

GATEWAY REIMBURSEMENT DISTRICT No 

AVALON SIGNAL REIMBURSEMENT DISTRICT No 

FUTURE PLANNING COMMISSION  
ACTION REQUIRED 
 

No 

FUTURE TOWN COUNCIL 
ACTION REQUIRED 

Only if the Planning Commission action is 
appealed 

 
II. PROJECT ANALYSIS 
 
GENERAL PLAN CONSIDERATION:   
The proposed cell tower and equipment cabinets are proposed to be located on a parcel 
designated as Rural Residential (RR 2.5) 2.5 Acre Minimum.    
 
Rural Residential (RR 2.5) 1du/ 2.5 acres maximum is intended for single family residences on 
large parcels of 2.5 to 5.0 acres.  Equestrian and animal keeping activities are expected and 
encouraged to support a rural lifestyle and country living. 
 
 
DEVELOPMENT CODE CONSIDERATION:    
The purpose of Chapter 9.44 (Wireless Communications Facilities) is to “provide site selection 
and general standards applicable to wireless communications facilities, as well as special design 
standards for Town entry points, scenic corridors, and buffer areas in order to protect and 
enhance aesthetic and scenic values reflecting the community’s image and character consistent 
with the goals and policies of the General Plan”.  
 
The project is located within 5,000 feet of a scenic highway (State Route 247) as designated in 
Chapter 9.44 Wireless Communication Facilities of the Development Code.  Special 
consideration must be given to these locations, according to the criteria set forth in 
Development Code Section 9.44.070, Visual Impact and Screening Standards.  

2

Packet Pg. 84



 
The project proposes to conceal the antenna as a water tower.   The project is located on a 
forty (40) acre vacant lot. The project area is 900 square feet, enclosed by a block wall.  The 
existing structures to the north and east are single story residential buildings and to the west 
and south are vacant lots.  
 
Pursuant to Section 9.31.030 Height Regulations and Exceptions, the miscellaneous structures 
listed in the table may exceed the maximum height limitations in a zoning district by up to 50% 
subject to a Land Use Compliance Review.  The property is located in the Rural Living zoning 
district, with a maximum structure height of 35’.  Therefore, pursuant to Section 9.31.030, the 
structure can be constructed up to 52.5’ 
 
9.44.070 A.  Within special design areas, antennas shall be located on existing buildings, 
communication towers, water towers, or similar structures: on natural features or topography; 
or shall be disguised or screened in a manner compatible with the Towns desert rural 
neighborhood character.  
 
Less construction of a residential structure on the property, adherence to the above criteria is 
extremely difficult.  This is highlighted based upon the proposed height of the wireless 
communication structure and its design.  Additional discussion on Section 9.44.070, Visual 
Impact and Screen Standards, is presented below. 
 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:        
The project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act under Section 15061(b) (3) 
since there is no possibility of a significant impact on the environment caused by this project.       
 
 
ADJACENT LAND USES:     
The project site is located on the southwest corner of Aberdeen Drive and Sage Avenue.   
Properties to the north and east include single family residences and vacant lots.    
 
 
SITE CHARACTERISTICS:  
The site is vacant land with areas of vehicle disturbance.  Vegetation includes some grasses and 
creosote bushes, with a few scattered native plants.  The tower is proposed to be constructed 
at the northeast corner of the property.   
 
No landscaping has been proposed by the applicant.  The project has been conditioned to 
include landscaping on the north, south and east side of the enclosure 
 
BUILDING ELEVATIONS:     
No enclosed buildings are proposed.   The cell tower is proposed to be 52’ tall and will be 
disguised as a water tower.   The project will also include the installation of a 900 square foot, 

2

Packet Pg. 85



8’ tall block wall enclosure to house the cell tower and related equipment.   
 
ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS 
The proposed project is bounded by Sage Avenue on the east and Aberdeen Drive on the north.   
Table 3-1 of the Development Code (a copy of which is attached to the staff report) does not 
require street and infrastructure improvements for the development of property in residential 
zoning districts.  However, as this project is considered a commercial use of the property, staff 
has conditioned the project to install half-width street improvements along the property 
frontage of Sage Avenue and Aberdeen Drive. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
Pursuant to Section 9.44.040, wireless facilities are permitted in any land use district subject to 
the review and approval of a Conditional Use Permit by the Planning Commission. 
 
Chapter 9.44 provides specific criteria for the location, size and type of antennas, and the 
procedures required for their approval.  In this case, the applicant proposes a 52’ foot high 
cellular tower disguised as a water tower.  The ground-based equipment for the antenna will be 
located in a 900 square foot, 8 foot high block wall enclosure.   
 
Chapter 9.07 establishes the maximum structure height in the Rural Living zoning district at 35 
feet.  The proposal exceeds this height by 17 feet or approximately 48%.  Pursuant to Table 3-3 
of the Development Code, miscellaneous structures may exceed the maximum height limit by 
50% subject to Town approval. 
 
The site is located in a “Special Design Area,” as defined by Section 9.44.030 of the 
Development Code as it is within 5,000 feet of a scenic highway (State Route 247). In a Special 
Design Area, the antenna must meet six standards. Each standard and whether the project 
meets those standards, is summarized below (Article 3, Section 9.44.070). 
 

A) Within special design areas, antennas shall be located on existing buildings, 
communication towers, water towers, or similar structures: on natural features or 
topography; or shall be disguised or screened in a manner compatible with the 
Towns desert rural neighborhood character.  

 
The cell tower is proposed at 52 feet, is disguised as a water tower and is to be 
located on a vacant parcel with minimal vegetation and native plants.  The project 
has been conditioned to include landscaping on the north, south and east side of the 
enclosure. 

 
B) Facilities should be located so that they do not extend above the height or profile of 

the structure on which they are located.  When located on a building or structure, 
antennas shall be painted and texturized to match the existing building or structure.   

 
The cell tower is proposed to be constructed on a vacant lot.  The properties to the 

2

Packet Pg. 86



surrounding the project are predominantly vacant with some scattered residential 
dwellings.    

 
C) Structures or antennas located on natural features or topography, other than whip 

antennas should not project above the ridgeline, or into the skyline for both 
community and neighborhood views.  Free-standing monopole or lattice towers shall 
be designed to disguise their appearance, to look like a tree, natural feature, building 
or other structure subject to the approval of the Commission.  Such designs shall be 
in scale with surrounding development or landscaping. 

 
The cell tower is proposed to be constructed on a vacant lot.  The properties to the 
surrounding the project are predominantly vacant with some scattered residential 
dwellings.    

 
D) Free-standing monopole and or lattice towers shall have a minimum setback of 450 

feet from any property zoned for residential units with a minimum lot size of one 
acre or less.  Those facilities designed to disguise their appearance in accordance 
with Section (C) above shall have a minimum setback of 275 feet from any property 
zoned for residential units with a minimum lot size of one acre or less.  Non mono-
pole or lattice tower facilities may be allowed a reduced setback based upon height, 
dimensions, relation the built environment or other similar factors.  

 
The project is located in the Rural Living 2.5 acre minimum zoning district. The 
zoning to the north, south, east and west are all Rural Living 2.5 acre minimum.  
Therefore no special setback from residentially zoned property is required.  

 
E) Sites shall be landscaped to screen buildings, equipment and the base of any towers 

from surrounding land uses.  
 

No landscaping has been proposed by the applicant.  The project has been 
conditioned to include landscaping on the north, south and east side of the 
enclosure.   

 
F) Location of equipment necessary to serve the wireless facility may be required to be 

located away from residentially designated properties and or provide additional 
design standards to avoid potential impacts to surrounding properties.  

 
The project is located in the Rural Living 2.5 acre minimum zoning district. The 
zoning to the north, south, east and west are all Rural Living 2.5 acre minimum.  
Therefore no special setback from residentially zoned property is required.  

 
 
 
FINDINGS:  

2

Packet Pg. 87



Section 9.44.060 B Site Selection and General Standards 
 
3) Facilities greater than 30 feet in height shall be subject to Commission review and approval 

and may be required to provide additional visual mitigation to disguise their appearance to 
look like a tree, natural feature, building or other structure.  Such designs shall be in scale 
with the surrounding development or landscaping. 

 
The wireless facility is proposed at 52’ and is located on a vacant parcel.  The properties 
surrounding the project are vacant land and scattered single family dwellings.  The project is 
proposed to be disguised as a water tower.   

  
4) Facilities, including equipment buildings, shall be architecturally and visually compatible; 

including scale, size, and use of similar colors and building materials, with surrounding 
existing buildings, structures, and uses in the vicinity. 

 
The project is located on a 900 square foot area of a forty (40) acre parcel.  The enclosure 
area is proposed to be located approximately 55’ from the east property line and 
approximately 128’ from the north property line.   
 
The properties surrounding the project are vacant lots and scattered single story residential 
dwellings approximately 15’ in height.  The cell tower is proposed at 52’ and will project 
above these buildings by approximately 37’.   A preliminary landscape plan was not 
submitted with the application, but the project has been conditioned to install landscaping 
on the north, south and west sides of the enclosure. 

 

2

Packet Pg. 88



Conditional Use Permit Findings:   
 

(a) The location, size, design, density and intensity of the proposed development is 
consistent with the General Plan, the purpose of the land use district in which the site 
is located, and the development policies and standards of the Town; 

The proposed wireless facility is 52 feet high, which exceeds the maximum height 
limit for residential zoning by 17 feet or approximately 48%.  Pursuant to Section 
9.31.030, Height Regulations and Exceptions, miscellaneous structures may be 
permitted an increase of 50% of the maximum structure height subject to a Land 
Use Compliance Review. 

 
(b) The location, size, design and architectural design features of the proposed structures 

and improvements are compatible with the site’s natural landform, surrounding sites, 
structures and streetscapes; 

The proposed wireless facility is 52 feet high, which exceeds the maximum height 
limit for residential zoning by 17 feet or approximately 48%.   Pursuant to Section 
9.31.030, Height Regulations and Exceptions, miscellaneous structures may be 
permitted an increase of 50% of the maximum structure height subject to a Land 
Use Compliance Review. The surrounding structures are one story residential 
buildings approximately 15 feet in height.  

 
(c) The proposed development produces compatible transitions in the scale, bulk, 

coverage, density and character of the development between adjacent land uses; 
The proposed project is located in an area of vacant lots and one story single 
family dwellings.   

 
(d) The building site and architectural design is accomplished in an energy efficient 

manner; 
No enclosed buildings are proposed as part of this request.   The facility and all 
equipment will be located within a 30’ x 30’ (900 sq ft) block enclosure. 

 
(e) The materials, textures and details of the proposed construction, to the extent 

feasible, are compatible and consistent with the adjacent and neighboring structures; 
The proposed wireless facility is disguised to look like a water tower.  The tower is 
proposed at 52 feet high, which will project above the surrounding buildings by 
approximately 34 feet.  

 
(f) The development proposal does not unnecessarily block views from other buildings or 

from public ways, or visually dominate its surroundings with respect to mass and scale 
to an extent unnecessary and inappropriate to the use; 

The wireless facility is proposed at 52’ and is located on a 900 square foot section 
of a forty (40) acre vacant parcel.  To the north and east of the project area are 
single family dwellings and vacant lots.   This facility is approximately three times 
the height of the surrounding structures and also exceeds the allowable height 

2

Packet Pg. 89



for the zoning district by approximately 48%. Pursuant to Section 9.31.030, 
Height Regulations and Exceptions, miscellaneous structures may be permitted 
an increase of 50% of the maximum structure height subject to a Land Use 
Compliance Review. 

 
 

(g) That the amount, location, and design of open space and landscaping conforms to the 
requirements of the Development Code, enhances the visual appeal and is compatible 
with the design and functions of the structure(s), site and surrounding area; 

The applicant has not proposed any landscaping for the project.  The project has 
been conditioned to install landscaping on the north, south and east sides of the 
enclosure.   

 
(h) The quality in architectural design is maintained in order to enhance the visual desert 

environment of the Town and to protect the economic value of existing structures; 
The proposed wireless facility is disguised to look like a water tower.   The 
equipment will be screened by a block wall. The project has been conditioned to 
construct the block wall with material that will blend into the surroundings.   

 
(i) There are existing public facilities, services, and utilities available at the appropriate 

levels and/or that new or expanded facilities, services and utilities shall be required to 
be installed at the appropriate time to serve the project as they are needed; 

Services required to facilitate this development such as water and electric are 
adjacent the site and accessible to the proposed development.   All new utilities 
are required to be placed underground in accordance with Ordinance 233. 

 
(j) That access to the site and circulation on and off-site is required to be safe and 

convenient for pedestrians, bicyclists, equestrians and motorists; 
The proposal is for a wireless communications facility, which involves minimal 
access to the site.  

 
(k) That traffic generated from the proposed project has been sufficiently addressed and 

mitigated and will not adversely impact the capacity and physical character of 
surrounding streets; 

The tower and equipment cabinets are unmanned and require infrequent 
visitation and maintenance.   The project will have no traffic impact or change 
the capacity/ physical character of the surrounding streets.  

 
(l) That traffic improvements and/or mitigation measures have been applied or required 

in a manner adequate to maintain a Level of Service C or better on arterial roads, 
where applicable, and are consistent with the Circulation Element of the Town 
General Plan; 

The tower and equipment cabinets are unmanned and require infrequent 
visitation and maintenance.   No traffic improvements or mitigation measures 

2

Packet Pg. 90



are required for this project. 
 

(m) There will not be significant harmful effects upon environmental quality and natural 
resources including endangered, threatened, rare species, their habitat, including but 
not limited to plants, fish, insects, animals, birds or reptiles; 

The facility will be constructed in an area already disturbed by off road use.   The 
addition of this facility will not have harmful effects on environmental quality or 
natural resources. 

 
(n) There are no other relevant or anticipated negative impacts of the proposed use that 

cannot be mitigated and reduced to a level of non-significance in conformance with 
CEQA, the California Environmental Quality Act; 

The proposal is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
under Section 15061(b) (3) since there is no possibility of a significant impact on 
the environment caused by this project.    

 
(o) The impacts which could result from the proposed development, and the proposed 

location, size, design and operating characteristics of the proposed development, and 
the conditions under which it would be operated or maintained will not be considered 
to be detrimental to the public health, safety and welfare of the community or be 
materially injurious to properties and/or improvements within the immediate vicinity 
or be contrary to the General Plan; and 

The facility will be constructed in an area already disturbed by off road use.  The 
tower and equipment cabinets are unmanned and require infrequent visitation 
and maintenance.   The project will have no traffic impact or change the 
capacity/ physical character of the surrounding streets.   The addition of this 
facility will not have harmful effects on environmental quality or natural 
resources. 

 
 

(p) The proposed development will comply with each of the applicable provisions of the 
Development Code, and applicable Town policies, except approved variances. 

The project is proposed on a vacant lot with existing single family residences to 
the north and east.  The proposed wireless facility is 52 feet high, which exceeds 
the maximum height limit for residential zoning by 17 feet or approximately 48%.   
Pursuant to Section 9.31.030, Height Regulations and Exceptions, miscellaneous 
structures may be permitted an increase of 50% of the maximum structure height 
subject to a Land Use Compliance Review. Therefore the project is consistent with 
Development Code Regulations and no variance is required.  

 
 
 
Alternatives:   
None recommended 

2

Packet Pg. 91



 
Fiscal Impact:   
N/A 
 
Attachments:  
01 Conditions of Approval 
02 Standard Exhibts 
03 Plans and Elevations 
04 Application Material 
05 FCC Compliance Statement 
06 Gap Analysis/Coverage Maps 
07 Notice of Hearing 
08 Notice of Exemption 
09 Chapter 9.44 Wireless Communications 
10 Section 9.31.030 Height Regulations 
11 Chapter 9.63 Conditional Use Permit 
12 Chapter 9.30 Infrastructure Improvements 

2

Packet Pg. 92



TOWN OF YUCCA VALLEY
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT, EA 03-15
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, CUP 03-15

This approval is for Environmental Assessment, EA 03-15 and Conditional Use Permit, CUP 03-
15 Cortel, for the construction of a 52’ cellular tower to be disguised as a water tower, to 
include a generator inside a 900 square foot, 8’ high block wall enclosure for equipment 
cabinets.  The project is located on a vacant lot on the southwest corner of Aberdeen Drive and 
Sage Ave and is also identified as APN: 597-211-06.

GENERAL CONDITIONS

G1. The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Town of Yucca 
Valley, its agents, officers and employees, at his sole expense, against any action, claim 
or proceedings brought against the Town or its agents, officers or employees, to attack, 
set aside, void, or annul this approval or because of the issuance of such approval, or in 
the alternative, to relinquish such approval, in compliance with the Town of Yucca Valley 
Development Code.  The applicant shall reimburse the Town, its agents, officers, or 
employees for any court costs, and attorney's fees which the Town, its agents, officers 
or employees may be required by a court to pay as a result of such action.  The Town 
may, at its sole discretion, participate at its own expense in the defense of any such 
action but such participation shall not relieve applicant of his obligations under this 
condition.  The Town shall promptly notify the applicant of any claim, action or 
proceedings arising from the Town’s approval of this project, and the Town shall 
cooperate in the defense.

G2. This Conditional Use Permit shall become null and void if construction has not 
commenced within three (3) years of the Town of Yucca Valley date of approval.  
Extensions of time may be granted by the Planning Commission, in conformance with 
the Town of Yucca Valley Development Code.  The applicant is responsible for the 
initiation of an extension request.

Approval Date:  January 12, 2016
Expiration Date: January 12, 2019

G3. The applicant shall ascertain and comply with requirements of all State, County, Town 
and local agencies as are applicable to the project.  These include, but are not limited to, 
County of San Bernardino Environmental Health Services, County of San Bernardino 
Transportation/Flood Control, County of San Bernardino Fire Department,  Yucca Valley 
Building and Safety, Caltrans, High Desert Water District, Airport Land Use Commission, 
California Regional Water Quality Control Board, Colorado River Region, the Federal 

2.a

Packet Pg. 93

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

01
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f A

pp
ro

va
l  

(1
23

9 
: V

ZW
 C

or
te

l)



Conditional Use Permit, CUP 03-15 
Cortel  
Planning Commission 01-12-2016 
 

Page 2 of 12 

Emergency Management Agency, MDAQMD-Mojave Desert Air Quality Management 
District, Community Development, Engineering, and all other Town Departments. 

 
G4. All conditions are continuing conditions.  Failure of the applicant to comply with any or 

all of said conditions at any time may result in the revocation of any construction 
permits for the project. 

 
G5. No on-site or off-site work shall commence without obtaining the appropriate permits 

for the work required by the Town and the appropriate utilities.  The approved permits 
shall be readily available on the job site for inspection by Town personnel. 

 
G6. The applicant shall pay all fees charged by the Town as required for application 

processing, plan checking, construction and/or inspections.  The fee amounts shall be 
those which are applicable and in effect at the time work is undertaken and 
accomplished.  Fees for entitlement prior to construction permits are based on 
estimated costs for similar projects.  Additional fees may be incurred, depending upon 
the specific project.  If additional fees for services are incurred, they must be paid prior 
to any further processing, consideration, or approval(s). 

 
G7. All improvements shall be inspected by the Town as appropriate.  Any work completed 

without proper inspection may be subject to removal and replacement under proper 
inspection. 

 
G8. All refuse shall be removed from the premises in conformance with Yucca Valley Town 

Code 33.083. 
 
G9. During construction, the Applicant shall be responsible to sweep public paved roads 

adjacent to the project as necessary and as requested by the Town to eliminate any site 
related dirt and debris within the roadways. During business activities, the applicant 
shall keep the public right-of-way adjacent to the property in a clean and sanitary 
condition. 

 
G10. No staging of construction equipment or parking of worker’s vehicles shall be allowed 

within the public right-of-way of streets or other public improvements that have been 
accepted into the Town’s maintained system 

 
G11. All existing street and property monuments within or abutting this project site shall be 

preserved consistent with AB 1414.  If during construction of onsite or offsite 
improvements monuments are damaged or destroyed, the applicant shall retain a 
qualified licensed land surveyor or civil engineer to reset those monuments per Town 
Standards and file the necessary information with the County Recorder’s office as 
required by law (AB 1414). 

2.a

Packet Pg. 94

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

01
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f A

pp
ro

va
l  

(1
23

9 
: V

ZW
 C

or
te

l)



Conditional Use Permit, CUP 03-15 
Cortel  
Planning Commission 01-12-2016 
 

Page 3 of 12 

 
G12. Each phase of the project shall function independently of all other phases.  All 

improvements shall be completed for each phase to ensure that each phase functions 
separate from the remainder of the project, and shall include, but not be limited to, 
street improvements, drainage and retention/detention facilities, water delivery 
systems, fire suppressions systems, post construction erosion and sediment control 
systems, all utilities necessary to serve the project, and those improvements deemed 
necessary by the Town.  All phasing plans shall be illustrated on rough and precise 
grading plans, erosion and sediment control plans, all plan required for obtaining native 
plant plan approval, and on any other plan as deemed necessary by the Town. 

 
G13   At least one sign per fronting street shall be posted on the site and must contain the 

following information: the grading permit number, the project name, map number (if 
appropriate), the authorized dust controller phone number(s), and  the Town phone 
number.  The signs must be obtained and installed by the developer using the sample 
format to be provided.  The signs must be present at the pre-construction meeting or 
the grading permit will not be issued.  The developer must keep the contact name and 
phone number active and current at all times.  Failure of the contact system may be 
considered grounds for revocation of the permit.   

 
G14. At the time of permit issuance the applicant shall be responsible for the payment of fees 

associated with electronic file storage of documents 
 
G15. The Applicant shall reimburse the Town for the Town's costs incurred in monitoring the 

developer's compliance with the Conditions of Approval including, but not limited to, 
inspections and review of developer's operations and activities for compliance with all 
applicable dust and noise operations.  This condition of approval is supplemental and in 
addition to normal building permit and public improvement permits that may be 
required pursuant to the Yucca Valley Municipal Code.   

 
G16. Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for any habitable structure in each 

phase of the project or final inspection for non-habitable structures, all improvements 
shall be constructed, final inspection performed, punch-list items completed, and all 
installations approved by the appropriate agency.  

 
G17. After final plan check by the Town, original mylars (4 mil) shall be submitted to the Town 

for signature by the Town Engineer. All original mylars submitted for Town Engineer’s 
signature must contain the design engineer’s wet signature and stamp and all other 
required signatures. 

 
G18. For any import or export of material, the applicant shall provide the following for review 

by the Town Engineer: the route of travel, number of trucks, daily schedule, and length 

2.a

Packet Pg. 95

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

01
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f A

pp
ro

va
l  

(1
23

9 
: V

ZW
 C

or
te

l)



Conditional Use Permit, CUP 03-15 
Cortel  
Planning Commission 01-12-2016 
 

Page 4 of 12 

of time required.  No hauling of material shall begin without the Town Engineer’s 
approval. 

 
G19. Prior to any work being performed within the public right-of-way, the applicant shall 

provide the name, address, telephone, facsimile number, and e-mail address of the 
Contractor to perform the work.  A description of the location, purpose, method of 
construction, and surface and subsurface area of the proposed work shall be supplied.  
A plat showing the proposed location and dimensions of the excavation and the facilities 
to be installed, maintained, or repaired in connection with the excavation, shall be 
provided and such other details as may be required by the Town Engineer.   

 
G20. The site shall be developed in accordance with the approved plans on file with the Town 

of Yucca Valley, in accordance with the Conditions of Approval approved for the project, 
and in accordance with the General Plan and Development Code.  Prior to any use of the 
project site or business activity being commenced thereon, all Conditions of Approval 
shall be completed to the satisfaction of the Town. 

 
G21.  Prior to issuances of building permits, all site plans, grading plans, landscape and 

irrigation plans, drainage/flood control plans, public improvement plans, erosion and 
sediment control plans, shall be coordinated for consistency with this approval. 

 
G22. The Town may allow phased constructed of the project provided that the improvements 

necessary to adequately serve or mitigate the impacts of each phase of development 
are completed prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for that phase. 

 
G23. The property owner shall be responsible for maintaining any undeveloped portion of the 

site in a manner that provides for the control of weeds, erosion and dust. 
 
G24. If archaeological, paleontological or historical resources are uncovered during 

excavation or construction activities at the project site, work in the affected area will 
cease immediately and a qualified person with appropriate expertise shall be consulted 
by the applicant regarding mitigation measures to preserve or record the find.  
Recommendations by the consultant shall be implemented as deemed necessary and 
feasible by the Town before work commences in the affected area.  If human remains 
are discovered, work in the affected area shall cease immediately and the County 
Coroner shall be notified.  If it is determined that the remains might be those of a Native 
American, the California Native American Heritage Commission shall be notified and 
appropriate measures provided by State law shall be implemented. 

 
G25. All street dedications shall be irrevocably offered to the public and shall continue in 

force until the Town accepts or abandons such offers.  All dedications shall be free of all 
encumbrances as approved by the Town Engineer. 

2.a

Packet Pg. 96

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

01
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f A

pp
ro

va
l  

(1
23

9 
: V

ZW
 C

or
te

l)



Conditional Use Permit, CUP 03-15 
Cortel  
Planning Commission 01-12-2016 
 

Page 5 of 12 

 
G26. The street design and circulation pattern of this project shall be coordinated with 

adjoining developments. 
 
G27. The final conditions of approval issued by the approving authority shall be 

photographically or electronically placed on bond (blue/black line) paper and included in 
the Grading and Street Improvement plan sets on 24” x 36” bond (blue/ black line) 
paper and submitted with the plans for plan check.  These conditions of approval shall 
become part of these plan sets and the approved plans shall be available in the field and 
during construction.  Plan check fees shall not be charged for sheets containing the 
Conditions of Approval. 

 
G28. Prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy, the applicant shall submit all 

improvement plans on compact disks in digital format acceptable to the Town Engineer. 
 
G29. Violations of any condition or restriction or prohibition set forth in these conditions, 

including all approved construction plans, public and private, for this project and subject 
to the Town’s overall project approval and these conditions of approval, shall subject 
the owner, applicant, developer or contractor(s) to the remedies as noted in the 
Municipal Code.  In addition, the Town Engineer  or Building Official may suspend all 
construction related activities for violation of any condition, restriction or prohibition 
set forth in these conditions until such time as it has been determined that all 
operations and activities are in conformance with these conditions. 

 
PLANNING CONDITIONS 
  
P1. The development of the property shall be in conformance with FEMA and the Town’s 

Floodplain Management Ordinance requirements. Adequate provision shall be made to 
intercept and conduct the existing tributary drainage flows around or through the site in 
a manner that will not adversely affect adjacent or downstream properties at the time 
the site is developed.  Protection shall be provided by constructing adequate drainage 
facilities, including, but not limited to modifying existing facilities or by securing a 
drainage easement. 

P2. Utilities shall be underground In accordance with Ordinance 233, Chapter 87.11 of the 
Yucca Valley Municipal Code, or as amended by Town Council.    

 
P3. All exterior lighting shall comply with the Ordinance 90 Outdoor Lighting, Chapter 8.70 

of the Yucca Valley Municipal Code and shall be illustrated on all construction plans. 
 

P4. A final plan identifying all protected plants as well as a Native Plant Relocation Plan with 
any area proposed to be disturbed in accordance with the Town’s Native Plant 

2.a

Packet Pg. 97

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

01
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f A

pp
ro

va
l  

(1
23

9 
: V

ZW
 C

or
te

l)



Conditional Use Permit, CUP 03-15 
Cortel  
Planning Commission 01-12-2016 
 

Page 6 of 12 

Protection Ordinance shall be submitted for approval prior to issuance of any 
construction permits, including grading and utility installations, for the project.  The 
applicant shall make every effort to relocate the native plants back onsite.   The 
adoption of native plants shall be consistent with the Native Plant Ordinance in effect at 
the time of issuance of grading permits.   

P5. The applicant shall install landscaping on the north, south and east sides of the block 
wall enclosure.  Prior to the issuance of any permits the applicant/owner shall provide 
three (3) copies of a landscape and irrigation plan showing the size, type and location of 
all plant and irrigation systems.   Said irrigation system shall incorporate a permanent 
automatic irrigation system, and all landscaping and irrigation systems shall be 
maintained in good condition at all times.  All ground within proposed landscape planter 
areas shall be provided with approved ground cover.  This shall include but not be 
limited to drought-tolerant plant materials and colored treatments.  The Landscape Plan 
shall be approved by Hi-Desert Water District   .    

   
 
ENGINEERING CONDITIONS 
 

E1. Construct 6-inch curb and gutter 20 feet south of centerline on Aberdeen Drive per 
Town of Yucca Valley Standard Drawing 200.  Any existing pavement on Aberdeen Dr. 
shall be removed to centerline and new asphalt installed from centerline to the new 
curb and gutter.  In lieu of installing the improvements on Aberdeen Drive, the 
applicant shall pay in-lieu fees of $92,500 for future installation of street improvement 
along the project’s frontage on Aberdeen Dr.   

E2. Construct 6-inch curb and gutter 20 feet west of centerline on Sage Avenue per Town 
of Yucca Valley Standard Drawing 200.  26 feet of asphalt pavement installed on Sage 
Avenue.  In lieu of installing the improvements on Aberdeen Dr., the applicant shall 
pay in-lieu fees of $104,000 for future installation of street improvement along the 
project’s frontage on Sage Avenue.   

E3. A grading plan, prepared by a registered civil engineer, shall be prepared showing, at a 
minimum, the area to be graded, top of wall/top of footing elevations, and the precise 
location of the proposed improvements on the site. 

 

E4. Prior to the issuance of a Grading Permit, a Grading Plan prepared by a recognized 
professional Civil Engineer shall be submitted, and the corresponding fees shall be paid 
to the Town prior to any grading activity. The rough and precise Grading Plans shall be 
reviewed and approved by the Town Engineer prior to issuance of grading permits. The 
applicant/owner is responsible for all fees incurred by the Town. Prior to Certificate of 
Occupancy, the Engineer-of-Record shall survey and certify that the site grading was 
completed in substantial conformance with the approved Grading Plans.  

2.a

Packet Pg. 98

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

01
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f A

pp
ro

va
l  

(1
23

9 
: V

ZW
 C

or
te

l)



Conditional Use Permit, CUP 03-15 
Cortel  
Planning Commission 01-12-2016 
 

Page 7 of 12 

E5. The grading shall be certified by a civil engineer that it was completed in substantial 
conformance with the approved Grading Plans.   Prior to the issuance of any building 
permits the project Engineer shall certify the site was graded in conformance to 
approved plans. 

E6. The Engineer-of-Record or other civil engineer shall survey and provide pad certification 
for the site prior to issuance of building permits. 

E7. Prior to the issuance of Permits, the Applicant shall comply with the recommendations 
of a site-specific Geotechnical and Soils Report which shall be reviewed and subject to 
Town approval. The report shall include recommendations for any onsite and offsite 
grading, foundations, compaction, structures, drainage, and existence of fault zones. It 
shall include recommendations for retention basins, slope stability and erosion control. 
The soils engineering report shall include data regarding the nature, distribution and 
strength of existing soils, conclusions and recommendations for grading procedures and 
design criteria for corrective measures, when necessary and opinions and 
recommendation covering the adequacy of sites for development.  The report shall 
identify if the site contains any areas susceptible to landslide risk, liquefaction potential 
and/or subsidence potential on the project site.  The report shall identify and include 
the location of major geologic features, topography and drainage, distribution and 
general nature of rock and soils, a reasonable evaluation and prediction of the 
performance of any proposed cut or fill in relation to geological conditions, and the 
capability of soils and substrata to support structures. 

 
E8. All property corners, lots, easements, street centerlines, and curve radii shall be 

monumented and horizontally tied to identified control points.  A copy of the 
monumentation survey and centerline tie notes shall be provided to the Town Engineer 
prior to certificate of occupancy.   

E9. All recommended approved measures identified in the Soils Report shall be 
incorporated into the project design.   

E10. Any grading or drainage onto private off-site or adjacent property shall require a written 
permission to grade and/or a permission to drain letter from the affected property 
owner.   

E11. No on-site or off-site work shall commence without obtaining the appropriate permits 
for the work involved from the Town.  The approved permits shall be readily available 
on the job-site for inspection by the Town personnel. 

E12. All grading activities shall minimize dust through compliance with MDAQMD Rules 402 
and 403. 

E13. Prior to issuance of a grading permit, a Fugitive Dust and Erosion and Sediment Control 
Plan shall be submitted and approved by the Town Engineer.  The Fugitive Dust and 

2.a

Packet Pg. 99

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

01
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f A

pp
ro

va
l  

(1
23

9 
: V

ZW
 C

or
te

l)



Conditional Use Permit, CUP 03-15 
Cortel  
Planning Commission 01-12-2016 
 

Page 8 of 12 

Erosion and Sediment Control Plan shall illustrate all proposed phasing for construction 
of the project. 

 

E14. Prior to any work being performed in the public right-of-way, fees shall be paid and an 
encroachment permit shall be obtained from the Town.  The Applicant shall apply for an 
encroachment permit from the Town for utility trenching, utility connection, or any 
other encroachment onto public right-of-way. The Applicant shall be responsible for the 
associated costs and arrangements with each public utility.   

E15. The Applicant shall restore any pavement cuts required for installation or extension of 
utilities for his project within the public right-of-way. In all cases where cuts are allowed, 
the Applicant is required to patch the cuts to Town standards and the approval of the 
Town Engineer.  The patching shall include a grinding of the pavement to a width 4 feet 
beyond the edge of the trench on each side, or as determined by the Town Engineer, 
and replacement with a full-depth asphalt concrete recommended by the Soils Engineer.   

E16. In conjunction with the rough grading plan submittal, street plans prepared by a 
recognized professional Civil Engineer shall be submitted, and the corresponding fees 
shall be paid to the Town. The final street plans shall be reviewed and approved by the 
Town Engineer.   The applicant/owner is responsible for all fees incurred by the Town. 
Prior to Certificate of Occupancy, the Engineer-of-Record shall survey and certify that 
the site grading was completed in substantial conformance with the approved Grading 
Plans.  

E17. The Applicant shall accept and properly dispose of all off-site drainage flowing onto or 
through the site. 

E18. The Applicant shall install all water and sewer systems required to serve the project.  All 
water and sewer systems shall be completed to the requirements of the Hi Desert 
Water District. 

E19. The Applicant shall observe the construction of this project to make certain that no 
damage or potential for damage occurs to adjacent roadway, existing improvements, 
adjacent property and other infrastructure.  The applicant shall be responsible for the 
repair of any damage occurring to offsite infrastructure and/or property damage as 
determined by the Town Engineer.  The applicant shall repair any such damage prior to 
certificate of occupancy. If the damage is such that it is not repairable within a 
reasonable amount of time as determined by the Town Engineer, the applicant may 
petition the Town Engineer for additional conditions that may allow him the time, 
amount of surety and other requirements to repair the damage. 

E20. The Applicant shall be responsible for all improvements constructed within the public 
right-of-way as required by the conditions of approval.  The improvements shall be 
constructed to the standards and requirements as determined and approved by the 
Town Engineer.  Any improvements not considered to be to the required standards shall 

2.a

Packet Pg. 100

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

01
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f A

pp
ro

va
l  

(1
23

9 
: V

ZW
 C

or
te

l)



Conditional Use Permit, CUP 03-15 
Cortel  
Planning Commission 01-12-2016 
 

Page 9 of 12 

be replaced by the Applicant.  The Applicant shall be required to maintain and repair 
those improvements prior to and after acceptance by the Town Council for the length of 
time required by the applicable conditions, standards and ordinances.   

E21. All improvement plans shall be designed by a Registered Civil Engineer.   

E22. Any area which remains undeveloped for a period of more than 30 days shall be 
stabilized using either chemical stabilizers or a desert wildflower mix hydroseed on the 
affected portion of the site. 

E23. Prior to the issuance of any grading permit to disturb, expose or stockpile an aggregate 
of more than one acre of land, an erosion and sediment control plan for the project shall 
be submitted to and approved by the Town Engineer.   

 
E24. The Applicant shall be responsible for inspection, modification, and proper maintenance 

of the erosion control devices as necessary.   If the Applicant fails or refuses to properly 
maintain the erosion control devices, the Town official may cause emergency 
maintenance work to be done in order to protect potentially impacted property. 

 
E25. If construction of erosion control systems outside of the project boundaries is 

necessary, permission to construct such systems from the owner of such off-site 
property is required. Plans for the off-site system shall be included with the on-site 
plans submitted to the Town Engineer. The plans for the off-site erosion control system 
shall include permission to grade and maintain the erosion control system from all 
affected property owners and letters of clearance and/or permits from all appropriate 
governmental entities. 

E26. The Applicant shall submit a post construction erosion and sediment control plan which 
identifies and illustrates all necessary improvements to prevent the movement and or 
loss of any soil and sediment materials from the project site, including all individual lots 
for construction of habitable structures, all slope banks, and all areas of the site capable 
of resulting in the deposit of soils and sediments with the street or storm drain system.  
The post construction erosion and sediment improvements shall be certified by a civil 
engineer that they were constructed in substantial conformance with the approved 
plans and specifications. 

 
E27. It is understood that the Conditional Use Permit plans correctly shows all existing 

easements, traveled ways and drainage courses, and that their omission may require 
the Conditional Use Permit plans to be resubmitted for further consideration. 

 
E28. A construction area traffic control plan, including temporary and final permanent 

striping, shall be designed by a registered Civil Engineer or Traffic Engineer for review 
and approval by the Town Engineer for any street construction, closure, detour or other 
disruption to traffic circulation.   

 

2.a

Packet Pg. 101

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

01
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f A

pp
ro

va
l  

(1
23

9 
: V

ZW
 C

or
te

l)



Conditional Use Permit, CUP 03-15 
Cortel  
Planning Commission 01-12-2016 
 

Page 10 of 12 

E29. All street closures must be approved by Town Council action. 
 
E30. The following shall information regarding the presence of the Marine Corps Air Ground 

Combat Center (MGAGCC) shall be recorded on the title of each property contained 
within the boundaries of the Conditional Use Permit.   

 
“The Marine Corps Air Ground Combat Center is located in the Morongo Basin.  To 
prepare Marines for future conflicts, the MGAGCC carries out realistic training with 
military munitions, both day and night.  As a result, Military aircraft fly over the area, 
and military vehicles drive on and off the base every day.  This property is located 
directly under two aircraft flying routes and is located approximately 13 miles from the 
installation boundary.  Consequently, you should expect to hear military training, see 
low-flying military aircraft, and encounter other experiences associated with the 
important mission of the MCAGCC”.   
 

E31. Improvement plans shall be based upon a centerline profile, extending beyond the 
project boundaries a minimum distance of 300 feet at a grade and alignment approved 
by the Town Engineer.   

 

E32. With submittal of improvement plans including but not limited to grading plans, street 
improvement plans, storm drain and retention/detention basin plans, and erosion and 
sediment control plans, the Applicant shall cause to be formed, or shall be annexed into 
an existing, maintenance district(s) for landscape, lighting, streets, drainage facilities or 
other infrastructure as required by the Town.  The Applicant shall initiate the 
maintenance and benefit assessment district(s) formation, or annexation, by submitting 
a landowner petition and consent form (provided by the Town) and deposit necessary 
fees concurrent with the application for street and grading plan review and approval; 
and said maintenance and benefit assessment district(s) shall be established concurrent 
with the approval of the final map in the case of the subdivision of land, or prior to 
issuance of any certificate of occupancy where there is no subdivision of land.   

 
 
BUILDING AND SAFETY CONDITIONS 
 
B1. Applicant/developer shall provide plans and obtain the required permits that comply 

with applicable provisions of the 2013 California Building, Plumbing, Electrical, and 
Mechanical Codes, the 2013 California Green Building Standards Code, and Title 24. 

  
B2. All Plans to be stamped and wet signed by California Licensed Engineer or Architect. 

 
B3. Provide all required ADA access plan (Parking, path of travel, building access, restroom, 

ADA workspace, etc.) per 2013 CBC, Chapter 11B. 

2.a

Packet Pg. 102

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

01
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f A

pp
ro

va
l  

(1
23

9 
: V

ZW
 C

or
te

l)



Conditional Use Permit, CUP 03-15 
Cortel  
Planning Commission 01-12-2016 
 

Page 11 of 12 

 
B4. Obtain San Bernardino Environmental Health approval for on-site septic/Treatment 

system. 
 

B5. Obtain San Bernardino County Fire approval for building and site improvements. 
 

B6. Obtain will serve letter from Hi-Desert Water. 
 

B7. Prior to final certificate of occupancy, as required by California State Health and Safety 
Code Section 19850, the applicant shall provide 1 copy of the stamped approved plans 
and revisions on CD in PDF format to the Town of Yucca Valley Building and Safety 
Division to serve as the official file copy of the approved building plans. 

 
B8. Submit 2 complete sets of plans and provide 1 electronic copy of all plans and all 

calculations at the initial plan review submittal. 
  
 
Fire Conditions 
 
F1. Prior to any construction occurring on any parcel, the applicant shall contact the Fire 

Department for verification of current fire protection requirements.   All new 
construction shall comply with the current Uniform Fire Code requirements and all 
applicable statutes, codes, ordinances and standards of the Fire Department. 

 
F2. Prior to any land disturbance, the water systems shall be designed to meet the required 

fire flow for this development and shall be approved by the Fire Department.    
 
F3. The Applicant shall be responsible for all fees required by San Bernardino County Fire 

Department. 
 
F4. The Development shall have a minimum of two points of vehicular access.   These are 

for fire/emergency equipment access and evacuation routes. 
 
F5. All buildings shall have access provided by approved roads, alleys and private drives with 

a minimum twenty six (26) foot unobstructed width and vertically to fourteen (14) feet 
six (6) inches in height.   Other recognized standards may be more restrictive by 
requiring wider access provisions. 

 
F6. Not less than 2 complete sets of Building Plans shall be submitted to the Fire 

Department for review and approval. 
 

2.a

Packet Pg. 103

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

01
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f A

pp
ro

va
l  

(1
23

9 
: V

ZW
 C

or
te

l)



Conditional Use Permit, CUP 03-15 
Cortel  
Planning Commission 01-12-2016 
 

Page 12 of 12 

F7. The applicant shall provide the Fire Department with a letter from the serving water 
company, certifying that the required water improvements have been made or that the 
existing fire hydrants and water system will meet distance and fire flow requirements.   
Fire flow water supply shall be in place prior to placing combustible materials on the 
job-site. 

 
 
 
 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE APPROVED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL WILL BE SATISFIED PRIOR 
TO OR AT THE TIMEFRAMES SPECIFIED AS SHOWN ABOVE.  I UNDERSTAND THAT FAILURE TO 
SATISFY ANY ONE OF THESE CONDITIONS WILL PROHIBIT THE ISSUANCE OF ANY PERMIT OR 
ANY FINAL MAP APPROVAL. 

 
 
Applicant’s Signature                                                                      Date       
 

 
 

 
  

 

2.a

Packet Pg. 104

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

01
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 o
f A

pp
ro

va
l  

(1
23

9 
: V

ZW
 C

or
te

l)



   
TOWN OF YUCCA VALLEY 

 
PROJECT NO.: CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, CUP 03-15 CORTEL  
            
  

        
 
 

 
 
 
 
   
       

 
 
 
                                             

                                                     
                         
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
           
 GENERAL PLAN LAND USE MAP 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PIQ 

2.b

Packet Pg. 105

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

02
 S

ta
nd

ar
d 

Ex
hi

bt
s 

 (1
23

9 
: V

ZW
 C

or
te

l)



 
 
 

TOWN OF YUCCA VALLEY 
 

PROJECT NO.: CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, CUP 03-15 CORTEL 
 
       

 
 

         
 
 
 

   
 
 
  
 
 
  
 
  

ASSESSORS PARCEL MAP

PIQ 

2.b

Packet Pg. 106

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

02
 S

ta
nd

ar
d 

Ex
hi

bt
s 

 (1
23

9 
: V

ZW
 C

or
te

l)



 
 

 TOWN OF YUCCA VALLEY  
 

PROJECT NO.: CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, CUP 03-15 CORTEL  
 
 
           
              

 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
       
 
 

  
AERIAL PHOTO 

 
 
 
 

PIQ 

2.b

Packet Pg. 107

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

02
 S

ta
nd

ar
d 

Ex
hi

bt
s 

 (1
23

9 
: V

ZW
 C

or
te

l)



 
 

 

TOWN OF YUCCA VALLEY 
 

PROJECT NO.: CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, CUP 03-15 CORTEL     
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

ALQUIST PRIOLO MAP 

PIQ 

2.b

Packet Pg. 108

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

02
 S

ta
nd

ar
d 

Ex
hi

bt
s 

 (1
23

9 
: V

ZW
 C

or
te

l)



 
 
 

TOWN OF YUCCA VALLEY 
 

PROJECT NO.: CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, CUP 03-15 CORTEL     
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

FEMA FLOOD MAP 
 

PIQ 

2.b

Packet Pg. 109

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

02
 S

ta
nd

ar
d 

Ex
hi

bt
s 

 (1
23

9 
: V

ZW
 C

or
te

l)



 
 

TOWN OF YUCCA VALLEY 
 

PROJECT NO.: CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, CUP 03-15 CORTEL  
            
  

        
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
           
 ZONING MAP 

 

PIQ 

2.b

Packet Pg. 110

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

02
 S

ta
nd

ar
d 

Ex
hi

bt
s 

 (1
23

9 
: V

ZW
 C

or
te

l)



S
O

N
G

B
IR

D
34

50
 S

A
G

E
 A

V
E

N
U

E
Y

U
C

C
A

 V
A

LL
E

Y
, C

A
 9

22
84

T-
1

TI
TL

E 
SH

EE
T

PR
O

JE
C

T 
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N

C
O

D
E 

C
O

M
PL

IA
N

C
E

D
R

IV
IN

G
 D

IR
EC

TI
O

N
S

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 IN

FO
R

M
A

TI
O

N
:

S
IT

E
 N

A
M

E
:

S
O

N
G

B
IR

D
S

IT
E

 A
D

D
R

E
S

S
:

34
50

 S
A

G
E

 A
V

E
N

U
E

Y
U

C
C

A
 V

A
LL

E
Y

, C
A

 9
22

84
JU

R
IS

D
IC

TI
O

N
:

TO
W

N
 O

F 
Y

U
C

C
A

 V
A

LL
E

Y

TO
:

34
50

 S
A

G
E

 A
V

E
N

U
E

Y
U

C
C

A
 V

A
LL

E
Y

, C
A

 9
22

84

1.
G

E
T 

O
N

 C
A

-1
33

 N
 F

R
O

M
 S

A
N

D
 C

A
N

Y
O

N
 A

V
E

2.
D

R
IV

E
 F

R
O

M
 C

A
-2

41
 N

, C
A

-9
1 

E
, C

A
-6

0 
E

 &
 I-

10
 T

O
 R

IV
E

R
S

ID
E

 C
O

U
N

TY
3.

C
O

N
TI

N
U

E
 O

N
 C

A
-6

2 
E

/2
9 

P
A

LM
S

 H
W

Y
. D

R
IV

E
 T

O
 A

B
E

R
D

E
E

N
 D

R
. I

N
 S

A
N

 B
E

R
N

A
D

IN
O

4.
A

R
R

IV
E

 A
T 

34
50

 S
A

G
E

 A
V

E
N

U
E,

Y
U

C
C

A
 V

A
LL

E
Y

, C
A

 9
22

84

VI
C

IN
IT

Y 
M

A
P

FR
O

M
: 1

55
05

 S
A

N
D

 C
A

N
Y

O
N

 A
V

E
N

U
E

IR
V

IN
E

, C
A

 9
26

18

A
-1

A
-4

SH
EE

T
T-

1

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

TI
TL

E
 S

H
E

E
T

R
EV

P
LA

N
N

E
R

:

C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

:

SA
C

 W
IR

EL
ES

S 
SI

G
N

A
TU

R
E 

B
LO

C
K

D
IS

C
IP

LI
N

E
:

S
IG

N
A

TU
R

E
:

S
IT

E
 A

C
Q

U
IS

IT
IO

N
:

LA
N

D
LO

R
D

:

S
O

U
TH

 &
 W

E
S

T 
E

LE
V

A
TI

O
N

S

S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

D
A

TE
:

A
-5

N
O

R
TH

 &
 E

A
S

T 
E

LE
V

A
TI

O
N

S

11 0

A
-2

E
N

LA
R

G
E

D
 S

IT
E

 P
LA

N

1

G
EN

ER
A

L 
C

O
N

TR
A

C
TO

R
 N

O
TE

S

ZO
N

IN
G

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

S

D
O

 N
O

T 
S

C
A

LE
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 IF
 N

O
T 

FU
LL

 S
IZ

E
 (2

4 
X

 3
6)

C
O

N
TR

A
C

TO
R

 S
H

A
LL

 V
E

R
IF

Y
 A

LL
 P

LA
N

S
 A

N
D

 E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 D
IM

E
N

S
IO

N
S

 A
N

D
 C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

S
 O

N
 T

H
E

JO
B

 S
IT

E
 A

N
D

 S
H

A
LL

 IM
M

E
D

IA
TE

LY
 N

O
TI

FY
 T

H
E

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T 

IN
 W

R
IT

IN
G

 O
F 

A
N

Y
 D

IS
C

R
E

P
A

N
C

IE
S

B
E

FO
R

E
 P

R
O

C
E

E
D

IN
G

 W
IT

H
 T

H
E

 W
O

R
K

 O
R

 B
E

 R
E

S
P

O
N

S
IB

LE
 F

O
R

 T
H

E
 S

A
M

E
.

A
S

S
E

S
S

O
R

'S
 P

A
R

C
E

L 
N

U
M

B
E

R

C
U

R
R

E
N

T 
ZO

N
IN

G
:

TY
P

E
 O

F 
C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
:

A
R

E
A

 O
F 

C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

:

H
A

N
D

IC
A

P
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
M

E
N

TS
:

FA
C

IL
IT

Y
 IS

 U
N

M
A

N
N

E
D

 A
N

D
 N

O
T 

FO
R

 H
U

M
A

N
H

A
B

IT
A

TI
O

N
. H

A
N

D
IC

A
P

P
E

D
 A

C
C

E
S

S
 N

O
T 

R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
.

V
-B

26
'-0

" x
 2

6'
-0

" =
 6

76
 S

Q
 F

TA
P

N
:0

59
7-

21
1-

06

R
R

-2
.5

 (R
U

R
A

L 
R

E
S

ID
E

N
TI

A
L,

 O
N

E
 D

W
E

LL
IN

G
 U

N
IT

 2
.5

 A
C

R
E

S
)

C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

 IN
FO

R
M

A
TI

O
N

O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
:

U

A
P

P
LI

C
A

N
T/

LE
S

S
E

E

15
50

5 
S

A
N

D
 C

A
N

Y
O

N
 A

V
E

N
U

E
IR

V
IN

E
, C

A
 9

26
18

O
FF

IC
E

: (
94

9)
 2

86
-7

00
0

A
P

P
LI

C
A

N
T'

S
 R

E
P

R
E

S
E

N
TA

TI
V

E

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 O

W
N

E
R

:
O

W
N

E
R

:
G

U
ID

O
 D

IM
IT

R
I

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
:

29
61

 E
L 

C
O

Y
O

TE
 R

U
N

FA
LL

B
R

O
O

K
, C

A
 9

20
28

TE
LE

P
H

O
N

E
:

(7
60

) 7
28

-7
69

5PR
O

JE
C

T 
SU

M
M

A
R

Y

20
13

 C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
 A

D
M

IN
IS

TR
A

TI
V

E
 C

O
D

E
 (I

N
C

L 
TI

TL
E

 2
4 

&
 2

5)
20

13
 C

A
LI

FO
R

N
IA

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 C
O

D
E

20
13

 C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
 E

LE
C

TR
IC

A
L 

C
O

D
E

20
13

 C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
 F

IR
E

 C
O

D
E

C
IT

Y
/C

O
U

N
TY

 O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E

S

1

PR
O

JE
C

T 
TE

A
M

N
O

R
TH

S
H

E
E

T 
TI

TL
E

:

IS
S

U
E

 S
TA

TU
S

P
R

O
P

R
IE

TA
R

Y
 IN

FO
R

M
A

TI
O

N
TH

E
 IN

FO
R

M
A

TI
O

N
 C

O
N

TA
IN

E
D

 IN
 T

H
IS

 S
E

T 
O

F
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 IS
 P

R
O

P
R

IE
TA

R
Y

 &
 C

O
N

FI
D

E
N

TI
A

L 
TO

V
E

R
IZ

O
N

 W
IR

E
LE

S
S

A
N

Y
 U

S
E

 O
R

 D
IS

C
LO

S
U

R
E

 O
TH

E
R

 T
H

A
N

 A
S

 IT
 R

E
LA

TE
S

TO
 V

E
R

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
E

LE
S

S
 IS

 S
TR

IC
TL

Y
 P

R
O

H
IB

IT
E

D

S
A

N
 D

IE
G

O
, C

A
 9

21
12

61
9.

73
6.

37
66

50
15

 S
H

O
R

E
H

A
M

 P
LA

C
E

w
w

w
.s

ac
w

.c
om

E
 N

 G
 I 

N
 E

 E
 R

 I 
N

 G
   

G
 R

 O
 U

 P

W
  I

  R
  E

  L
  E

  S
  S

D
E

S
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
D

A
TE

B
Y

05
/0

5/
15

R
H

R
E

V
.

0

3450 SAGE AVENUE
YUCCA VALLEY, CA 92284

SONGBIRD10
0%

 Z
O

N
IN

G

10
/1

3/
15

E
C

1
FA

U
X

 W
A

TE
R

 T
O

W
E

R

S
IT

E

A
-3

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T 

&
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
 L

A
Y

O
U

T

1

B
E

R
T 

H
A

ZE
 A

N
D

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

TE
S

, I
N

C
.

31
88

 A
IR

W
A

Y
 A

V
E

N
U

E
, S

TE
 K

1
C

O
S

TA
 M

E
S

A
, C

A
 9

26
26

TE
LE

P
H

O
N

E
: (

71
4)

 5
57

-1
56

7

A
R

C
H

IT
EC

T:
SU

R
VE

YO
R

:

U
TI

LI
TY

 C
O

O
R

D
IN

A
TO

R
:

S
A

C
 W

IR
E

LE
S

S
, L

LC
.

N
E

S
TO

R
 P

O
P

O
W

Y
C

H
, A

IA
50

15
 S

H
O

R
E

H
A

M
 P

LA
C

E
S

A
N

 D
IE

G
O

, C
A

 9
21

14
C

O
N

TA
C

T:
 J

U
LI

A
N

 B
R

IA
N

O
TE

LE
P

H
O

N
E

:(
61

9)
73

6-
37

66
FA

X
: (

61
9)

 7
36

-3
72

1

PL
A

N
N

IN
G

SI
TE

 A
C

Q
U

IS
IT

IO
N

C
B

M
S

, I
N

C
.

C
O

N
TA

C
T:

 E
D

 M
A

R
Q

U
E

Z
TE

LE
P

H
O

N
E

: (
90

9)
 3

22
-7

20
2

Kn
ow

 w
ha

t's

R

TO
 O

B
TA

IN
 L

O
C

A
TI

O
N

 O
F 

P
A

R
TI

C
IP

A
N

TS
U

N
D

E
R

G
R

O
U

N
D

 F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S
 B

E
FO

R
E

Y
O

U
 D

IG
 IN

 C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
 (S

O
U

TH
), 

C
A

LL
D

IG
 A

LE
R

T
TO

LL
 F

R
E

E
: 1

-8
00

-2
27

-2
60

0 
O

R
w

w
w

.d
ig

al
er

t.o
rg

C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
 S

TA
TU

TE
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
S

 M
IN

 O
F 

2
W

O
R

K
IN

G
 D

A
Y

S
 N

O
TI

C
E

B
E

FO
R

E
 Y

O
U

 E
X

C
A

V
A

TE

TH
IS

 P
R

O
JE

C
T 

IS
 A

 V
E

R
IZ

O
N

 W
IR

E
LE

S
S

 U
N

M
A

N
N

E
D

 T
E

LE
C

O
M

M
U

N
IC

A
TI

O
N

 W
IR

E
LE

S
S

 F
A

C
IL

IT
Y

.
IT

 W
IL

L 
C

O
N

S
IS

T 
O

F 
TH

E
 F

O
LL

O
W

IN
G

:

N
E

W
 V

E
R

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
E

LE
S

S
 3

0'
-0

" x
 3

0'
-0

" L
E

A
S

E
 A

R
E

A
N

E
W

 V
E

R
IZ

O
N

 W
IR

E
LE

S
S

 8
'-0

" H
IG

H
 C

M
U

 W
A

LL
(2

) N
E

W
 V

E
R

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
E

LE
S

S
 G

P
S

 A
N

TE
N

N
A

S
(1

) N
E

W
 V

E
R

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
E

LE
S

S
 5

2'
-0

" T
A

LL
 F

A
U

X
 W

A
TE

R
 T

O
W

E
R

(1
2)

 N
E

W
 V

E
R

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
E

LE
S

S
 R

R
U

S
 U

N
IT

S
 W

IT
H

 (1
2)

 A
2 

M
O

D
U

LE
S

, (
1)

 P
E

R
 R

R
U

(1
2)

 N
E

W
 V

E
R

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
E

LE
S

S
 P

A
N

E
L 

A
N

TE
N

N
A

S
(2

) N
E

W
 V

E
R

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
E

LE
S

S
 R

A
Y

C
A

P
S

(3
) N

E
W

 V
E

R
IZ

O
N

 W
IR

E
LE

S
S

 H
Y

B
R

ID
 C

A
B

LE
S

(1
) N

E
W

 V
E

R
IZ

O
N

 W
IR

E
LE

S
S

 D
C

 G
E

N
E

R
A

TO
R

(1
) N

E
W

 V
E

R
IZ

O
N

 W
IR

E
LE

S
S

 M
C

E
 M

A
IN

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

(1
) N

E
W

 V
E

R
IZ

O
N

 W
IR

E
LE

S
S

 M
C

E
 S

P
A

R
E

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

C
O

R
TE

L
C

O
N

TA
C

T:
 A

N
D

R
E

A
 U

R
B

A
S

TE
LE

P
H

O
N

E
: (

90
9)

 5
28

-6
92

5

C
O

R
TE

L
R

Y
A

N
 D

O
U

G
LA

S
TE

LE
P

H
O

N
E

: (
61

9)
 3

01
-5

16
4

C
O

R
TE

L
C

O
N

TA
C

T:
 A

N
D

R
E

A
 U

R
B

A
S

TE
LE

P
H

O
N

E
: (

90
9)

 5
82

-6
92

5

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 U
S

E
:

V
A

C
A

N
T 

LO
T

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 U
S

E
:

U
N

M
A

N
N

E
D

 T
E

LE
C

O
M

M
U

N
IC

A
TI

O
N

S
 F

A
C

IL
IT

Y

PO
W

ER
 C

O
M

PA
N

Y:
S

C
E

TE
LE

P
H

O
N

E
: (

80
0)

 6
55

-4
55

5

LE
G

A
L 

D
E

S
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
:

A
 P

O
R

TI
O

N
 O

F 
S

E
C

TI
O

N
 II

, T
O

W
N

S
H

IP
 I 

N
O

R
TH

, R
A

N
G

E
 5

 E
A

S
T,

 S
A

N
 B

E
R

N
A

R
D

IN
O

 B
A

S
E

 A
N

D
 M

E
R

ID
IA

N
, I

N
 T

H
E

 T
O

W
N

 O
F 

Y
U

C
C

A
 V

A
LL

E
Y

, C
O

U
N

TY
 O

F 
S

A
N

 B
E

R
N

A
R

D
IN

O
, S

TA
TE

 O
F

C
A

LI
FO

R
N

IA
, M

O
R

E
 P

A
R

TI
C

U
LA

R
LY

 D
E

S
C

R
IB

E
D

 A
S

 F
O

LL
O

W
S

: T
H

E
 E

A
S

T 
41

.8
4 

A
C

R
E

S
 O

F 
TH

E
N

O
R

TH
 8

0.
00

 A
C

R
E

S
 O

F 
TH

E
 N

O
R

TH
E

A
S

T 
Q

U
A

R
TE

R
 O

F 
S

A
ID

 S
E

C
TI

O
N

 II
.

S
A

ID
 L

E
G

A
L 

IS
 M

A
D

E
 P

U
R

S
U

A
N

T 
TO

 C
E

R
TI

FI
C

A
TE

 O
F 

C
O

M
P

LI
A

N
C

E
 N

O
. 0

1-
05

, L
LA

 0
1-

05
,

R
E

C
O

R
D

E
D

 A
P

R
IL

 8
, 2

00
5 

A
S

 IN
S

TR
U

M
E

N
T 

N
O

. 2
00

5-
24

65
00

, A
N

D
 R

E
-R

E
C

O
R

D
E

D
 A

P
R

IL
 2

6,
20

05
 A

S
 IN

S
TR

U
M

E
N

T 
N

O
. 2

00
5-

29
06

95
, O

F 
O

FF
IC

IA
L 

R
E

C
O

R
D

S
.

C
-1

TO
P

O
G

R
A

P
H

IC
 S

U
R

V
E

Y

1

2.c

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

03
 P

la
ns

 a
nd

 E
le

va
tio

ns
  (

12
39

 : 
VZ

W
 C

or
te

l)



30
'

0'
15

'
30

'
60

'

2.c

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

03
 P

la
ns

 a
nd

 E
le

va
tio

ns
  (

12
39

 : 
VZ

W
 C

or
te

l)



SI
TE

 P
LA

N

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
A

-1
1

N
O

R
TH

S
H

E
E

T 
TI

TL
E

:

IS
S

U
E

 S
TA

TU
S

P
R

O
P

R
IE

TA
R

Y
 IN

FO
R

M
A

TI
O

N
TH

E
 IN

FO
R

M
A

TI
O

N
 C

O
N

TA
IN

E
D

 IN
 T

H
IS

 S
E

T 
O

F
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 IS
 P

R
O

P
R

IE
TA

R
Y

 &
 C

O
N

FI
D

E
N

TI
A

L 
TO

V
E

R
IZ

O
N

 W
IR

E
LE

S
S

A
N

Y
 U

S
E

 O
R

 D
IS

C
LO

S
U

R
E

 O
TH

E
R

 T
H

A
N

 A
S

 IT
 R

E
LA

TE
S

TO
 V

E
R

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
E

LE
S

S
 IS

 S
TR

IC
TL

Y
 P

R
O

H
IB

IT
E

D

S
A

N
 D

IE
G

O
, C

A
 9

21
12

61
9.

73
6.

37
66

50
15

 S
H

O
R

E
H

A
M

 P
LA

C
E

w
w

w
.s

ac
w

.c
om

E
 N

 G
 I 

N
 E

 E
 R

 I 
N

 G
   

G
 R

 O
 U

 P

W
  I

  R
  E

  L
  E

  S
  S

D
E

S
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
D

A
TE

B
Y

05
/0

5/
15

R
H

R
E

V
.

0

3450 SAGE AVENUE
YUCCA VALLEY, CA 92284

SONGBIRD10
0%

 Z
O

N
IN

G

10
/1

3/
15

E
C

1
FA

U
X

 W
A

TE
R

 T
O

W
E

R

A
B

ER
D

EE
N

 R
D

.

N
EW

 1
2'

-0
" 

W
ID

E 
VE

R
IZ

O
N

W
IR

EL
ES

S 
N

O
N

-E
XC

LU
SI

VE
A

C
C

ES
S 

EA
SE

M
EN

T

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 U
TI

LI
TY

 P
O

LE
#1

74
21

69
E

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
W

IR
EL

ES
S 

PO
W

ER
/T

EL
C

O
P.

O
.C

.

5'
-0

"

A
PN

: 0
59

7-
21

1-
06

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 L

IN
E

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 D
IR

T
LO

T

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 C
H

A
IN

 L
IN

K
FE

N
C

E

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S

5'
-0

" 
W

ID
E 

PO
W

ER
/T

EL
C

O
EA

SE
M

EN
T

PROPERTY LINE
PROPERTY LINE

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

SAGE AVE.

12'-0"
EASEMENT

1 A
-4

2 A
-4

1 A
-5

2 A
-5

20'-0"
EASEMENT

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 2
0'

-0
" W

ID
E

U
TI

LI
TY

 E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

30'-0"

40'-0"

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 4
0'

-0
" W

ID
E

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 A
N

D
 R

O
A

D
E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

30
'-0

"
114'-2"

SE
E 

EN
LA

R
G

ED
 S

IT
E 

PL
A

N

1 A
-2

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 3
0'

-0
" W

ID
E

R
O

A
D

 E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

20
'-0

"
E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 U
TI

LI
TY

 P
O

LE

35
'-3

"

2.c

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

03
 P

la
ns

 a
nd

 E
le

va
tio

ns
  (

12
39

 : 
VZ

W
 C

or
te

l)



EN
LA

R
G

ED
 S

IT
E

PL
A

N

A
-2

EN
LA

R
G

ED
 S

IT
E 

PL
A

N
1

N
O

R
TH

S
H

E
E

T 
TI

TL
E

:

IS
S

U
E

 S
TA

TU
S

P
R

O
P

R
IE

TA
R

Y
 IN

FO
R

M
A

TI
O

N
TH

E
 IN

FO
R

M
A

TI
O

N
 C

O
N

TA
IN

E
D

 IN
 T

H
IS

 S
E

T 
O

F
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 IS
 P

R
O

P
R

IE
TA

R
Y

 &
 C

O
N

FI
D

E
N

TI
A

L 
TO

V
E

R
IZ

O
N

 W
IR

E
LE

S
S

A
N

Y
 U

S
E

 O
R

 D
IS

C
LO

S
U

R
E

 O
TH

E
R

 T
H

A
N

 A
S

 IT
 R

E
LA

TE
S

TO
 V

E
R

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
E

LE
S

S
 IS

 S
TR

IC
TL

Y
 P

R
O

H
IB

IT
E

D

S
A

N
 D

IE
G

O
, C

A
 9

21
12

61
9.

73
6.

37
66

50
15

 S
H

O
R

E
H

A
M

 P
LA

C
E

w
w

w
.s

ac
w

.c
om

E
 N

 G
 I 

N
 E

 E
 R

 I 
N

 G
   

G
 R

 O
 U

 P

W
  I

  R
  E

  L
  E

  S
  S

D
E

S
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
D

A
TE

B
Y

05
/0

5/
15

R
H

R
E

V
.

0

3450 SAGE AVENUE
YUCCA VALLEY, CA 92284

SONGBIRD10
0%

 Z
O

N
IN

G

10
/1

3/
15

E
C

1
FA

U
X

 W
A

TE
R

 T
O

W
E

R

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 D
IR

T
LO

T

N
O

TE
:

TH
E 

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 U

TI
LI

TY
 R

O
U

TE
S 

(F
IB

ER
 &

 P
O

W
ER

)
A

R
E 

PR
EL

IM
IN

A
R

Y 
A

N
D

 T
H

EY
 M

A
Y 

 C
H

A
N

G
E 

A
T 

TH
E

TI
M

E 
O

F 
FI

N
A

L 
U

TI
LI

TY
 D

ES
IG

N
 IS

SU
E 

FO
R

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

 B
Y 

U
TI

LI
TY

 P
R

O
VI

D
ER

.

PROPERTY LINE

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

A
R

EA

1 A
-3

A
B

ER
D

EE
N

 R
D

.

SAGE AVE.

12'-0"
EASEMENT

11
'-5

"

N
EW

 1
2'

-0
" 

W
ID

E 
VE

R
IZ

O
N

W
IR

EL
ES

S 
N

O
N

-E
XC

LU
SI

VE
A

C
C

ES
S 

EA
SE

M
EN

T

30
'-0

"

5'
-0

"
E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 U
TI

LI
TY

 P
O

LE
#1

74
21

69
E

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
W

IR
EL

ES
S 

PO
W

ER
/T

EL
C

O
P.

O
.C

.

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 4
0'

-0
" W

ID
E

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 A
N

D
 R

O
A

D
E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 3
0'

-0
" W

ID
E

R
O

A
D

 E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 2
0'

-0
" W

ID
E

U
TI

LI
TY

 E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S

5'
-0

" 
W

ID
E 

PO
W

ER
/T

EL
C

O
EA

SE
M

EN
T

2.c

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

03
 P

la
ns

 a
nd

 E
le

va
tio

ns
  (

12
39

 : 
VZ

W
 C

or
te

l)



SO
U

TH
 &

 W
ES

T

1

A
-4

W
ES

T 
EL

EV
A

TI
O

N

G
R

O
U

N
D

 L
E

V
E

L
E

LE
V

. 0
'-0

" A
G

L

A
G

L 
0'

-0
" =

 3
,6

09
' A

M
S

L

S
H

E
E

T 
TI

TL
E

:

IS
S

U
E

 S
TA

TU
S

P
R

O
P

R
IE

TA
R

Y
 IN

FO
R

M
A

TI
O

N
TH

E
 IN

FO
R

M
A

TI
O

N
 C

O
N

TA
IN

E
D

 IN
 T

H
IS

 S
E

T 
O

F
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 IS
 P

R
O

P
R

IE
TA

R
Y

 &
 C

O
N

FI
D

E
N

TI
A

L 
TO

V
E

R
IZ

O
N

 W
IR

E
LE

S
S

A
N

Y
 U

S
E

 O
R

 D
IS

C
LO

S
U

R
E

 O
TH

E
R

 T
H

A
N

 A
S

 IT
 R

E
LA

TE
S

TO
 V

E
R

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
E

LE
S

S
 IS

 S
TR

IC
TL

Y
 P

R
O

H
IB

IT
E

D

S
A

N
 D

IE
G

O
, C

A
 9

21
12

61
9.

73
6.

37
66

50
15

 S
H

O
R

E
H

A
M

 P
LA

C
E

w
w

w
.s

ac
w

.c
om

E
 N

 G
 I 

N
 E

 E
 R

 I 
N

 G
   

G
 R

 O
 U

 P

W
  I

  R
  E

  L
  E

  S
  S

D
E

S
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
D

A
TE

B
Y

05
/0

5/
15

R
H

R
E

V
.

0

3450 SAGE AVENUE
YUCCA VALLEY, CA 92284

SONGBIRD10
0%

 Z
O

N
IN

G

10
/1

3/
15

E
C

1
FA

U
X

 W
A

TE
R

 T
O

W
E

R

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S 

PA
N

EL
A

N
TE

N
N

A
S,

 (1
2)

 T
O

TA
L,

 (4
) P

ER
 S

EC
TO

R

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S 

R
R

U
s 

(1
2)

TO
TA

L,
 (4

) P
ER

 S
EC

TO
R

 W
IT

H
 (1

2)
 A

2
M

O
D

U
LE

S,
 (1

) P
ER

 R
R

U

2

SO
U

TH
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N

1 A
-3

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S

8'
-0

" 
TA

LL
 C

M
U

 W
A

LL

TO
P 

O
F 

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S 

 F
A

U
X 

W
A

TE
R

 T
O

W
ER

 B
R

A
N

C
H

ES
EL

EV
. 5

2'
-0

" 
A

G
L

C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E 
O

F 
N

EW
 V

ER
IZ

O
N

 W
IR

EL
ES

S 
PA

N
EL

 &
 M

IC
R

O
W

A
VE

 A
N

TE
N

N
A

S
EL

EV
. 4

4'
-0

" 
A

G
L

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S

H
YB

R
ID

 C
A

B
LE

, (
3)

 T
O

TA
L

G
R

O
U

N
D

 L
E

V
E

L
E

LE
V

. 0
'-0

" A
G

L

A
G

L 
0'

-0
" =

 3
,6

09
' A

M
S

L

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S 

PA
N

EL
A

N
TE

N
N

A
S,

 (1
2)

 T
O

TA
L,

 (4
) P

ER
 S

EC
TO

R

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S 

R
R

U
s 

(1
2)

TO
TA

L,
 (4

) P
ER

 S
EC

TO
R

 W
IT

H
 (1

2)
 A

2
M

O
D

U
LE

S,
 (1

) P
ER

 R
R

U

1 A
-3

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S

8'
-0

" 
TA

LL
 C

M
U

 W
A

LL

TO
P 

O
F 

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S 

 F
A

U
X 

W
A

TE
R

 T
O

W
ER

 B
R

A
N

C
H

ES
EL

EV
. 5

2'
-0

" 
A

G
L

C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E 
O

F 
N

EW
 V

ER
IZ

O
N

 W
IR

EL
ES

S 
PA

N
EL

 &
 M

IC
R

O
W

A
VE

 A
N

TE
N

N
A

S
EL

EV
. 4

4'
-0

" 
A

G
L

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S

H
YB

R
ID

 C
A

B
LE

, (
3)

 T
O

TA
L

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S 

R
A

YC
A

P 
D

C
SU

R
G

E 
PR

O
TE

C
TI

O
N

 U
N

IT
, (

2)
 T

O
TA

L

FO
R

 E
Q

U
IP

M
EN

T
LA

YO
U

T 
SE

E:

FO
R

 E
Q

U
IP

M
EN

T
LA

YO
U

T 
SE

E:

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S

M
IC

R
O

W
A

VE
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
, (

1)
 T

O
TA

L

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S

M
IC

R
O

W
A

VE
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
, (

1)
 T

O
TA

L

N
EW

 L
A

D
D

ER
 W

IT
H

 S
A

FE
TY

C
A

G
E

N
EW

 L
A

D
D

ER
 W

IT
H

 S
A

FE
TY

C
A

G
E

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S 

G
PS

A
N

TE
N

N
A

S 
M

O
U

N
TE

D
 T

O
 N

EW
C

M
U

 W
A

LL
, (

2)
 T

O
TA

L

2.c

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

03
 P

la
ns

 a
nd

 E
le

va
tio

ns
  (

12
39

 : 
VZ

W
 C

or
te

l)



N
O

R
TH

 &
 E

A
ST

2
A

-5
EA

ST
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N

S
H

E
E

T 
TI

TL
E

:

IS
S

U
E

 S
TA

TU
S

P
R

O
P

R
IE

TA
R

Y
 IN

FO
R

M
A

TI
O

N
TH

E
 IN

FO
R

M
A

TI
O

N
 C

O
N

TA
IN

E
D

 IN
 T

H
IS

 S
E

T 
O

F
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 IS
 P

R
O

P
R

IE
TA

R
Y

 &
 C

O
N

FI
D

E
N

TI
A

L 
TO

V
E

R
IZ

O
N

 W
IR

E
LE

S
S

A
N

Y
 U

S
E

 O
R

 D
IS

C
LO

S
U

R
E

 O
TH

E
R

 T
H

A
N

 A
S

 IT
 R

E
LA

TE
S

TO
 V

E
R

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
E

LE
S

S
 IS

 S
TR

IC
TL

Y
 P

R
O

H
IB

IT
E

D

S
A

N
 D

IE
G

O
, C

A
 9

21
12

61
9.

73
6.

37
66

50
15

 S
H

O
R

E
H

A
M

 P
LA

C
E

w
w

w
.s

ac
w

.c
om

E
 N

 G
 I 

N
 E

 E
 R

 I 
N

 G
   

G
 R

 O
 U

 P

W
  I

  R
  E

  L
  E

  S
  S

D
E

S
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
D

A
TE

B
Y

05
/0

5/
15

R
H

R
E

V
.

0

3450 SAGE AVENUE
YUCCA VALLEY, CA 92284

SONGBIRD10
0%

 Z
O

N
IN

G

10
/1

3/
15

E
C

1
FA

U
X

 W
A

TE
R

 T
O

W
E

R

1
N

O
R

TH
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N

1 A
-3

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S

8'
-0

" 
TA

LL
 C

M
U

 W
A

LL

G
R

O
U

N
D

 L
E

V
E

L
E

LE
V

. 0
'-0

" A
G

L

TO
P 

O
F 

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S 

 F
A

U
X 

W
A

TE
R

 T
O

W
ER

 B
R

A
N

C
H

ES
EL

EV
. 5

2'
-0

" 
A

G
L

C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E 
O

F 
N

EW
 V

ER
IZ

O
N

 W
IR

EL
ES

S 
PA

N
EL

 &
 M

IC
R

O
W

A
VE

 A
N

TE
N

N
A

S
EL

EV
. 4

4'
-0

" 
A

G
L

1 A
-3

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S

8'
-0

" 
TA

LL
 C

M
U

 W
A

LL
G

R
O

U
N

D
 L

E
V

E
L

E
LE

V
. 0

'-0
" A

G
L

TO
P 

O
F 

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S 

 F
A

U
X 

W
A

TE
R

 T
O

W
ER

 B
R

A
N

C
H

ES
EL

EV
. 5

2'
-0

" 
A

G
L

C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E 
O

F 
N

EW
 V

ER
IZ

O
N

 W
IR

EL
ES

S 
PA

N
EL

 &
 M

IC
R

O
W

A
VE

 A
N

TE
N

N
A

S
EL

EV
. 4

4'
-0

" 
A

G
L

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S 

PA
N

EL
A

N
TE

N
N

A
S,

 (1
2)

 T
O

TA
L,

 (4
) P

ER
 S

EC
TO

R

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S 

R
R

U
s 

(1
2)

TO
TA

L,
 (4

) P
ER

 S
EC

TO
R

 W
IT

H
 (1

2)
 A

2
M

O
D

U
LE

S,
 (1

) P
ER

 R
R

U

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S

H
YB

R
ID

 C
A

B
LE

, (
3)

 T
O

TA
L

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S

R
A

YC
A

P 
D

C
 S

U
R

G
E

PR
O

TE
C

TI
O

N
 U

N
IT

, (
2)

 T
O

TA
L

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S 

PA
N

EL
A

N
TE

N
N

A
S,

 (1
2)

 T
O

TA
L,

 (4
) P

ER
 S

EC
TO

R

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S 

R
R

U
s 

(1
2)

TO
TA

L,
 (4

) P
ER

 S
EC

TO
R

 W
IT

H
 (1

2)
 A

2
M

O
D

U
LE

S,
 (1

) P
ER

 R
R

U

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S

H
YB

R
ID

 C
A

B
LE

, (
3)

 T
O

TA
L

A
G

L 
0'

-0
" =

 3
,6

09
' A

M
S

L

A
G

L 
0'

-0
" =

 3
,6

09
' A

M
S

L

FO
R

 E
Q

U
IP

M
EN

T
LA

YO
U

T 
SE

E:

FO
R

 E
Q

U
IP

M
EN

T
LA

YO
U

T 
SE

E:

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S 

R
A

YC
A

P
D

C
 S

U
R

G
E 

PR
O

TE
C

TI
O

N
 U

N
IT

, (
2)

TO
TA

L

N
EW

 L
A

D
D

ER
 W

IT
H

 S
A

FE
TY

C
A

G
E

N
EW

 L
A

D
D

ER
 W

IT
H

 S
A

FE
TY

C
A

G
E

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 V

ER
IZ

O
N

W
IR

EL
ES

S 
10

0A
EL

EC
TR

IC
A

L 
M

ET
ER

M
O

U
N

TE
D

 T
O

 N
EW

C
M

U
 W

A
LL

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S 

G
PS

A
N

TE
N

N
A

S 
M

O
U

N
TE

D
 T

O
 N

EW
C

M
U

 W
A

LL
, (

2)
 T

O
TA

L

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S 

G
PS

A
N

TE
N

N
A

S 
M

O
U

N
TE

D
 T

O
 N

EW
C

M
U

 W
A

LL
, (

2)
 T

O
TA

L

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S

M
IC

R
O

W
A

VE
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
, (

1)
 T

O
TA

L

2.c

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

03
 P

la
ns

 a
nd

 E
le

va
tio

ns
  (

12
39

 : 
VZ

W
 C

or
te

l)



UG/T UG/T

U
G

/T
U

G
/T

U
G

/T
U

G
/T

U
G

/T
U

G
/T

UG/E UG/E

U
G

/E
U

G
/E

U
G

/E
U

G
/E

U
G

/E
U

G
/E

U
G

/E

S
H

E
E

T 
TI

TL
E

:

IS
S

U
E

 S
TA

TU
S

P
R

O
P

R
IE

TA
R

Y
 IN

FO
R

M
A

TI
O

N
TH

E
 IN

FO
R

M
A

TI
O

N
 C

O
N

TA
IN

E
D

 IN
 T

H
IS

 S
E

T 
O

F
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 IS
 P

R
O

P
R

IE
TA

R
Y

 &
 C

O
N

FI
D

E
N

TI
A

L 
TO

V
E

R
IZ

O
N

 W
IR

E
LE

S
S

A
N

Y
 U

S
E

 O
R

 D
IS

C
LO

S
U

R
E

 O
TH

E
R

 T
H

A
N

 A
S

 IT
 R

E
LA

TE
S

TO
 V

E
R

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
E

LE
S

S
 IS

 S
TR

IC
TL

Y
 P

R
O

H
IB

IT
E

D

S
A

N
 D

IE
G

O
, C

A
 9

21
12

61
9.

73
6.

37
66

50
15

 S
H

O
R

E
H

A
M

 P
LA

C
E

w
w

w
.s

ac
w

.c
om

E
 N

 G
 I 

N
 E

 E
 R

 I 
N

 G
   

G
 R

 O
 U

 P

W
  I

  R
  E

  L
  E

  S
  S

D
E

S
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
D

A
TE

B
Y

05
/0

5/
15

R
H

R
E

V
.

0

3450 SAGE AVENUE
YUCCA VALLEY, CA 92284

SONGBIRD10
0%

 Z
O

N
IN

G

10
/1

3/
15

E
C

1
FA

U
X

 W
A

TE
R

 T
O

W
E

R

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

&
A

N
TE

N
N

A
 L

A
YO

U
T

N
O

R
TH 2

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 L
A

YO
U

T

3
N

O
T 

U
SE

D

A
-3

N
O

R
TH

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

LA
YO

U
T

112'-0"
NON-EXCLUSIVE ACCESS EASEMENT

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S 

PA
N

EL
A

N
TE

N
N

A
S,

 (1
2)

 T
O

TA
L,

 (4
) P

ER
 S

EC
TO

R

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S 

R
R

U
s 

(1
2)

TO
TA

L,
 (4

) P
ER

 S
EC

TO
R

 W
IT

H
 (1

2)
 A

2
M

O
D

U
LE

S,
 (1

) P
ER

 R
R

U

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S 

R
A

YC
A

P
D

C
 S

U
R

G
E 

PR
O

TE
C

TI
O

N
 U

N
IT

, (
2)

TO
TA

L

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
W

IR
EL

ES
S

4'
-0

" 
W

ID
E

W
R

O
U

G
H

T
IR

O
N

 A
C

C
ES

S
G

A
TE

6"

16
'-0

"

30
'-0

"
N

EW
 V

ER
IZ

O
N

 W
IR

EL
ES

S 
LE

A
SE

 A
R

EA

30'-0"
NEW VERIZON WIRELESS LEASE AREA

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S 

G
PS

A
N

TE
N

N
A

S 
M

O
U

N
TE

D
 T

O
 N

EW
C

M
U

 W
A

LL
, (

2)
 T

O
TA

L

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S 

G
R

A
VE

L
TH

R
O

U
G

H
O

U
T 

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T 

EN
C

LO
SU

R
E

(P
A

R
TI

A
LL

Y 
SH

O
W

N
 F

O
R

 C
LA

R
IT

Y)

N
EW

 4
" 

R
A

IS
ED

 C
O

N
C

R
ET

E
PA

D
 (T

YP
.)

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S

62
5 

SQ
. F

T.
 L

EA
SE

 A
R

EA

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S

M
C

E 
M

A
IN

 C
A

B
IN

ET

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S

D
C

 G
EN

ER
A

TO
R

O
U

TL
IN

E 
O

F 
N

EW
 V

ER
IZ

O
N

W
IR

EL
ES

S 
52

'-0
"'

 T
A

LL
FA

U
X 

W
A

TE
R

 T
O

W
ER

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S

H
YB

R
ID

 C
A

B
LE

 U
N

D
ER

G
R

O
U

N
D

R
O

U
TE

D
, (

3)
 T

O
TA

L
N

EW
 V

ER
IZ

O
N

 W
IR

EL
ES

S
C

O
A

X 
C

A
B

LE
 U

N
D

ER
G

R
O

U
N

D
R

O
U

TE
D

, (
24

) T
O

TA
L

2'-2"5'-0"

N
EW

 1
2'

-0
" 

W
ID

E 
VE

R
IZ

O
N

W
IR

EL
ES

S 
N

O
N

-E
XC

LU
SI

VE
A

C
C

ES
S 

EA
SE

M
EN

T

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S

52
'-0

"'
 T

A
LL

 F
A

U
X 

W
A

TE
R

TO
W

ER

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S

A
N

TE
N

N
A

 M
O

U
N

TI
N

G
5'-0"

EASEMENT

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
W

IR
EL

ES
S

5'
-0

" 
W

ID
E

PO
W

ER
/T

EL
C

O
EA

SE
M

EN
T

1'
-6

"

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S

8'
-0

" 
H

IG
H

 C
M

U
 W

A
LL

2'
-0

"
TY

P
.

2'
-0

"
TY

P
.

2'
-0

"
TY

P
.

6'
-0

"
TY

P
.

2'-10"

19
'-0

"

4'-4"

11
'-4

"

2'
-1

0"

1'-0"

N
EW

 L
A

D
D

ER
 W

IT
H

 S
A

FE
TY

C
A

G
E

N
EW

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
EL

ES
S

M
IC

R
O

W
A

VE
 A

N
TE

N
N

A
, (

1)
 T

O
TA

L

Ø14
'-0

"

15'-0"

15
'-0

"

26
'-0

"

26'-0"

6'
-8

"

8"

8"

2'-0"

2'
-0

"

16'-0"

1'
-6

"

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 V

ER
IZ

O
N

 W
IR

EL
ES

S
10

0A
 E

LE
C

TR
IC

A
L 

M
ET

ER
M

O
U

N
TE

D
 T

O
 N

EW
 C

M
U

 W
A

LL

7'-6"

2.c

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

03
 P

la
ns

 a
nd

 E
le

va
tio

ns
  (

12
39

 : 
VZ

W
 C

or
te

l)



2.
d

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 1

18

Attachment: 04 Application Material  (1239 : VZW Cortel)



2.
d

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 1

19

Attachment: 04 Application Material  (1239 : VZW Cortel)



2.
d

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 1

20

Attachment: 04 Application Material  (1239 : VZW Cortel)



2.
d

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 1

21

Attachment: 04 Application Material  (1239 : VZW Cortel)



2.
d

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 1

22

Attachment: 04 Application Material  (1239 : VZW Cortel)



2.
d

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 1

23

Attachment: 04 Application Material  (1239 : VZW Cortel)



2.
d

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 1

24

Attachment: 04 Application Material  (1239 : VZW Cortel)



 

 

 

November 19, 2015 

RE: Verizon Wireless Songbird Site Located at: Aberdeen Dr and Sage Ave, Yucca Valley, CA 92284 

 
To Whom It May Concern,   
 
We write to inform you that Verizon Wireless has performed a radio frequency (RF) compliance                    
pre-construction evaluation for the above-noted proposed site and based on the result of the evaluation, will be 
compliant with FCC Guidelines. 
 
The FCC has established safety guidelines relating to potential RF exposure from cell sites. The FCC developed 
the standards, known as Maximum Permissible Exposure (MPE) limits, in consultation with numerous other 
federal agencies, including the Environmental Protection Agency, the Food and Drug Administration, and the 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration. The FCC provides information about the safety of radio 
frequency (RF) emissions from cell towers on its website at: http://www.fcc.gov/oet/rfsafety/rf-faqs.html 
 
Please refer to the FCC Office of Engineering and Technology Bulletin 65 for information on RF exposure 
guidelines. Policy questions should be directed to VZWRFCompliance@verizonwireless.com. Contact your 
local Verizon Wireless resource below if you have additional site-specific questions. 
 

Contact Name Contact Email Contact Phone 
Diana Scudder WestSoCalNetworkCompliance@VerizonWireless.com 949-243-4849 

 
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
Jeddy Lin 
Manager-RF System Design 
Verizon Wireless 

2.e

Packet Pg. 125

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

05
 F

C
C

 C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

St
at

em
en

t  
(1

23
9 

: V
ZW

 C
or

te
l)



Ex
is

tin
g 

Si
te

s 
W

ith
ou

t S
on

gb
ird

2
Co

nfi
de

nti
al 

an
d 

pr
op

rie
tar

y 
ma

ter
ial

s f
or

 au
tho

riz
ed

 V
er

izo
n 

pe
rso

nn
el 

an
d 

ou
tsi

de
 a

ge
nc

ies
 o

nly
. U

se
, d

isc
los

ur
e 

or
 

dis
trib

uti
on

 o
f t

his
 m

ate
ria

l is
 no

t p
er

mi
tte

d 
to 

an
y u

na
uth

or
ize

d 
pe

rso
ns

 o
r t

hir
d 

pa
rtie

s 
ex

ce
pt 

by
 w

ritt
en

 a
gr

ee
me

nt.

LT
E:

 R
SR

P 
- C

ov
er

ag
e 

(0
)

Si
gn

al
 Le

ve
l (

dB
m

) >
=-

75
Si

gn
al

 Le
ve

l (
dB

m
) >

=-
85

Si
gn

al
 Le

ve
l (

dB
m

) >
=-

95
Si

gn
al

 Le
ve

l (
dB

m
) >

=-
10

5

2.f

Packet Pg. 126

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

06
 G

ap
 A

na
ly

si
s/

C
ov

er
ag

e 
M

ap
s 

 (1
23

9 
: V

ZW
 C

or
te

l)



So
ng

bi
rd

 O
nl

y

3
Co

nfi
de

nti
al 

an
d 

pr
op

rie
tar

y 
ma

ter
ial

s f
or

 au
tho

riz
ed

 V
er

izo
n 

pe
rso

nn
el 

an
d 

ou
tsi

de
 a

ge
nc

ies
 o

nly
. U

se
, d

isc
los

ur
e 

or
 

dis
trib

uti
on

 o
f t

his
 m

ate
ria

l is
 no

t p
er

mi
tte

d 
to 

an
y u

na
uth

or
ize

d 
pe

rso
ns

 o
r t

hir
d 

pa
rtie

s 
ex

ce
pt 

by
 w

ritt
en

 a
gr

ee
me

nt.

LT
E:

 R
SR

P 
- C

ov
er

ag
e 

(0
)

Si
gn

al
 Le

ve
l (

dB
m

) >
=-

75
Si

gn
al

 Le
ve

l (
dB

m
) >

=-
85

Si
gn

al
 Le

ve
l (

dB
m

) >
=-

95
Si

gn
al

 Le
ve

l (
dB

m
) >

=-
10

5

2.f

Packet Pg. 127

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

06
 G

ap
 A

na
ly

si
s/

C
ov

er
ag

e 
M

ap
s 

 (1
23

9 
: V

ZW
 C

or
te

l)



So
ng

bi
rd

 w
ith

 E
xi

st
in

g 
Si

te
s

4
Co

nfi
de

nti
al 

an
d 

pr
op

rie
tar

y 
ma

ter
ial

s f
or

 au
tho

riz
ed

 V
er

izo
n 

pe
rso

nn
el 

an
d 

ou
tsi

de
 a

ge
nc

ies
 o

nly
. U

se
, d

isc
los

ur
e 

or
 

dis
trib

uti
on

 o
f t

his
 m

ate
ria

l is
 no

t p
er

mi
tte

d 
to 

an
y u

na
uth

or
ize

d 
pe

rso
ns

 o
r t

hir
d 

pa
rtie

s 
ex

ce
pt 

by
 w

ritt
en

 a
gr

ee
me

nt.

LT
E:

 R
SR

P 
- C

ov
er

ag
e 

(0
)

Si
gn

al
 Le

ve
l (

dB
m

) >
=-

75
Si

gn
al

 Le
ve

l (
dB

m
) >

=-
85

Si
gn

al
 Le

ve
l (

dB
m

) >
=-

95
Si

gn
al

 Le
ve

l (
dB

m
) >

=-
10

5

2.f

Packet Pg. 128

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

06
 G

ap
 A

na
ly

si
s/

C
ov

er
ag

e 
M

ap
s 

 (1
23

9 
: V

ZW
 C

or
te

l)



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
YUCCA VALLEY COMMUNITY CENTER

57090 29 PALMS HIGHWAY
YUCCA VALLEY, CALIFORNIA 92284

TUESDAY, JANUARY 12, 2016 - BEGINNING AT 6:00 P.M.

A PUBLIC HEARING HAS BEEN SCHEDULED BEFORE THE TOWN OF YUCCA 
VALLEY PLANNING COMMISSION TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED 
APPLICATION:

CASE NUMBER: Environmental Assessment, EA 03-15
Conditional Use Permit, CUP 03-15

APPLICANT: VZW c/o Cortel
1554 Barton Rd #355
Redlands, CA 92373

REPRESENTATIVE: Andrea Urbas
1554 Barton Rd #355
Redlands, CA 92373

PROPOSAL: Proposal to construct a 52’ cellular tower to be disguised as a 
water tank, to include a generator inside a 900 square foot, 8’ 
high block wall enclosure for equipment. 

LOCATION: The project is located on Sage Avenue, south of Aberdeen and 
is further identified as APN: 597-211-06

ENVIRONMENTAL 
DETERMINATION: The project was reviewed under the California Environmental 

Quality Act (CEQA) and the Town’s Guidelines to implement 
same. The project is exempt from CEQA under Section 
15061(b) (3) since there is no possibility of a significant impact 
on the environment caused by this project.

Any person affected by the application(s) may appear and be heard in support of or 
opposition to the proposal at the time of the hearing. The environmental findings, 
along the with proposed project application(s) are available and may be reviewed at 
the Town of Yucca Valley Planning Division, 58928 Business Center Drive, Yucca 
Valley, CA 92284 from 7.30 a.m. to 5:30 p.m., Monday through Thursday or obtain 
information at (760) 369-6575.

The Planning Commission in its deliberation could recommend approval of the 
project, deny the project, or approve the project in an alternative form. If you 
challenge any of the projects in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues 
you or someone else raised at the Public Hearing described in this notice, or in 
written correspondence delivered to the Town Planning Division at, or prior to the 
Public Hearing.

December 15, 2015 /s/ Lesley R. Copeland
Date Lesley R. Copeland, CMC 

Town Clerk 
(PUB: S. 12/17/2015)

2.g

Packet Pg. 129

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

07
 N

ot
ic

e 
of

 H
ea

rin
g 

 (1
23

9 
: V

ZW
 C

or
te

l)



California State Clearinghouse Handbook  •   27

Name of Person or Agency Carrying Out Project:

Description of Project:

Project Location - Specific:

Notice of Exemption

To: □ Office of Planning and Research
PO Box 3044, 1400 Tenth Street, Room 222
Sacramento, CA 95812-3044

□ County Clerk
County of

Revised May 1999

From: (Public Agency)

Project Title:

Project Location – County:Project Location – City:

Name of Public Agency Approving Project:

Exempt Status:  (check one)
□ Ministerial (Sec. 21080(b)(1); 15268);
□ Declared Emergency (Sec. 21080(b)(3); 15269(a));
□ Emergency Project (Sec. 21080(b)(4); 15269(b)(c));
□ Categorical Exemption. State type and section number:
□ Statutory Exemptions. State code number:

(Address)

Reasons why project is exempt:

Lead Agency
Contact Person: Area Code/Telephone/Extension:

Signature: Date: Title:

□ Signed by Lead Agency

□ Signed by Applicant
Date received for filing at OPR:

If filed by applicant:
1. Attach certified document of exemption finding.
2. Has a Notice of Exemption been filed by the public agency approving the project? □ Yes □ No

27

Form D
2.h

Packet Pg. 130

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

08
 N

ot
ic

e 
of

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

 (1
23

9 
: V

ZW
 C

or
te

l)

Governor's Office of Planning and Research

✔

Town of Yucca Valley

58928 Business Center Drive

Yucca Valley, CA 92284

San Bernardino

385 N. Arrowhead, 2nd Flr.

San Bernardino, CA. 92415

EA 03-15, CUP 03-15 Cortel

The project is located on a vacant lot on the southwest corner of Aberdeen Dr and Sage
Ave and is further identified as APN:597-211-06.

Yucca Valley San Bernardino

A proposal to construct a 52’ cellular tower to be disguised as a water tank, to
include a generator inside a 900 square foot, 8’ high block wall enclosure for
equipment cabinets.

Town of Yucca Valley

VZW c/o Cortel

✔

The project is exempt from CEQA under Section 15061(b)(3) since there is no
possibility of a significant impact on the environment caused by this project.

Shane Stueckle (760)369-6575 X305

01/12/16 Deputy Town Manager

✔



2.
i

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 1

31

Attachment: 09 Chapter 9.44 Wireless Communications  (1239 : VZW Cortel)



2.
i

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 1

32

Attachment: 09 Chapter 9.44 Wireless Communications  (1239 : VZW Cortel)



2.
i

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 1

33

Attachment: 09 Chapter 9.44 Wireless Communications  (1239 : VZW Cortel)



2.
i

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 1

34

Attachment: 09 Chapter 9.44 Wireless Communications  (1239 : VZW Cortel)



2.
i

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 1

35

Attachment: 09 Chapter 9.44 Wireless Communications  (1239 : VZW Cortel)



2.
j

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 1

36

Attachment: 10 Section 9.31.030 Height Regulations  (1239 : VZW Cortel)



2.
k

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 1

37

Attachment: 11 Chapter 9.63 Conditional Use Permit  (1239 : VZW Cortel)



2.
k

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 1

38

Attachment: 11 Chapter 9.63 Conditional Use Permit  (1239 : VZW Cortel)



2.
k

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 1

39

Attachment: 11 Chapter 9.63 Conditional Use Permit  (1239 : VZW Cortel)



2.
k

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 1

40

Attachment: 11 Chapter 9.63 Conditional Use Permit  (1239 : VZW Cortel)



2.
k

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 1

41

Attachment: 11 Chapter 9.63 Conditional Use Permit  (1239 : VZW Cortel)



2.
k

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 1

42

Attachment: 11 Chapter 9.63 Conditional Use Permit  (1239 : VZW Cortel)



2.
k

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 1

43

Attachment: 11 Chapter 9.63 Conditional Use Permit  (1239 : VZW Cortel)



2.
k

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 1

44

Attachment: 11 Chapter 9.63 Conditional Use Permit  (1239 : VZW Cortel)



2.
k

Pa
ck

et
 P

g.
 1

45

Attachment: 11 Chapter 9.63 Conditional Use Permit  (1239 : VZW Cortel)



2.l

Packet Pg. 146

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

12
 C

ha
pt

er
 9

.3
0 

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
  (

12
39

 : 
VZ

W
 C

or
te

l)



2.l

Packet Pg. 147

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

12
 C

ha
pt

er
 9

.3
0 

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
  (

12
39

 : 
VZ

W
 C

or
te

l)



2.l

Packet Pg. 148

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

12
 C

ha
pt

er
 9

.3
0 

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
  (

12
39

 : 
VZ

W
 C

or
te

l)



2.l

Packet Pg. 149

A
tta

ch
m

en
t: 

12
 C

ha
pt

er
 9

.3
0 

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
  (

12
39

 : 
VZ

W
 C

or
te

l)


